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VISION 11 /) Paklibya

To be amongst the leading iy sy
and prominent contributors UL LT L L T T FFIFEEY i
to the industrial and s ] ' [ YNNI Nrrr _ h" .
economic development of == 114/ (11777 >
the country alongside P ' — o o L O ;
creating value for all ; . ¥ R
stakeholders concerned.

CORE VALUES (ctear) STRATEGIC
TARGETS

MISSION

To sustain long-term growth and optimize returns through smart
financing and prudent investment decisions as well as evolving as a
socially responsible vibrant organization and a dynamic employer.
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CHAIRMAN'S
REVIEW
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| am pleased to present the annual
financial statements of Pak-Libya Holding
Company (Private) Limited for the year
ended 31 December 2017 with fervour to
convert every challenge into
opportunity.

Year 2017 was a year of many
developments for the Country; the political
uncertainty, macro-level indicators of the
economy and changing global landscape
proved tough for the business
environment. In  year 2018 these
challenges would merit certain tough
decisions, internationally, and timely
addressing increasing debt servicing cost
and continuity of policies for sustainable
economic growth.

The Company, however, remains well
positioned in terms of its business strategy
and selective stance in asset growth. The
upgrading of Pakistan from a frontier
economy to an emerging market in the
MSCI Index did not bring planned positive
results yet however, | believe it would be
instrumental in uplifting Pakistan’s growth
trajectory in the future. As CPEC would
enter in the mature stage in the
forthcoming years, the benefits of
economic  incentives and  regional
integration would get more pronounced
and inclusive. Need of the time however is
to rigorously approach solution to ongoing
economic woes and political stability for
the benefits of CPEC to transpire optimally.

The Company has been performing well
regardless of certain  operational
limitations due to the existing situation of

minimum capital requirement. Even in
these challenging times, with the relentless
efforts, painstaking determination and
perseverance to overcome all odds by the
staff and management, | believe the
Company would not only overcome
potential challenges but will face them with
positivity to achieve Company’s strategic
objectives.

| believe that with firm determination and
incessant hardwork Pak-Libya would
certainy emerge as a prominent
contributor to the overall economic fabric of
Pakistan in the years to come.

We are committed to create long-term
value for our clients, shareholders,
employees and other stakeholders.

Acknowledgements

| would like to express my sincere gratitude
to all the stakeholders for the confidence
they continue to repose in the Company. |
also want to express my sincere
appreciation to the shareholders; LAFICO
and SBP , including MoF, for their continued
support and guidance.

Bashir B. Omer
Chairman

Date: 23 March 2018
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On behalf of the Board of Directors, we are
pleased to present the Directors’ Report of
Pak Libya Holding Company (Private)
Limited (“Pak-Libya”) along with annual
audited financial statements and the
auditor’s report thereon for the year ended
31 December 2017.

Economic Overview

Year 2017 could not prove to be a
promising year for Pakistan. The pace of
economic development remained
contained in the latter half of the year
primarily due to political instability that
emerged after disqualification of the Prime
Minister from his office. Moreover, jitters of
widening current account deficit, depleting
reserves and fiscal deficit also resulted in
outlook’s on Pakistan’s Long-Term Foreign
and Local Currency Issuer default rating
from “Stable” to “Negative”. The vicious
cycle of Pakistan's Debt escalation
continued and another $2.5 billion was
injected through global capital market
borrowings from Sukuk and Euro Bonds.
The only positive aspect of this borrowing
was the relief it brought to the State in
terms of reluctance in going back to
International Monetary Fund (IMF) for
further financing before the upcoming
general elections.

The reclassification of Pakistan from
Frontier to Emerging Market Index kept the
Investor's sentiment high and PSX
surpassed 53,000 level mark in May 2017
but this bullish trend could not hold its
ground for longer term and the bourse
remained extremely volatile closing the

year with a drop of 23%. Considering the
overall economic indicators, State Bank of
Pakistan (SBP) increased the policy rate
by 25bps in its monetary policy
announcement in January 2018.

Ongoing efforts will be crucial as the
economy will continue to face serious ‘long
term challenges’ like significant trade deficit
and balance of payment issues, increasing
trend in oil prices, inadequacy of taxation
reforms, current political uncertainty,
terrorism and peace effort globally
including its impact on domestic law and
order situation.

Going forward, the vision of a strong and
stable Pakistan is dependent upon
effective implementation of consistent
socio-economic policies and successful
execution of CPEC related projects.

Corporate Performance

The Company has witnessed crests and
troughs in the recent past; in year 2017
despite various challenges Company’s
results remained positive and Company
generated profit before tax of PKR 84.12
million.

Existng and evolving  regulatory
requirements governing capital, leverage,
and liquidity, together with the steps we
have taken to adapt to them, have been
critical for the profitable operations of the
Company and to creating a safer and more
resilient financial system overall.
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While we continued to maintain our cautious stance,
building and maintaining a high quality of advances
portfolio, it was equally important to supplement the core
business income by capitalising other business
opportunities. Hence, the asset mix remained dominant
with investments in debt securities as volatility in the stock
market and dreary performance of the KSE 100 Index
particularly in the second half of the year restricted
returns for investors from the bourse.

Additionally, new credit lines were also negotiated to fill in
the liquidity gaps and to ensure contingency fund
planning.

The Pakistan Credit Rating Agency (PACRA) maintained
its credit ratings from the previous year for Pak Libya in
the year 2017 as follows;

Short Term:

Al+

(A One Plus)

Long Term:

AA-

(Double A Minus)

These ratings denote a low expectation of credit risk
emanating from a very strong capacity for timely
payment of financial commitments.

A Consolidated Approach

Each of our business units contributed to support the
management’s business strategy and hence played its
fair share in making the Company profitable. Highlights
on our business units’ performance during the year 2017
is presented hereunder;

Corporate & Investment Banking (CIB)

Considering the core activity of the Company, significant
efforts have been made to increase the credit portfolio.
The net credit portfolio of the CIB has increased from
PKR 2,428.5 million last year to PKR 3,093.9 million.

D rakLibya

Though the net interest income (NIl) has reduced
compared to last year but it is mainly due to the declining
interest rates until 2017 end and disbursement towards
the later part of the year which will have a positive impact
in year 2018. Moreover, to supplement the overall credit
portfolio, the Company launched SME and Retail
Banking operations in the second half of year 2016.

SME & Retail Banking (SME-RB)

With an aim to capture potential market share in the SME
sector, specific sub-sectors were identified, various
products developed and targets set for the business
team. During the year, the department was involved in
auto and lease financing and business loans against
mortgage property; and disbursed loans amounting to
approx. PKR 390 million as demand from both these
sectors was strong and dominant owing to the overall rise
in activity in both sectors.

The management exercised extra caution in selecting
clients, for CIB and SME-RB, through stringent risk
assessment and pressed hard on rigorous post
disbursement monitoring.

Treasury & Fund Management (TFM)

Our TFM department in addition to mobilizing resources
at competitive rates for business units continued to
supplement our core business income through
secondary market investments and selected investments
in debt instruments. During the year, TFM realized capital
gain on debt securities of PKR 101.65 milion and
generated interest income of PKR 691 million. In the year
2017, the investments remained concentrated in Market
Treasury Bills (MTBs) and shorter tenor Pakistan
Investment Bonds (PIBs). Considering the overall
macroeconomic conditions, SBP increased 25bps in the
interest rate subsequent to yearend thereby creating
incentives for investments in Government securities.

Securities Portfolio Management (SPM)

The Pakistan Stock Exchange witnessed phenomenal
growth, though temporarily, in the first half of the year
2017. The benchmark 100-Index exhibited exceptional
performance both in terms of volume and value.
However, after conversion from Frontier to Emerging
Market Index, the market has seen a decline of highest
10,000 points; the KSE—100 Index maintained a volatile
trend during second half of the year. Our SPM
department on the basis of our overall risk appetite and
resources available posted returns of around 17.5%
despite restricted prudential limits due to minimum
capital requirement (MCR) shortfall.

A brief summary of the financial results and financial position is as follows:

2017 2016
(PKR in thousands)

Year-end balances:

Total assets
Total liabilities
Net assets

Shareholders’ equity (net):
Share capital

Reserves

Accumulated loss

Sub total

(Deficit)/surplus on revaluation of assets — net of tax
Total

For the year:

Profit before taxation
Profit after taxation
Earnings per share (Rs.)

The Company has transferred an amount equal to 20%
of profit after taxation to statutory reserves as per the
applicable legal requirements.

In view of the minimum capital requirement (MCR)
shortfall faced by the Company, no amount could be
considered for distribution of dividends (bonus or cash) to
the shareholders. We are, however, confident that once
the capital injection transaction of PKR 2 billion is
completed, the Company will earn sufficient profits to
enable dividend distributions to its shareholders in
addition to compliance with MCR.

Statement on Corporate and Financial Reporting
Framework

e The financial statements prepared by the
management, present fairly its state of affairs, the
result of its operations, cash flows, and changes in
equity.

¢ Proper books of account of the Company have been
maintained.

e Appropriate accounting policies have been
consistently applied in the preparation of financial
statements and accounting estimates are based on
reasonable and prudent judgment. Further, changes
in the accounting policies are duly disclosed in the
financial statements.

¢ International Financial Reporting Standards, as

19,162,930 18,895,441
14,608,015 14,134,026
4,554,915 4,761,415
6,141,780 6,141,780
311,650 302,094
(1,740,780) (1,774,710)
4,712,650 4,669,164
(157,735) 92,251
4,554,915 4,761,415
84,124 1,031,819
47,781 791,170

78 1,288

applicable in Pakistan for DFls, have been followed in
the preparation of financial statements.

e There are no doubts regarding the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern.

e Tax contingencies have been disclosed in the
financial statements.

e There has been no material departure from the best
practices of corporate governance.

* The system of internal controls including internal
controls over financial reporting is sound in design
and has been effectively implemented and monitored.

e Summary of key operational and financial data for last
six years is enclosed.

Corporate Social Responsibility

The Company has always remained active in fulfilling its
social responsibility and will continue its efforts on this
front in future as well. However, despite the performance
of the Company, we were unable to support certain
notable, reputed charitable institution due to shortage of
minimum capital requirement and related SBP prudential
regulations.
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Board Composition

During the year Mr. Khalid S.T Benrjoba, LAFICO
nominee executive director, as at 31 March 2017, has
been replaced by Mr. Khaled Joma Ezarzor. He took
charge of his office on 5 April 2017 after the completion
of regulatory formalities. Further, subsequent to the
yearend, one of the Government of Pakistan’s nominee
non-executive directors Mr. Haque Nawaz has been
replaced by Dr. Muhammad Tahir Noor under the
GOP’s letter F. No 1(3)-Inv-IV/2007 dated 22 January
2018.

Risk Management Framework

The Company’s overall Risk Management Framework
is robust. The Risk Management Structure of the
Company is overseen by the Board Risk Management
Committee (BRMC) which has further entrusted the
task to the Management Risk Management Committee
(MRMC) to carry out the assessment of all types of
risks, the Company is exposed to and work on a
strategy and action plan to mitigate the risks on the
basis of Company’s overall risk appetite.

The Credit Policy and Credit Manuals for the Company

D ParLivya

were updated and modified based on changing risk
and regulatory environment and are being
implemented for a better and comprehensive
evaluation, on a continuous basis, of credit exposure
that each client brings in. The redesigned Obligor Risk
Rating model and Facility Risk Rating model
emphasising upon internal ratings model covering
objective aspects are used for respective evaluation of
risks. Consequently, the risk appetite has been further
elaborated to include specific limits. Furthermore, the
monitoring and reporting mechanism has also been
strengthened with an aim to improvise the overall credit
risk management process.

We believe that a sound Operational Risk Function is
critical for uninterrupted workflow of operations round
the year. Thus, staying watchful of any contingency that
may arise and to ensure continuity of our business
operations, our BCP site is being maintained at one of
our peer DFIs under a reciprocal arrangement.
Moreover, an operational risk database is being
regularly maintained to comply with the regulatory
requirement as well as to keep a regular check on the
incidents that need to be addressed on a prompt basis
and also to evaluate the effectiveness of the
operational risk mechanism in function.

We also formalised a Company-wide documented
business continuity plan at each business unit level
considering the operational risk. During the year, we
continue to strengthened our Internal Controls and
hence brought about various improvements and
implemented an integrated IT system keeping in view
the best practices and to cater our reporting
requirements. Furthermore, our Compliance, Risk
Management and overall Internal Control structure
remained robust and the implementation of SBP
guidelines and framework on Internal Control Over
Financial Reporting (ICFR) remained steadfast.

The market risk function continues to monitor market
related risks. Stress Testing analyses are used to
assess impact of key potential risks on existing
exposures. The revised market risk policy with
elaborated interest rate risk has been implemented.
Also, the guidelines on monitoring and reporting of
interest rate risks have been enhanced in the overall
market risk management framework.

The Company has also a Liquidity Risk Management
Policy, in addition to the Liquidity Management Policy, in
place. The revised Liquidity Risk Management Manual
included a detailed and comprehensive Liquidity
Contingency Plan.

The Company continues to maintain its CAR well
above prescribed regulatory thresholds throughout the
year based on applicable Basel Il and Basel Il
requirements. Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment
Process (ICAAP) framework has been reviewed in
view of the guidelines issued by SBP and implemented
to make the process more robust and effective.
Moreover, efforts are underway to comply with
regulatory Minimum Capital Requirement (MCR) of Rs.
6 billion. SBP had allowed exemption to the Company
from meeting the required MCR till 30 June 2017.The
MoF has requested SBP to allow further extension in
meeting the MCR to the Company and vide its letter no.
F2(1) Inv-1V/2014 dated 16 January 2018 has stated
that in the last quarter of current Financial Year, after a
review of fiscal space, injection of equity would be given
due consideration. Consequently, SBP has granted
extension in meeting MCR till 30 June 2018.

Growth in the Company’s portfolio is being handled
effectively to avoid risk concentration through
established limits. Amendments in the limits have been
duly made following revision in the Prudential
Regulations. The Company aims at business growth by
assuming direct exposure or through risk participation.
Risk Management Division proactively contributes in
exposure selection within the defined risk parameters.

The Company continues to put in efforts to further
improve and strengthen the risk management and
internal control framework of the Company.

Statement on Internal Controls

A sound system of internal controls is in place to
achieve organisational objectives and continuous
improvement is made therein in light of the changing
requirements of the business and operating

environment. Management has evaluated the internal
controls, including internal controls over financial
reporting as effective and the Board endorses the
same evaluation. The State Bank of Pakistan, in view of
the strengthened control environment has granted
exemption to the Company from annual submission of
external auditor's long form report on internal control
over financial reporting (ICFR).

Comments of Auditors in their Audit Report

The Company auditors have added emphasis of matter
paragraphs in their audit report. They have drawn
attention to note 1.2 to the accompanying financial
statements and stated that the State Bank of Pakistan
(SBP) has granted exemption to the Company from the
required minimum paid-up capital (free of losses) of Rs.
6 billion till 30 June 2018.

The opinion of auditors is not qualified in respect of the
above matter.

Comments of Auditors in their Review Report on
Best Practices of Corporate Governance

Auditors have not highlighted any material
non-compliance in their review report on Company’s
Statement of Best Practices of Corporate Governance.

Statement of Investment of Provident and Gratuity
Funds

The values of investments (excluding cash at bank) of
provident fund and gratuity fund as at 31 December
2016 were PKR 97.43 million and PKR 121.68 million
respectively based on the audited accounts of these
funds.

Details of Board Meetings and Board Sub-committee meetings attendances and their memberships

During the year, five meetings of the Board of Directors were held and attended by directors as follows:

Name of Director Designation
Mr. Bashir B. Omer Chairman
Mr. Fazal-ur-Rehman Director
Mr. Ramadan A. Haggiagi Director
Mr. Haque Nawaz Director

Mr. Abid Aziz Managing Director

Mr. Khaled Joma Ezarzor

Mr. Khalid S.T. Benrjoba Deputy Managing Director (31/03/2017)
Deputy Managing Director (05/04/2017)

Meetings Meetings
held during directorship attended
5 5
5 5
5 5
5 2
5 5
1 1
4 4
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Details of Audit Committee Meetings
During the year, four meetings of the audit committee were held and attended by member(s) as follows:

Name of Director Designation Meetings Meetings
held during directorship attended
Mr. Ramadan A. Haggiagi  Chairman (till 12/08/2017) / Member* 4 4
(13/08/2017 onwards)

Mr. Fazal-ur-Rehman Member (till 12/08/2017) / Chairman* 4 4
(13/08/2017 onwards)
Mr. Haque Nawaz Member 4 1

Details of Risk Management Committee Meetings
During the year, two meetings of the risk management committee were held and attended by member(s) as follows:

Name of Director Designation Meetings Meetings
held during directorship attended

Mr. Fazal-ur-Rehman Chairman* (till 12/08/2017)
Mr. Ramadan A. Haggiagi Member

Mr. Khaled Joma Ezarzor Member

Mr. Haque Nawaz Chairman* (13/08/2017 onwards)

- NN =
—_ NN =

Details of Human Resource and Remuneration Committee Meetings
During the year, two meetings of the human resource and remuneration committee were held and attended by member(s) as follows:

Name of Director Designation Meetings Meetings
held during directorship attended
Mr. Bashir B. Omer Chairman 2 2
Mr. Fazal-ur-Rehman Member 2 2
Mr. Abid Aziz Member (till 12/08/2017) / Non-member* 2 2
(13/08/2017 onwards)

Details of Credit/Investment Committee Meeting of the Board
During the year, two credit/investment committee meetings were held and attended by member(s) as follows:

Name of Director Designation Meetings Meetings
held during directorship attended

Mr. Bashir B. Omer Chairman 2 2

Mr. Fazal-ur-Rehman** Member 2 2

Mr. Abid Aziz Member 2 2

* Due to change in the composition of the Committee(s)
** Replaced Mr. Haque Nawaz on 13/08/2017

D PakLivya

Auditors

The present auditors M/s Grant Thornton Anjum Rahman, Chartered Accountants (A member firm of Grant Thornton
International Ltd) retire and being eligible, have offered themselves for re-appointment. The Audit Committee has
recommended re-appointment of auditors for the year ending 31 December 2018 which has been endorsed by the

Board of Directors.

Pattern of Shareholding

Shareholders

Government of Pakistan through State Bank of Pakistan
Government/State of Libya through Libyan Foreign Investment Company (LAFICO) 50

Total

Company Outlook

The shortfall in statutory minimum regulatory capital is
an impediment we still need to overcome in the year
2018. Based on our follow up with the Ministry of
Finance (MoF) and Libyan Foreign Investment
Company (LAFICO), we are hopeful of a positive
outcome on the matter in the ensuing year and are
therefore confident that the projected capital injection to
the tune of PKR 2 billion as well as disposal of assets
from Kamoki Energy Limited (KEL), which is expected
during the first half of the year, will enable us to
overcome this challenge thus providing us a level
playing field with other prominent peer DFIs to prove
our mark in the industry. Consequently, to increase the
salability of KEL assets, during the year, the Company
established a wholly-owned subsidiary and applied to
NEPRA for the generation license. Moreover, LAFICO
has reiterated its commitment to inject additional capital
subject to simultaneous injection from MoF.

We hold a firm stance towards our future business
strategy and outlook. Moving forth with an aim to
increase the advances portfolio size to almost double in
the next three years, we understand and believe that a
performing portfolio from our core business, growing at
a steady rate, would provide a solid ground for our
business targets to propel towards one of our core
objectives of long-term growth and return optimisation.

The management is focusing on all possible avenues
for profitable operations of the Company. These
include, but are not limited to, the recovery efforts for
troubled and non-performing assets which are a source
of potential earnings.

Shareholding (%)
50

100

In view of the overall efforts being made by the
management and the consistent positive results that
we have managed to achieve over the years, we are
much optimistic about our Company’s future growth,
profitability and attainment of competitive edge.
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(Rupees in '000)

SUMMARY OF KEY OPERATIONAL AND
FINANCIAL DATA FOR LAST SIX YEARS

(PKR In Million) @ Varkup income 1,016,924

2017 2016 2015 2013 2012
Gross Approvals* 1,613 782 1805 1,355 @ Non markup Income 31 8’21 6

Disbursements 986 479 1,213 1,295
Investments - net - 2,891 3,539 - 1,319
Recoveries - Principal 1,190 1,218 851 745
Redemption - Investments 540 138 68 183
Gross Income 1208 1,830 1331 1,349 EXPENSE COMPOSITION 2017
Net interest income 313 360 254 245
Net profit/(loss) before tax 1,032 472 196 (3,317)
Taxation - net 241 167 14 111

Net profit/(loss) after tax 791 305 182  (3,429)
- @ Markup expenses 752,303
Shareholders' Equity - net 4,761 3,895 3,320 3,144

Total assets 18,895 15,274 12,121 13,466 @ Non-markup expenses 4 49,600
Staff strength (number)** 106 105 111 104

* Include rollover
** Including outsourced staff
Note: Figures of respective years include impacts of restatements (as applicable)

ASSET MIX 2011

@ Investments 9,700,440
@ Advances 3,593,084

@ orers 1,869,406
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STATEMENT OF

INTERNAL CONTROLS 0.

STATEMENT OF BEST PRACTIGES
OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

OVERVIEW OF INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM

It is the responsibility of the Company’s management to
establish and maintain a sound system of internal
controls that helps in effective and efficient operations,
reliable financial reporting and compliance with
applicable laws and regulations. The internal control
system broadly comprises of control procedures and
control environment. Following is the brief on the
internal control systems:

* Management identifies control objectives for key
areas, makes necessary policies and procedures
for effective controls and ensures implementation of
the same.

Policies for various key areas have been made
which have been approved by the Board of
Directors.

Policies and procedures are reviewed and
amendments are made to continuously bring
required improvements in the same from time to
time.

The Company has internal audit function which
reports to the Audit Committee and reviews the
application of policies and procedures and ensures
identification for rectification of control weaknesses
(if any).

On regular basis, observation of control
environment, appropriate test of transactions,
sharing of findings of internal control systems and
implementation of relevant appropriate corrective
actions are carried out.

The observations and weaknesses identified and
reported by the auditors (internal, external and the
State Bank of Pakistan (SBP)) are duly taken into
account by the management and necessary control
measures are taken to avoid repetition of those
observations and exceptions.

Management endeavors to ensure timely and
satisfactory response to the recommendations and
suggestions made by the auditors and the same
are periodically reviewed for implementation by the
internal audit department.

Budgets and plans are approved by the Board of
Directors which are monitored for implementation
on periodic basis.

Due attention is given to enhance overall
competence level and knowledge of the employees
to achieve the desired level of internal control
systems.

€D PakLibya

INTERNAL CONTROLS OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING

e Previous documentation for Internal Controls Over
Financial Reporting (ICFR) is being updated in
financial year 2017 to incorporate the updated
status of processes and controls as a result of new
operating activities and implementation of
integrated management reporting system. This is
aimed to bring further improvement in the ICFR
framework of the Company.

SBP’s instructions (specific or general) issued on
the matter of ICFR from time to time are being
complied at earliest possible timelines.

The SBP has granted exemption, to the Company,
from the requirement of Statutory Auditors’ Long
Form Report on ICFR. Consequently, the Company
has been submitting the Audit Committee’s annual
assessment report on the efficacy of the Internal
Control over Financial Reporting as required under
circular ‘OSED Circular No. 01 of 2014’ dated 7
February 2014.

EVALUATION OF INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS
INCLUDING INTERNAL CONTROLS OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Company’s internal controls including internal
controls over financial reporting are sound in design
and are being effectively implemented and monitored.
The Company has made efforts during the financial
year 2017 to bring further improvements in the internal
control systems through implementation of integrated
management reporting system. Moreover, gaps
identified in the internal control systems, including
internal controls over financial reporting from time to
time are targeted to be completed at the earliest
possible timeline.

Khaled Joma Ezarzor
Deputy Managing Director

Abid Aziz
Managing Director & CEO

Date: 23 March 2018

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

This statement is being presented to conform with the best
practices of Corporate Governance which are being
practiced by Pak-Libya Holding Company (Private) Limited
(“the Company” or “Pak-Libya” or “PLHC”). Until prior year
the Code of Corporate Governance (the Code) as framed 1.
by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan

was applicable to all Development Financial Institutions
(DFls) including the Company, however through BPRD
circular 14 of 2016 issued on 20 October 2016 by the State

Bank of Pakistan (SBP) the Code is no longer mandatory

for the DFls.

Category

Executive
Directors (two)

Mr. Abid Aziz — Managing Director

Non-Executive Mr. Bashir Blkasm Omer

Directors Mr. Fazal ur Rehman

(Four) Mr. Ramadan A. Haggiagi
Mr. Haque Nawaz

2. The directors have confirmed that none of them is
serving as a director in more than seven listed
companies, including PLHC.

. All the resident directors of the Company are
registered as taxpayers and none of them has
defaulted in payment of any loan to a banking
company, a DFI or an NBFI or, being a member of a
stock exchange, has been declared as a defaulter by
that stock exchange.

Mr. Khalid S.T. Benrjoba — Deputy Managing Director (31/03/2017)
Mr. Khaled Joma Ezarzor — Deputy Managing Director (05/04/2017)

The Company nevertheless, has applied the principles
considered to be the best practices in Corporate
Governance in the following manner:

As per the joint venture arrangement between
Government of Pakistan (GoP) and Government of
Libya (State of Libya), the Company’s board of directors
comprises of six directors with three directors
nominated by each Government. The Company
encourages representation of non-executive directors
on its board of directors (the Board). At present the
Board includes:

Haque Nawaz has been replaced by Dr. Muhammad
Tahir Noor under the GOP’s letter FNo
1(3)-Inv-1V/2007 dated 22 January 2018.

. The Company has prepared employee code of

conduct and statement of ethics and business
practices and has ensured that appropriate steps
have been taken to disseminate it throughout the
Company.

. The Board has developed a vision / mission

. During the year Mr. Khalid S.T Benrjoba, LAFICO
nominee executive director, as at 31 March 2017, has
been replaced by Mr. Khaled Joma Ezarzor. He took
charge of his office on 5 April 2017 after the
completion of regulatory formalities. Further,
subsequent to the yearend, one of the Government of
Pakistan’'s nominee non-executive directors Mr.

statement, overall corporate strategy and significant
policies of the Company. A complete record of
particulars of significant policies along with the dates
on which they were approved or amended has been
maintained.
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7. All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised

and decisions on material transactions have been
taken by the Board. Further, as per the process, the
appointment, remuneration and terms of employment
of the CEO, other executive and non-executive
directors are taken by the board / shareholders, as
applicable.

. The meetings of the Board were presided over by the
Chairman. The Board met at least once in every
calendar quarter. Written notices of the Board
meeting, along with the agenda and working papers,
were circulated at least seven days before the
meetings. The minutes of the meetings were
appropriately recorded and circulated. Further, roles
and responsibilites of the Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer have been defined by the Board as
per the requirements of the regulations and best
practices.

9. The directors are professionally trained and have vast
experience to effective discharge their fiduciary duties.

10. The appointments of the Chief Financial Officer, the

Company Secretary and the Head of Internal Audit
including their remuneraton and terms of
employment are approved by the Board.

11.The Directors’ Report for the year has been prepared

in compliance with the requirements of related laws
and regulations and fully describes the applicable
salient matters required to be disclosed.

12.The financial statements of the Company were duly

endorsed by the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief
Financial Officer before approval of the Board.

13.The Directors, Chief Executive Officer and Executives

do not hold any interest in the shares of the Company.

14.The Company has complied with all applicable

corporate and financial reporting requirements of the
applicable laws and regulations.

15. The Board has formed an Audit Committee. As per its

approved structure, this committee comprises of three
members, all of whom are non-executive Directors
including its Chairman.

€D PakLibya

16. The meetings of the Audit Committee are held at least
once every quarter prior to the approval of interim and
final results of the Company. The terms of reference of
the committee have been formulated and advised to
the committee for compliance.

17.The Board has also constituted a Human Resource
and Remuneration Committee (formerly Recruitment
and Compensation Committee). As per the approved
structure, it comprises of two non-executives and one
executive director. The chairman of the committee is a
non-executive Director.

18.The Board has set up an effective internal audit
function. Personnel of the Internal Audit Department
are suitably qualified and experienced for the purpose
and are conversant with the policies and procedures
of the Company.

19.The statutory auditors of the Company have
confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory
rating under the ‘Quality Control Review Program’ of
The Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan
(ICAP), that they or any of the partners of the firm,
their spouses and minor children do not hold shares
of the Company and that the firm and all its partners
are in compliance with International Federation of
Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on Code of Ethics as
adopted by the ICAP.

20. The statutory auditors or the persons associated with
them have not been appointed to provide other
services except in accordance with the listing
regulations and the auditors confirmed that they have
observed IFAC guidelines in this regard.

Khaled Joma Ezarzor
Deputy Managing Director

Abid Aziz
Managing Director & CEO

Date: 23 March 2018
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AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF PAK LIBYA
HOLDING COMPANY (PRIVATE) LIMITED

We have audited the annexed unconsolidated statement of financial position of Pak Libya Holding Company
(Private) Limited (the Company) as at December 31, 2017 and the related unconsolidated profit and loss
account, unconsolidated statement of comprehensive income, unconsolidated cash flow statement and
unconsolidated statement of changes in equity together with the notes forming part thereof (here-in-after
referred to as the “unconsolidated financial statements”), for the year then ended and we state that we have
obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary
for the purposes of our audit.

It is the responsibility of the Company’s management to establish and maintain a system of internal control,
and prepare and present the above said statements in conformity with the approved accounting standards and
the requirements of the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 (LVII of 1962) and the Companies Ordinance,
1984 (XLVII of 1984). Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the auditing standards as applicable in Pakistan. These standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the above said
statements are free of any material misstatement. An audit includes examining on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the above said statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting policies and significant estimates made by management, as well as, evaluating the overall
presentation of the above said statements. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our
opinion and, after due verification, which in case of loans and advances covered more than 60% of the total
loans and advances of the Company, we report that:

(@) inour opinion, proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies
Ordinance, 1984;

(b) inour opinion:

(i) the unconsolidated statement of financial position and the related profit and loss account
together with the notes forming part thereof have been drawn up in conformity with the Banking
Companies Ordinance, 1962 (LVII of 1962) and the Companies Ordinance, 1984 (XLVII of
1984), and are in agreement with the books of account and are further in accordance with the
accounting policies consistently applied;
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(ii) the expenditure incurred during the year was for the purpose of the Company’s business; and
(iii) the business conducted, investments made and the expenditure incurred during the year were

in accordance with the objects of the Company;

in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
unconsolidated statement of financial position, unconsolidated profit and loss account, unconsolidated
statement of comprehensive income, unconsolidated cash flow statement and unconsolidated
statement of changes in equity together with the notes forming part thereof conform with approved
accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan, and give the information required by the Banking
Companies Ordinance, 1962 (LVII of 1962), and the Companies Ordinance, 1984 (XLVII of 1984), in the
manner so required and respectively give a true and fair view of the state of the Company’s affairs as at
December 31, 2017 and of the profit, total comprehensive loss, its cash flows and changes in equity for
the year then ended; and

in our opinion, no Zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of
1980).

Emphasis of matter

We draw attention to note 1.2 to the accompanying unconsolidated financial statements which explains that
State Bank of Pakistan (SBP), has granted further exemption to the Company from the required minimum
paid-up-capital (free of losses) of Rs. 6 billion till 30 June 2018 and has advised the Company to pursue the
case with ministry of finance for equity injection in the Company by the Government of Pakistan.

Our opinion is not qualified in respect of the above matter.

Other matter

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2016 were audited by another firm
of chartered accountants who in their audit report dated March 9, 2017, expressed an unqualified opinion.

Karachi Grant Thornton Anjum Rahman
Dare: March 29, 2018 Chartered Accountants

@D PakLibya

Muhammad Shaukat Naseeb
Engagement Partner

UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS 2017

&
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AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2017 FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 PakLibya
2017 2016 2017 2016
Note weeeee (Rupees in '000) «-mnee- Note «ee=eex (Rupees in ‘000) —=-=
ARPETS Mark-up / return / int { d 21 1,016,924 1,179,031
Cash and balances with treasury banks 5 28,328 20,420 Lt e o ki whEs
Balancas witt:other Bainks 6 83,494 72705 Mark-up / retun?l / mtere?t expensed 22 752,303 865,788
Lendings to financial institutions 7 4,000,000 950,000 Net mark-up / interest income 264,621 313,243
Investments 8 9,700,440 13,183,821 Provision / (reversal of provision) against
Advances 9 3,593,084 2,837,523 non-performing advances - net 9.3.1 26,427 (1,019,869)
Operating fixed assets 10 80,458 87,697 Reversal of provision against lendings to financial institutions 7.3 (2,504) -
Deferred tax asset - net " 85,330 26,419 Provision / (reversal of provision) for diminution / impairment
Other assets 12 1,591,796 1,716,856 in the value of investments - net 8.14 25,190 (141,632)
19,162,930 18,895,441 Bad debts written-off directly - -
49,113 (1,161,501)
L]_AB"'ITIES Net mark-up / interest income after provisions 215,508 1,474,744
Bills payable - -
Borrowings 13 14,367,132 13,391,904 NON MARK-UP / INTEREST INCOME
Deposits and other accounts 14 39,000 463,117 Fee, commission and brokerage income 19,733 12,461
Sub-ordinated loans - - Dividend income 39,294 44 579
Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease - 2 Income from dealing in foreign currencies - S
Deferred tax liabilities - - Gain on sale of securities - net 23 249,916 55,330
Other liabilities 15 201,883 279,005 Unrealised loss on revaluation of investments
14,608,015 14,134,026 classified as 'held-for-trading' (968) 2
NET ASSETS 4,554,915 4,761,415 Other income 24 10,240 6,127
Total non mark-up / interest income 318,216 118,497
NEPCR LY 533,724 1,593,241
Reserves 1 311,650 302,094 Administrative expenses 25 404,292 409,009
Accumulated loss ( ';‘1‘2-:::) ‘l-;g‘;-:;g} Other (reversals) / provisions / write offs 26 15,537 118,298
4712, +669, Other charges 27 29,771 34,025
(Deficit) / surplus on revaluation of assets - net of tax 18 (157,735) 92,251 AR TNON TR S 1 VR X paEet Se9000 A ke
84,124 1,031,819
4,554,915 4,761,415 . )
Extraordinary / unusual items - -
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 19 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 84,124 1,031,819
Taxation
The annexed notes 1 to 42 and Annexures | & Il form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial - current 65,329 64,089
staternents. - prior years (30,021) =
- deferred 1,036 176,560
28 36,344 240,649
PROFIT AFTER TAXATION 47,781 791,170
........ IRupees} R ——
Earnings per share - basic and diluted 29 78 1,288
Muhammad Masood Ebrahim Abid Aziz 5 : "
The annexed notes 1 to 42 and Annexures | & |l form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.
Chief Financial Officer Managing Director & CEO dalioii s & e o S e n
Muhammad Masood Ebrahim Abid Aziz
Abid Aziz Khaled Joma Ezarzor Chief Financial Officer Managing Director & CEO
Director Director Abid Aziz Khaled Joma Ezarzor
Director Director
€ PakLibya Annual Report 2017 €Z)




UNCONSOLIDAT

D STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

UNCONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT <

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 PakLibya
2017 2016 2017 2016
~---— (Rupees in '000) ------- Note === (Rupees in '000) ----—-
: CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit after taxation 47,781 791,170 Profit befars taxation 84,124 1,031,819
oL, Less: Dividend income (39,294) (44,579)
Other comprehensive income - net 44,830 987 240
Adjustments:
Iltems not to be reclassified in profit and loss account Depreciation 10.2 30,360 24 971
in subsequent periods Amortisation 104 1,146 77
Provision / (Reversal of provision) against
Actuarial (loss) / gain on defined benefit plan (4,294) 4,045 non-performing loans and advances - net 9.3.1 26,427 (1,019,869)
Unrealised loss on revaluation of investments
ST classified as 'held-for trading' 968 -
TN SARPRRIRYIS NI T e 1w 43,487 e = Reversal of provision against lendings to financial institutions (2,504) :
Reversal of provision against other assets 12.3 15,537 (233,804)
Provision / (reversal) of provision for diminution
Components of comprehensive income in the value of investments - net 8.14 25,190 (141,632)
not reflected in equity Gain on sale of operating fixed assets 24 (15) (1,944)
97,108 (1,371,561)
(Deficit) / surplus on revaluation of ‘available- 141,939 (384,321)
for-sale securities' - net of tax* (249,986) 71,457 (Increase) / decrease in operating assets
Lendings to financial institutions (200,000) 70,000
Investments classified as "held-for-trading’ (4,986,243) 1,103,418
Total comprehensive (loss) / income (206,499) 866,672 ey (781,949) 1420757
Other assets (excluding advance taxation) 157,786 (949,184)
*Surplus / (deficit) arising on revaluation of 'Available-for-sale securities' - net of tax has been shown in the (5,810,406) 1,644,991
Stata‘mﬁni Qf Comprﬁhaﬂ'&ive |I"!GOPTIB II"I Ol'der io mmply With l’J"IB rBUIS&d “P‘mdenﬁﬂl Rﬂguiati()ﬂs fOI’ ]“craass_.' (dgcreaag] |n ngratlng “ab"ltlgs
Corporate / Commercial Banking" issued by the State Bank of Pakistan vide BPRD Circular No. 06 of 2014 on Borrowings 975,228 3.950.805
26 June 2014. Deposits and other accounts (424,117) (1,274,272)
Other liabilities (81,417) 82,002
469,694 2,758,535
; 5 ’ (5,198,774) 4,019,205
The annexed notes 1 to 42 and Annexures | & Il form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial income tax paid (81,382) (162,010)
statements. Net cash (used in) / generated from operating activities (5,280,156) 3,857,195
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Investments in 'available-for-sale' securities - net 8,590,735 (3,161,139)
Investments in 'held-to-maturity’ securities - net (457,204) -
Dividend received 39,569 42,354
Investments in operating fixed assets - net (24,262) (43,478)
Muhammad Masood Ebrahim Abid Aziz Proceeds on sale of operating fixed assets 15 2,000
Chief Financlal Officer Managing Director & CEO Met cash generated from / (used in) investing activities 8,148,853 (3,160,263)
Increase in cash and cash equivalents 2,868,697 696,932
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 793,125 96,193
Khaled Joma Ezarzor Cash and cash eguivalents at end of the year 30 3,661,822 793.125
Director
The annexed notes 1 to 42 and Annexures | & Il form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.
Muhammad Masood Ebrahim Abid Aziz
Chiet Financial Officer Managing Director & CEQ
Abid Aziz Khaled Joma Ezarzor
@ PakLibya Director Director




UNCONSOLIDATE

Balance as at 01 January 2016

Total comprehensive income
for the year

Profit after taxation for the year
ended 31 December 2016

Other comprehensive income

Transfer to statutory reserve
Balance as at 31 December 2016
Total comprehensive
income for the year
Profit after taxation for the year
ended 31 December 2017

Other comprehensive income

Transfer to statutory reserve

Balance as at 31 December 2017

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

Reserves
Issued, Capital reserve Revenue reserve
subscribed Total
and paid-up Statutory reserve  Accumulated Total
capital (refer note 17) loss Reserve
(Rupees in "000)
6,141,780 143,860 (2,411,691) (2,267,831) 3,873,949
- - 791,170 791,170 791,170
4 = 4,045 4,045 4,045
- - 795,215 795,215 795,215
E 158,234 (158,234) - -
6,141,780 302,094 (1,774,710) (1,472616) 4,669,164
- - 47,781 47,781 47,781
- - (4.294) (4,294) (4,294)
- - 43,487 43,487 43,487
- 9,556 (9,556) - -
6,141,780 311,650 (1,740,780) (1,429,130) 4,712,650

The annexed notes 1 to 42 and Annexures | & Il form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

Muhammad Masood Ebrahim

Chief Financial Officer

Abid Aziz
Director

€D PakLibya

Abid Aziz

Managing Director & CEO

Khaled Joma Ezarzor

Director

UNCONSOLIDATED NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

1. STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

1.1 Pak-Libya Holding Company (Private) Limited {the Company) was incorporated in Pakistan as a private limited company on
14 October 1978, Itis a joint venture between the Government of Pakistan and Government of Libya (State of Libya). The
tenure of the Company was thity years from the date of its establishment. The two contracting parties (i.e. both the
governmenls through their representatives) extended the lenure for further thirty years upto 14 October 2038. The
ohjectives of the Company interalia include the promotion of economic growth of Pakistan through industrial development,
to underlake other feasible business and lo establish and acquire companies o conduct various businesses as may be
decided from time to time. The Company is designated as a Development Financial Institution (DF1) under the BPD Circular
No. 35 dated 28 October 2003 issued by the State Bank of Pakistan (SBP).

The registered office of the Company is located at 5th Floor, Block G, Finance and Trade Centre, Shahrah-e-Faisal,
Karachi, Pakistan. The Company has one sales and service center located at Lahore. Effective 05 August 2012, activities of
Islamabad office have been suspended for the time being after review of the business strategy.

1.2 The State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) through its BSD Circular No. 19 dated 05 September 2008 has prescribed that the
minimum paid-up capital (free of losses) for Development Financial Institutions (DF1s) is required to be maintained at Rs. 6
billion. The paid-up capital of the Company (free of losses) as of 31 December 2017 amounted to Rs. 4.401 billion {31
December 2016: Rs. 4.367 billion).

The Board of Direciors (BOD) of the Company in its meeting held on 08 December 2012 and 10 December 2012,
recommended the shareholders for increase in paid-up capital by Rs. 4 billlon in the year 2013. The increase in capital is
aimed to comply with minimum capital requirement (MCR) for risk absomtion and future growth and business prospecis of
the Company.

Further, the Chairman of the Campany (Libyan Nominee) in the Board meeting held on 26 April 2014 Informed that BOD of
Libyan Fereign Investment Company (LAFICO) has given approval for the capital injection of Rs. 2 billion with a condition of
simultaneous injection of additional capital by Government of Pakistan (GOP).

In this regard, SBP has been reviewing the progress and performance of the Company and the Company has been
following up the matter of additional capital injection with the Ministry of Finance (MOF). Considering the performance of the
Company, both shareholders in the Annual General Meeting (AGM) held on 15 April 2016 revisited the required additional
capital and agreed to reduce the capital injection from Rs. 4 billion to Rs. 2 billion (Rs.1 billion by each shareholder).

The SBP vide its letter no. BPRD/BA&CP/657/134/2017 dated 03 January 2017 had granted further extension in the
exemption for meeting the minimum paid-up capital (free of losses) requirement till 30 June 2017 and had advised the
Company to pursue the matter of capital injection with Finance Division and provide specific timeline for equity injection by
the GOP in the Company by 31 March 2017. The management of the Company proposed shareholders to inject the
additional capital in tranches, for which the timeline has not been decided yel. However, GOP's firm commitment fo inject
additional capital in the Company has not been received il date. Further, the Company has applied to SBP for further
exlension in refation to regulatory minimum capital requirement. In this regard during the year, the Company has submitted
a 3 year plan to SBP to demonstrate its ability to meet the MCR through organic growth, as advised by the SBP.
Subsequently, MOF vide its letter no. F.2(1) Inv-1\/2014 dated 16 January 2018 has stated that in the last quarter of current
Financial Year, after a review of fiscal space, injection of equity would be given due consideration. Consequently, SEP vide
its letter No. BPRD/BA&CP/657/5114/2018 dated 07 March 2018 granted relaxation in MCR fill 30 June 2018.

Subsidiary Company

1.3 Kamoke Powergen (Private} Limited (the Company) (KPL) was incorporated in Pakistan as a private limited company on 07
February 2017. The Company is wholly owned subsidiary of Pak Libya Holding Company (Private) Limited. The Company
has been established as a Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV) and applied for the power generation license from NEPRA to
increase the salability of assets of Kamoki Energy Limited (KEL). Approval from State Bank of Pakistan (SBF) was obtained
for the formation of KPL which was granted vide letter No. BPRD/RPD/27366/16 dated 16 November 2016. The registered
office of the Company is located at 5th Floor, Block C, Finance and Trade Centre, Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi, Pakistan.
Refer note 8.5.3.

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

These unconsclidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the approved accounting standards as
applicable in Pakistan, requirements of the Companies Ordinance, 1984 (repealed - note 2.1), the Banking Companies
Ordinance 1962 and the directives issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) and the SBP. The
approved accounting standards comprise of International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and interpretations issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (IASB). Wherever the requirements of the Ordinance (repealed - note 2.1), the
Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 or the directives issued by SECP and SBP differ with the requirements of these standards,
the requirements of the Ordinance or the said directives prevail.
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2.1 The Companies Ordinance, 1984 has been repealed after the enactment of the Companies Act, 2017 (the Act)
on 30 May 2017. However, SECP vide its circular No. 23 dated 04 October 2017 allowed companies whose
financial year closes on or before 31 December 2017 to prepare the financial statements in accordance with
the provisions of the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984. The Act does not impact the financial statements
of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2017.

The SBP through its BSD circular No. 11 dated 11 September 2002 has deferred the implementation of |IAS 39
‘Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement', and |AS 40 ‘Investment Property’ for Non-Bank Financial
Institutions (NBFIs) in Pakistan. The SECP has deferred applicability of IFRS-7 "Financial Instruments: Disclosures”
on banks through S.R.O 411(1)/2008 dated 28 April 2008. Accordingly, the requirements of these |ASs have not
been considered in the preparation of these uncensolidated financial statements. However, investments have been
classified and valued in accordance with the requirements of various circulars issued by the SBP.

. BASIS OF MEASUREMENT

These uncensolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except that
certain investments have been stated at revalued amounts in accordance with the directives of the SBP.

These unconsolidated financial statements represents the separate financial statements of the Company in which
investment in subsidiary is stated at cost. The consclidated financial statements of the Company and its subsidiary
are presented separately.

. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies and the methods of computation adopted in the preparation of these unconsolidated
financial statements are the same as those applied in the preparation of the annual audited financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2016 other than those disclosed in note 4.1 below:

4.1 New Standards, Interpretations and Amendments

The Company has adopted the following accounting standards and the amendments and interpretation of
IFRSs which became effective for the current year:

Standard or Interpretation Effective Date
(Annual periods beginning
on or after)
IAS 7 - Disclosure Initiative (Amendments to IAS 7) 01 January 2017

IAS 12 - Recognition of Deferred Tax
{Amendments to IAS 12) 01 January 2017

IFRS 12 - Annual Improvements to IFRS 2014-2016 01 January 2017

Adoption of the above revisions, amendments and interpretations of the standards have no significant effect
on the amounts for the year ended 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2017,

Standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations that are effective but not relevant

The other new standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations that are mandatory for the
financial year beginning on 01 January 2017 are considered not to be relevant or to have any significant effect
on the Company’s financial reporting and operations and are therefore not presented here,

4.2 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and balances with treasury banks, balances with other banks and
placements with financial institutions having maturities of three (3) months or less.

€D PakLibya

4.3 Revenue recognition
Dividend income is recognised when the Company's right to receive payment is established.
Gain on sale of securities is recognised at the time of sale of relevant securities.
Project evaluation, arrangement and front end fee are accounted for on receipt basis.

Income from loans, term finance certificates, sukuks, debentures, bank deposits, government securities and
reverse repo transactions are recognised on accrual basis using the effective interest method except where
recovery is considered doubtful in which case the income is recognised on receipt basis.

Premium or discount on debt securities is amortised using the effective interest method and taken to
unconsolidated profit and loss account.

The Company follows the finance method in recognising income on lease contracts. Under this method the
unearned income l.e. the excess of aggregate lease rentals and the estimated residual value over the cost of
the leased asset is deferred and then amortised over the term of the lease, so as to produce a constant rate of
return on net investment in the lease.

4.4 Advances including net investment in finance leases
Advances are stated as net of provisions for bad and doubtful debis, if any, which are charged to the

unconsolidated profit and loss account currently. Advances are written off where there is no realistic prospect
of recovery.

The Company determines the provisions against advances on a prudent basis keeping in view the stipulations
of the prudential regulations issued by the SBP. The provision is charged to unconsolidated profit and loss
account.
Leases

When substantially all risks and rewards related to ownership of the assets are transferred to the lessee, such
leases are classified as finance lease.

A receivable is recognised at an amount equal to the present value of the lease payment. The difference

between gross receivable and the present value of the receivable is recognised as unearned finance income.

Provisions

Specific

Specific provision against funded loans is determined in accordance with the requirements of the Prudential
Regulations and other directives issued by SBP and charged to the unconsolidated profit and loss account.

General provision

General provision is maintained on consumer financing portfolio in accordance with the requirements of
Prudential Regulations for Consumer Financing issued by SBP and charged to the unconsolidated profit and
loss account.

4.5 Investments

Investments other than those categorised as held-for-trading are initially recognised at fair value which
includes transaction costs associated with the investments. Investments classified as held-for-trading are
initially recognised at fair value, and transaction costs are expensed in the unconsolidated profit and loss
account,
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The Company has classified its investments, except for strategic investment in joint venture, into ‘held-for-
trading’, ‘held-to-maturity’ and ‘available-for-sale’ portfolios as follows:

Held-for-trading

These are securities which are acquired with the intention to trade by taking advantage of short-term market /
interest rate movements and are to be sold within 90 days. These are carried at market value, with the related
gain / (loss) on revaluation being taken to unconsolidated profit and loss account.

Intra day trading

The cost of acquisition of ‘dealing securities’ (i.e. listed securities purchased and sold en the same day) is not
considered for calculating the ‘'moving average cost’ of other listed securities (i.e. listed securities sold after the
date of purchase).

Held-to-maturity

These are securities with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity that are held with the intention
and ability to hold to maturity. These are carried at amortised cost.

Available-for-sale

These are investments that do not fall under the held-for-trading or held to maturity categories. Investments
are initially recognised at cost being its fair value which includes transaction costs associated with the
investment. These are carried at market value except for unlisted securities where market value is not
available, which are carried at lower of cost and break-up value, if any. Surplus / (deficit) on revaluation is
taken to 'surplus / (deficit) on revaluation of assets’ account shown below equity. Provision for diminution in
value of investments in respect of unlisted shares is calculated with reference to book value of the same. On
derecognition of quoted available-for-sale investmenis, the cumulative gain or loss previously reported as
'surplus / (deficit) on revaluation of investments' below equity is included in the unconsolidated profit and loss
account for the period.

The Company amortises the premium / discount on acquisition of government securities using the effective
yield method.

Provision for diminution in value of investments for unlisted debt securities is calculated as per the SBP's
Prudential Regulations.

The Company follows the ‘Settlement date’ accounting for investments.

Gains and losses arising on sale of investments are recognised in the unconsolidated profit and loss account.

Investment in subsidiary

Investment in subsidiary are valued at cost less impairment, if any. Gains and losses on disposal of
investments is recognised in the unconsolidated profit and loss account.

Operating fixed assets
4.6.1 Owned
Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, if any.

Capital work in progress is stated at cost, and these are transferred to specific assets as and when
assets are available for use.

Residual values and useful lives are reviewed at each balance sheet date, and adjusted if impact on
depreciation is considered significant.

Depreciation is charged to the unconsolidated profit and loss account applying the straight-line method
whereby the cost of an asset is written off over its estimated service life.

€D PakLibya
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Depreciation on additions in the first half of the month and disposals in the second half of the month is
charged for the whole month whereas no depreciation is charged on additions during the second half of
the month and disposals in the first half of the month.

Maintenance and normal repairs are charged to unconsolidated profit and loss account as and when
incurred.

Assets are derecognised when no future economic benefit is expected from its use or disposal. Profit or
loss on sale or retirement of fixed assets is included in the unconsolidated profit and loss account,

4.6.2 Leased

Assets held under finance leases are accounted for by recording the assets and related liabilities at the
amounts determined on the basis of lower of fair value of assets and the present value of minimum
lease payments. Finance charge is allocated to accounting periods in a manner as to provide a constant
rate on the outstanding liability. Depreciation is charged on leased assets on a basis similar to that of
owned assels.

4.6.3 Intangible assets
Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses, if any.

Intangible assets having a finite life are amortised using the straight line method over their estimated
useful lives after taking into account the residual value, if any.

Ameortisation on additions and deletions of intangible assets during the year is charged in proportion to
the period of use.

Amortisation on additions in the first half of the month and disposals in the second half of the month is
charged for the whole month whereas no amortisation is charged on additions during the second half of
the month and disposals in the first half of the month.

Taxation
Current

The charge for current taxation is based on taxable income at the current rates of taxation after taking into
account the tax credits and tax rebates available, if any.

Deferred

The Company accounts for deferred taxation using the balance sheet liability method on temporary differences
arising between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements.
The amount of deferred tax provided is based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the
carrying amount of assets and liabilities using the applicable tax rates. A deferred tax asset is recognised only
to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available and the credits will be utilised.
Deferred tax assets are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be
realised.

Staff retirement benefits
Defined benefit plan
- Gratuity Fund
The Company operates a funded gratuity scheme for all its permanent employees in accordance with the
human resource policy of the Company and terms of employment for managing director and deputy

managing director. Centributions towards defined benefit schemes are made on the basis of actuarial
advice using the Projected Unit Credit Method.
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Actuarial gains or losses are recognised in accordance with the requirements of I1AS-19 (Revised).

The last actuarial valuation of the scheme was carried out as at 31 December 2017. The benefit under the
gratuity scheme is payable on retirement at the age of 60 or earlier cessation of service, in lump sum.

- Benevolent Fund

The Company operates a benevolent fund scheme for its employees where equal fixed contributions are
being made by employees and the Company. Employees or their legal heirs are entitied to certain pre-
defined benefits on happening of specified events including retirement, incapacitation, marriage and death
etc. as per their entitement. Contributions paid by Company to the fund are included in expenses for the
period.

Defined contribution plan

The Company also operates a recognised provident fund scheme for its permanent employees. Equal monthly
contributions are made, both by the Company and the employees, to the fund at a rate of 3.5 and 4 (2016: 3.5
and 4) percent respectively and 10 percent of salary for the managing director and deputy managing director,
as applicable. The Company has no further payment obligation once the contributions have been paid. The
contributions are recognised as an expense when they are due. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an
asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction of the future payments is available.

Compensated absences

The liability in respect of compensated absences of employees is accounted for in the period in which it is
earned in terms of salary earned upto the statement of financial position date.

The Company recognises provision for compensated absences on the basis of actuarial valuation under
Projected Unit Credit Method. The last actuarial valuation was carried out as at 31 December 2017.

Securities under repurchase / resale agreements

Securities sold with a simultaneous commitment to repurchase at a specified future date (repos) continue to
be recognised in the statement of financial position and are measured in accordance with accounting policies
for investment securities. The counterparty liability for amounts received under these agreemenits is included in
borrowings. The difference between sale and repurchase price is treated as mark-up / return / interest
expense and accrued over the life of the repo agreement using effective yield mathod.

Securities purchased with a corresponding commitment to resell at a specified future date (reverse repos) are
not recognised in the statement of financial position, as the Company does not cobtain control over the
securities. Amounts paid under these agreements are included in lendings. The difference between purchase
and resale price is treated as mark-up / return / interest income and accrued over the life of the reverse repo
agreement using effective yield method.

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the unconsolidated financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the Company operates. These unconsolidated financial statements are
presented in Pakistani Rupee, which is the Company's functional and presentation currency.

Foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are recorded at the rates prevailing on the date of transaction.
Meonetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated into Pakistani Rupee at the rates of
exchange prevailing on the balance sheet date. Exchange gains and losses are included in the unconsolidated
profit and loss account. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost denominated in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction.
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Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past

events, and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of obligation.

Provision against identified non-funded losses is recognised when intimated and reasonable certainty exists for
the Company to settle the obligation. The provision is charged to the unconsolidated profit and loss account
net of expected recovery and the provision is classified under other liabilities.

Provisions are reviewed at each statement of financial position date and are adjusted to reflect the current
best estimate.

Off-setting of financial assets and financial liabilities

A financial asset and a financial liability is set off and the net amount reported in the statement of financial
position if the Company has a legal right to set off the transaction and also intends either to settle on a net
basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Dividend and reserves

Dividend declared and appropriations, except for transfer of statutory reserve, made subsequent to the
balance sheet date are recognised as liability and recorded as changes in reserves respectively in the period
in which these are approved by the directors / shareholders as appropriate.

Critical accounting estimates and judgments

The preparation of these unconsolidated financial statements in conformity with approved accounting
standards requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its
judgment in the process of applying the Company's accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of

judgment or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements
are as follows:

a) Provision for bad and doubtful advances including net investment in lease (note 4.4)

b) Classification and provisioning of investments (note 4.5)

¢} Depreciation of property and equipment and amortisation of intangible assets (note 4.6)
d) Assumptions and estimation in recognition of deferred taxation (note 4.7)

e) Accounting for defined benefit plan and compensated absences (note 4.8)

f) Impairment (note 4.20)

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectation of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Segment reporting

An operating segment is a component of the Company that engages in business activities from which it may
earn revenues and incur expenses; whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the entity's chief
operating decision maker to make decisions about rescurces to be allocated to the segment and assess its
performance and for which discrete financial information is available.

The Company's primary format of reporting is based on its business segments for which individual business
strategies are formulated based on Company's overall business strategy and implementation plan.
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4.19

4.20

4.21

Business segments
Following are the main segments of the Company:

Corporate & Includes loans, advances, lease financing, advisory services, mergers and
Investment Banking acguisitions and other such corporate and investment banking transactions.

Treasury Undertakes Company's fund management activiies through leveraging and
investing in liquid assets such as shorl term placements, government securities
and reverse repo activities. |t carries out spread based activities in the interbank
market and manages the interest rate risk exposure of the Company.

Capital Market Undertakes trading and investment primarily in listed securities with an aim to earn
trading gains from market fluctuation and to hold securities for dividend income and
price appreciation in the form of capital gain.

SME & Retail Banking Undertakes SME and Retail Finance activities via bills discounting, business loans
against morigaged property, auto-lease financing and consumer financing.

Geographical segments

The geographical spread of Company’s operations is limited to Pakistan only.

Borrowing cost

Borrowings are recorded at the proceeds received.

Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which these are incurred except where such

costs are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or preduction of qualifying asset in which case
such costs are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset.

Earnings per share

The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) for its shareholders. Basic EPS is
calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the
profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares, if any.

Deposits and their cost
Deposits are recorded at the fair value of proceeds received.

Deposit costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which these are incurred using effective mark-up /
interest rate method.

Impairment

The carrying amounts of the Company's assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine whether
there Is any indication of impairment. If such indication exists the assets’ recoverable amount is estimated. An
impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses are recognised in unconsolidated profit and loss account.

Standards, amendments and interpretations to the published standards that are relevant but not yet
effective and not early adopted by the Company

The following new standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations would be effective from
the dates mentioned below against the respective standard or interpretation.

@ ParLivya

Effective date (annual periods

Standard or interpretation beginning on or after)

IFRS 10 and IAS 28 - Sale or Contribution of Assets between an

Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture {Amendments to IFRS 10 Postponed
and IAS 28)

IFRS 2 - Classification and Measurement of Share-based Payment

Transaction (Amendements to IFRS 2) 01 January 2018
IFRS 1 and IAS 28 - Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2014-2016 01 January 2018
IFRIC 22 - Foreign Currency 01 January 2018
IAS 40 - Transfers of Investment 01 January 2018
IFRS 15 - Revenue from Contracts with Customers 01 July 2018
IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments 01 July 2018
IFRIC 23 - Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments 01 January 2019
IAS 28 - Long-term Interests in Associates and Jaoint Ventures 01 January 2019
(Amendments to IAS 28)

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2015 01 January 2019
IFRS 9 - Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation 01 January 2019

(Amendments to IFRS 9)

The above standards and amendments are not expected to have any material impact on the Company's
financial statements in the period of initial application.

Further, following new standards have been issued by IASB which are yet to be notified by the SECP for the
purpose of applicability in Pakistan.

IASB Effective date (annual

Standard periods beginning on or after)
IFRS 14 — Regulatory Deferral Accounts 01 January 2016
IFRS 17 - Insurance Contracts 01 January 2021
IFRS 16 — Leases 01 January 2019
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2017 2016 2017 2016

Note ====e= (Rupees in '000) =====x

5. CASH AND BALANCES WITH TREASURY BANKS Heldbythe  Given as Held by the Given as
Company collateral Total Company collateral Total
) Note (Rupees in "000)
Cash in hand 8. INVESTMENTS
Local currency 30 6
Foreign currency - 70 8.1 Invesiments by types
Balances with State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) M s
Local currency current account 5.1 27,749 19,572 N TP o
Balances with National Bank of Pakistan Market treasury bills 8.3.1 862,620 4,123,623 4,986,243 : : :
Local currency current account 549 772 : . *
28,328 20,420

Available-for-sale securities
5.1 This includes a balance required to be maintained with the SBP by the Company in accordance with the

SBP's regulations for cash reserve requirements MM il Fssth - : z 2181 T gl
: Pakistan investment bonds 8.3.2 946 1,628,558 1,629,504 775565 9,816,417 10,591,982
Listed ordinary shares 8.4 1,247,542 & 1,247,542 921,364 2 921,364
Unlisted ordinary shares 8.5 52,801 - 52,801 93,341 - 93,341
6. BALANCES WITH OTHER BANKS Listed preference shares 8.6 - - - 25,000 - 25,000
Unlisted preference shares 8.7 300,000 @ 300,000 300,000 ! 300,000
— Listed term finance certificates 88 444,531 3 444531 455841 > 455,641
n Pakistan Unlisted term finance certificates 89 1,421,992 p 1,421,992 1,012,429 ; 1,012,429
Current accounts 30,297 9,316 Unlisted sukuks 8.10 253,859 ] 253,859 247,046 : 247,046
Deposit accounts 6.1 53,197 63,389 Investment in Subsidiary -
83,494 72,705 Kamoke Powergen (Pvt) Limited 853
(KPL) 5,000 - 5,000 . - -

3,726,671 1,628,558 5,355,220 4,129,547 9816417  13,945964
6.1 The return on these balances ranges from 3.75 to 4.00 (2016: 3.75 to 4.50) percent per annum.

Held-to-maturity securities

7. LENDINGS TO FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS Commercial paper 8.1 457,204 - 457,204 - . =
Unlisted participation term
74 Inlocal certificates (PTCs) 8.12 6,366 - 6,366 6,366 - 6,366
.1 Inlocal currency 463,570 - 463,570 6,366 - 6,366
Placements 33,064 35,568 Strategic investment in
Repurchase agreement lendings (reverse repo) - - joint venture - Kamoki
Term deposit receipts 7.2 4,000,000 950,000 Energy Limited
Less: Provision against placements 7.3 (33,064) (35,568) 3 i
74 4,000,000 950,000 Unlisted ordinary shares - net 8.13 404,867 404,867 404 867 404,867
Investment at cost 5,457,728 5,752,181 11,209,909 4,540,780 9,816,417 14,357,197
7.2 Term deposit receipts carry mark-up at rates ranging from 6.55 to 8.00 (2016: 7.1 to 7.5) percent per
annum. These are due to mature between 05 January 2018 and 05 September 2018. Less: Provision for diminution
in the value of
7.3 Provision against lendings investments 8.14 (1,321,926) - {1,321,926) 1,296,736 - 1,296,736
Investments (net of provisions) 4,135,802 5,752,181 9,887,983 3244044 9B16417 13,060,461
Opening balance 35,568 35,568
Ch forih Unrealised loss on revaluation
arge for the year - - of ‘held-for-trading’ securities (168) (800) (968) : . =
Less: Reversal during the year (2,504) - {Deficit) / surplus on revaluation of
Net reversal for the year {(2,504) - ‘available-for-sale’ securities (182,008) {4,567) (186,575) 30,809 92,551 123,360
Closing balance 33,064 35,568
Total investments 3,053,626 5,746,814 9,700,440 3,274,853 9,908,968 13,183,821

7.4 Particulars of lendings

In local currency 4,000,000 950,000
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8.2 Investments by segments

Federal government securities

Market treasury bills
Pakistan investment bonds

Fully paid-up ordinary shares
Listed
Unlisted
Unlisted - Investment in subsidiary (KPL)

Fully paid-up preference shares

Listed
Unlisted

Term finance certificates

Listed
Unlisted

Other investments

Sukuk - unlisted
Commercial paper - unlisted

Participation term certificates

Strategic investment in joint venture -
Kamoki Energy Limited

Unlisted ordinary shares - net

Total investment at cost

Less: Provision for diminution in value of investments

Investments (net of provisions)

Unrealised loss on revaluation of 'held-for-trading' securities
(Deficit) / Surplus on revaluation of 'available-for-sale’ securities

Total investments

€D ParLivya

Note

8.3.1
8.3.2

8.4
8.5
853

8.6
8.7

8.8
8.9

8.10
8.1

8.12

8.13.2

8.14

2017

2016

---- (Rupees in "000) ----

4,986,243 299,161
1,629,504 10,591,982
1,247,542 921,364

52,801 93,341
5,000 g
- 25,000
300,000 300,000
444,531 455 641
1,421,992 1,012,429
253,859 247,046
457,204 .
6,366 6,366
404,867 404,867

11,209,909 14,357,197

(1,321,926)  (1,296,736)
9,887,983 13,060,461

(968) 5
(186,575) 123,360
9,700,440 13,183,821

8.3

8.4

Available-for-sale securities

8.3.1 Market Treasury Bills

The purchase yield on the markel treasury bills Is 5.98 (2016; 5.83) percent per annum maturing by January 2018 (2016;
January 2017). These are held by the SBP and are sligible for rediscounting.

8.3.2 Pakistan Investment Bonds

These Pakistan investment bonds carry interest rale of 9.25 (2016: 7.75 to 11,50) percent per annum maturing by March 2020
(2016: July 2017 and Apnl 2021). These are held by the SBP and are aligible for rediscounting,

Particuiars of investment held in ordinary shares of listed companies - available-for-sale

Mame of investee

Commercial banks
Habib Bank Limited
National Bank of Pakistan
MCB Bank Limited
Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited

Financlal services
Invest Capital Investment Bank Limited
Pakistan Stock Exchange (PSX)

Chemicals
Agritech Limited
Ittehad Chemicals Limited

Pharmaceuticals
GlaxoSmithkline Pakistan Limited

Fertilizers
Fauji Fertilizer Company Limited
Engro Corporation Limited
Engro Fartilizars Limitad
Fauji Fertilizer Bin Qasim Limited

Non life insurance
Pakistan Reinsurance Company Limited
Adamjea Insurance Company Limited
IGI Insurance Limited
Atlas Insurance Limited

Food and parsonal care products
Al Shaheer Corporation Limited

Textile and composite
Gul Ahmed Textile Mills Limited

Cable and electrical goods
TPL Trakker Limited

Technology and communication
TRG Pakistan Limitad

Power Generation & Distribution
Lalpir Power Limited
Pakgen Power Limited

Engineering
Aisha Steel Mills Limited
International Steels Limited

Oil and gas
Hi-Tech Lubricants Limited

il & Gas Development Company Limited

Attock Refinery Limited

Note

842

Number of shares Cost
2017 2016 2017 2016

— (Rupees in "000) —
450,000 205,000 102,568 49,914
700,000 £00,000 44,544 44,375
375,000 279,300 85,659 61,802
100,000 - 3,397 -

B 2,600,000 . 10,000
1,602,953 - 16,060 -
8,384,283 8,384,283 266,675 266,675

989,076 375,000 39,332 15,533
150,000 = 35,189 =
1,150,000 1,000,000 141,197 128,047

325,000 250,000 104,161 83,384
450,000 300,000 29,419 20,029

- 350,000 - 19,903

1,425,000 1,697,500 63,885 57,549
700,000 - 38,728 -
130,000 90,400 48,286 22,480
237,000 150,000 19,5886 12,398
650,000 130,000 35,552 7,156
450,000 500,000 19,252 26,967

1,300,000 500,000 21,953 8,234
200,000 7.912
962,500 850,000 22,257 20,077
462,000 400,000 11,400 10,206

- 2,000,000 - 32,228

100,000 - 13,470 -
125,000 - 11,677 -
150,000 150,000 24141 23,406
125,000 - 41,242 -
1,247,542 921,364
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8.4.1

8.4.2

The nominal value of each share held in a listed company is Rs.10 per share as at 31 December 2017 and 31 December
20186.

Additional 1,008,787 ordinary shares of Agritech Limited (Agritech) at Rs, 35 per share were purchased al a total consideration
of Rs, 35.31 miilion, under a buy-back arangement, signed by the investors in year 2012, during first quarter of the financial year
2016. The SBP vide iis letter No. BPFRD/BPD (Policy)! 2016-14898 dated 14 June 2016 has granted refaxation to the investors
for recording impairment on this investment upto 30 June 2017 in phases. Pursuant to the requirement of this letter, impairment
equivalant to 100% of the required amount has bean recorded by the Company as at 30 June 2017,

8.5 Particulars of investment held in unlisted ordinary shares - available-for-sale

Based on
audited
Break-up financial

value per statements as Number of shares Cost
share at 2017 2018 2017 2018

Name of investee % (Rupees) — (Rupees in "000) —
Shareholding upto 10%
Agro Dalries Limited * . " 300,000 300,000 2,301 2,301
CEQ - Mr. Mukhtar Hussaln Rizvi
FTC Management Company Limited
CEQ - Mr. Kalim Sheikh 8.1 10,00 30 June 2017 50,000 50,000 500 500
Mew - VIS Credit Information

Services (Private) Limited
CEQ - Mr. Fahim Ahmad 5.68 {(0.38) 30 June 2015 - 39,000 - 380
Pakistan Textiie City Limited
CEO - Mr. Muhammad Hanif 4.00 338 30 June 2015 5,000,000 5,000,000 50,000 50,000
Pakistan Siock Exchange Limited

(Karachi Stock Exchange)
CEO - Mr. Nadeem Nagvi 0.50 10.02 30 June 2017 - 4,007,383 - 40,150

52,801 93,341

* Under litigation

8.5.1

852

8.5.3

The nominal value of each share held in an unlisted company is Rs.10 per share as at 31 December 2017 and 31 December
2016.

The Pakistan Siock Ewchange (PSX) divested 40% of the shares, that were allotted pursuant to Stock Exchanges
(Corporatisation, Demutualisation and integration) Act, 2012, to the Chinese Consortium at a price of Rs. 28 per share. These
shares were held by the Company in the blocked account; the divestment constituted 40% of the total Company's shareholding.
Thereafter, the remalning 20% shares in the blocked account were further divested through book building and retail offering.

During the year, the Company established a wholly owned subsidiary named Kamoke Powergen (Private) Limited with a pald-up
capital of Rs. 5,000,000 representing 500,000 shares of Rs. 10 each. The Company appointed an SVP grade executive (Mr.
Kashif Shabbir) as Chief Executive Officer (CEO) of KPL. KPL has been established as a Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV) to
obtain power generation license from NEPRA lo increase the salability of assels of KEL. SBF's approval was obtained for the
formation of KPL which was granted vide letter No. BPRD/RPD/27366/16 dated 16 November 2016.

8.6 Particulars of investment held in listed preference shares - available-for-sale

Number of shares Cost
2017 2016 2017 2016
Name of investies v (Rupees in "000) -~
Household goods
Pak-Elekiron Limited 5 2,500,000 = 25,000
- 25,000
8.7 Particulars of investment held in unlisted preference shares - available-for-sale
Number of shares Cost
2017 2016 2017 2016
Name of investee Note — (Rupees In '000) —
Electricity
Kamoki Energy Limited
(CEQ Dr. Umer Masood) 8.131 SQEDMIWD 30,000,000 300,000 300,000

under liquidation

€ ParLivya

a.8

8.9

8.10

These are cumulative, convertible, redeemable and non-participatory preference shares carmying dividend al the rate of 17% per annum
having face value of Rs.10 each. These are redeemable within four years of the allotment date. if preference shares are not fully
redeamed by the Issuer [n this ime period, the remaining part along with the unpaid dividend thereon will be convertible at the option of
preferance shareholder at par valus of Rs.10 into ordinary shares ranking pari passu in all respects with the ordinary shares except for
participation in dividend / bonus distribution for the periad for which preference share dividend has been paid.

The Company has made 100% provision against this investment based on the reasons as explained in note 8.13.

Particulars of investment in listed term finance certificates (TFCs) - avallable-for-sale

Name of Investee

Commercial banks
Summit Bank Limited

Financial services
Trust Investment Bank Limited
Jahangir Siddiqui & Company Limited

Personal goods ({textile)
Azgard Nine Limited

B.8.1 The face value of each larm finance certificate was Rs.5,000 as at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016.

Particulars of investrent held in unlisted TFCs - available-for-sale

Name of the chief

Not
. executive officer

Mame of investee

Azgard Nine Limited (4th issue) Mr. Ahmed H, Sheikh

Azgard Nine Limited (5th issus)
Dewan Faroogue Splnning
Milis Limited
Sillk Bank Limited
New Allied Electronics Industries
{Private) Limited
Pakistan International
Airlines Corporation Limited 891
Security Leasing Corporation
Limited (3rd issua)
U MicroFinance Bank Limited
Bank Al-Habib Limited
JOW Sugar Mills Limited
NRSP Micro Finance Bank Limited
JS Bank Limited - |
Jahangir Siddiqui & Company Limited

Mr. Ahmed H. Sheikh

Mr. Dewan Abdul
Bagi Farooqul

Mr. Azmat Tarin

Mr. Mian Pervaiz Akhtar
Dr. Musharraf Rasool

Mr. 8. Nauman Akhtar
Syad Umar Vigar
Mansoor All Khan

Mr. Jahangir Khan Tareen
Mr. Zahoor Hussain Khan
Mr. Khalid fmran

Mr. Suleman Lalani

Number of certificates Cost
2017 2016 2017 2016

= (Rupees in "000) -
79,955 78,955 398,394 308 255
5,000 5,000 9,371 8,371
10,000 10,000 23,750 35,000
8,000 B.000 13,015 13,015
444 531 455 641

Number of certificates Cost
2017 2016 2017 2016

— (Rupees in "000) —
56,000 56,000 179,652 179,652
16,080 16,080 80,400 BO,400
15,000 15.000 18,750 18,750

20,000 - 100,000 a
10,000 10,000 15,957 15,957
35,415 35,415 110,581 143,756
4,000 4,000 3,081 3,081

18,000 - 90,000 -

60,000 - 300,000 -

2 2 11,111 33,333
50,000 50,000 83,750 187 500
40,000 20,000 199,960 100,000
50,000 50,000 218,750 250,000

1,421,992 1,012,429

8.9.1 No provision has been made against the investment on the basis of exposure being guaranteed by the Government as stated In
Annexure V "Guidelines in the matter of classification and provizioning of assets” of Prudential Regulations R-8 of Corporate /

Commercial Banking.

SBP vide its leller no, BPRD/BPD{Policy)2015-7848 dated 04 April 2015 has allowed relaxation to the investors for their
restructured debt (Including this PPTFC issue} from the requirements of Prudential Regulation R-8 of Corporate / Commercial
Banking upto 31 December 2015, The investment has been restructured through a TFC Investor Agreement effective from 06

May 2015.

Particulars of investment held in unlisted sukuks - available-for-sale

Name of investee

Security Leasing Corporation
Limited (2nd issue)

AGP Limited

Pak Elektron Limited (2nd Issue)

Hascol Petroleum Limited

TPL Trakker Limited

Liberty Power Technology Limited

Mame of the chief
executive officer

Ms. Farrah Azeem
Mz, Nusrat Munshi
Mr. Murad Saigol
Mr. Saleem Butt
Mr. Al Jamesi

Mr. Azam Sakarani

Number of cartificates

2017

8,000

500
9,000
20,000

50
1,000,000

2016

8,000
9,000
20,000
50
1,000,000

Cost

2m7 2018

— (Rupeas in "000) —
12,323 12,323
45,000 5
13,574 23,883
85,000 100,000
50,000 50,000
47,962 60,840

253,859 247,048
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8.11 Particulars of investment held in unlisted commercial paper - held to maturity 31 December 2017 31 December 2016

y Book vaiue Book value Book value Book value
Name of the chief Number of certificates Caost i e
S nkkive Siticer 2017 2016 2017 2016 before Provision after before Provision after
{Rupees in '000) —-———- Nature of assets / provision held provision provision held provision
exposures Note (Rupees in '000) {Rupees in "000)
Crescent Steel & Allied Products Limited  Mr. Ahsan Saleem 2,000 - 191,322 -
Pak-Elektron Limited Mr. Murad Salgol 280 = 265,882 B Preference shares 8.13.1 300,000 {300,000) - 300,000 (300,000) -
457,204 : Ordinary shares 8.13.2 404,867 (404,867) - 404,867 (404 867) -
Total funded exposure 704,867 {704,867) - 704,867 (704,867) 5

8.12 Particulars of investment held in unlisted Participation Term Certificates (PTCs) - held-to-maturity

8.13.1 These are unlisted preference shares issued by KEL, the entire issue (100%) of these preference shares was

Number of certificates Cost subscribed by the Company during the year 2011. These have been fully provided due to the reasons stated above.
Name of the chief executive 2017 2016 2017 2016
Name of investea officer = (Rupees in "000) -~
8.13.2 This represents 50% shareholding in the ordinary shares (Rs.10 each) of KEL, which has been fully provided due to
Agro Dalries Limited Mr. Mukhlar Hussain Rizvi 12 12 1,925 1,925 the reasons stated above. The book value represents cost of investment amounting to Rs. 500 million less share of
Qureshi Vegetable Ghes Mils Limited Mr. Tariqg Mahmud Qureshi 36 96 4,441 4441 loss on interest in joint venture amounting to Rs. 95.133 million upto 30 June 2012. This investment is designated as
Sase 8,265 strategic investment under the Prudential Regulations for Corporate / Commercial Banking.

8.13 As at 31 December 2017, the Company has the following Investments / exposures In Kamoki Energy Limited (KEL) which was a joint 2017 2016
venture project between the Company and Tapal Family. KEL was established in 2009 to own, construcl, manage and operate a rental 8.14 Particulars of provision Note - {(Rupees in '000) -—
power generation plant, KEL could not commence its commercial cperations,

Opening balance 1,296,736 1,437,217
On 30 March 2012, a decision was announced by the Honorable Supreme Courl of Pakistan (SCP) on the Human Rights Case with 3 . - : -
respect to Rental Power Plants (RPPs) which was initiated by the Honorable SCP taking & suo moto action. In this decision, all Add: Ad]us“-nms du"ng the ypar 1151
contracts of RPPs were declared to be illegal and void ab initic and ordered to be rescinded. KEL had filed a review petition against the
decision of the Court which is pending adjudication. Charge for the year 45,402 22,085
Less: Reversal during the year - -
Keeping in view the above, the Beard of Directors in their meeting, held on 03 December 2012 and 10 December 2012, had deliberated Net charge / (reversal) for the year 45,402 22,085
upon different alternatives in detail with respect to the sxposure in KEL and thereafter decided to take exit from KEL. The Board advised
the management to explore options, to sell the project to a third party. Less: Reversal on disposal (20,212) {163,717)
Net provision / (reversal) 25,190 (141,632)
Consequent to filing of winding up petition, for KEL, by Ameejes Valajes & Sons (Private) Limited along with certain shareholders of Closing balance 8.14.9 1,321,926 1,296,736

KEL from Tapal Family, Honorable Sindh High Court (SHC) has ordered liquidation of KEL and appointed an Official Assignee.

As per the order of Honorable SHC, M/s. Joseph Lobo (Private) Limited was appointed to cary out fresh valuation of the KEL
Subsequently, the first and second auctions were hald on 23 Novembar 2014 and 0B April 2015 respectively under the jurisdiction of
Official Assignee, which, however, remained uneventful. Consequently, the Honorable SHC passed an order dated 28 April 2015 to el

8.14.1 Particulars of provision in respect of type and segment

off the assets of KEL to the extent of forced sale value of Rs. 1,134 milion against claim of the Company. Later, the SHC vide its letter
dated 27 May 2015 directed that the assets of KEL be handed over o the Company. Subsequent to the said order of SHC certain

Available-for-sale securities

claimants filed thelr claims, amounting to Rs. 117.371 (Rs. 116.423) million before official assignes, the final outcome of which s still Listed shares (ordinary and preference) 8.14.2 225,842 200,262
pending. Unlisted shares (ordinary and preference) 8.14.3 352,301 352,691
Listed / unlisted term finance certificates 8.14.4 320,227 320,227
Unlisted sukuks 8.14.5 12,323 12,323
Held-to-maturity securities
Unlisted participation term certificates 8.14.6 6,366 6,366
Strategic investment in joint venture -
Kamoki Energy Limited
Unlisted ordinary shares - net 8.14.7 404,867 404,867
1,321,926 1,296,736
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8.14.2

8.14.3

Particulars of provision against listed shares
{ordinary and preference shares)

Opening balance

Charge for the year

Less: Reversal for the year

Net charge for the year

Less: Reversal / adjustment of provision on sale of
available-for-sale ordinary and preference shares

Closing balance

Particulars of provision against unlisted shares
(ordinary and preference shares)

Opening balance

Charge for the year

Less: Reversal during the year

MNet charge for the year

Less: Reversal of provision on sale of
available-for-sale ordinary shares

Closing balance

8.14.4 Particulars of provision against listed / un-listed TFCs

8.14.5

8.14.6

8.14.7

Opening balance

Charge for the year

Less: Reversal during the year

Net charge for the year

Less: Reversal on settlement / disposal
Closing balance

Particulars of provision against unlisted sukuk

Opening balance

Charge for the year

Less: Reversal during the year
Net reversal for the year
Closing balance

Particulars of provision against unlisted PTCs

Opening balance

Charge for the year

Less: Reversal during the year
Met charge for the year
Closing balance

Particulars of provision against strategic investment
in joint venture - Kamoki Energy Limited -
unlisted ordinary shares - net

Opening balance

Charge for the year

Less: Reversal during the year
MNet charge for the year
Closing balance

@ PakLibya

2017

2016

—- (Rupees in '000) -

200,262 337,743
45,402 22,085
45,402 22,085
(19,822) (159,566)

225,842 200,262

352,691 352,691

(390) .
352,301 352,691
320,227 323,227

- (3,000)

320,227 320,227
12,323 12,323
12,323 12,323
6,366 6,366
6,366 6,366
404,867 404,867

404,867 404,867

8.15

8151

8.15.2

Quality of securities | entities
Held-for-trading securities

Government securities
Market treasury bills

Available-for-sale securities

Government securities
Pakistan investment bonds (PIBs)

Market treasury bills

Listed ordinary shares
Commercial banks

Hahib Bank Limited

MNational Bank of Pakistan

MCB Bank Limited

Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited

Financial services
Invest Capital Investment Bank Limited
Pakistan Stock Exchange (PSX)

Chemicals
Agritech Limited
Ittehad Chemicals Limited

Pharmaceuticals
Glaxosmithkilne Pakistan Limited

Fertilizers
Fauji Fertilizer Company Limited
Engro Corporation Limited
Engro Fertilizers Limited
Fauji Fertilizer Bin Qasim Limited

Food and personal care products
Al Shaheer Corporation Limited

Textile and Composite
Gul Ahmed Textile Mills Limited

Mon-life insurance
Pakistan Reinsurance Company Limited
Adamjee Insurance Company Limited
1G! Insurance Company Limited
Atlas Insurance Limited

Cable and electrical goods
TPL Trakker Limited

Power generation and distribution
Lalpir Power Limited
Pakgen Power Limited

Technelogy and Communication
TRG Pakistan

Engineering
Aisha Steel Mills Limited
International Steel Limited

Qil and gas
Oil & Gas Development Company Limited
Attock Refinery Limited
Hi Tech Lubricants

2017 2016
Market value Ratings Market value Ratings
(Rupees in (Rupees in
"000) '000)
4,985,276 Unrated Unrated
1,624,935 Unrated 10,691,584 Unrated
- - 299,086 Unrated
1,624,835 10,980,670
75,191 AAA 56,018 ABA
33,992 AAA 44,934 AAA
79,620 AAR 66,423 A8
3,450 AA+ -

- . 5,746 Unrated
35,906 Unrated = =
40,831 Unrated 106,213 Unrated
25,796 Unrated 15,086 Unrated
25,182 Unrated - -
80,977 AA 104,270 Unrated
89,294 AA 79,023 Al
30,474 AA- 20,394 Ab-

- - 17,824 Unrated
14,443 Unrated T 462 Unrated
16,686 Unrated 25,585 Unrated
60,463 AA 66,440 Al
36,379 At - -
38,075 AA 27,832 AA
18,116 Unrated 12,705 Unrated

9,295 A- 8,815 A-
21,685 AA 20,570 AB
10,224 AA 10,708 A

5,920 Unrated -

- - 31,460 Unrated
10,637 At o -
24,419 AAA 24,803 ABR
29,265 AA = =

8,875 Unrated e -

835,195 752 608
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Unlisted ordinary shares
Agro Dairies Limited *
FTC Management Company Limited
Mew - VIS Credit Information
Services (Private) Limited *
Pakistan Textile City Limited *
Pakistan Stock Exchange
(Karachi Stock Exchange Limited)
Kamoke Powergen (Private) Limited

Li n

Household goods
Pak-Elekiron Limited

Unlisted preference shares
Electricity
Kamoki Energy Limited *

Li Term Fi Certifi

Commercial banks
Summit Bank Limited

Financial services
Invest Capital Invesiment Bank Limited **
Trust Investment Bank Limited*
Jahangir Siddiqui & Company Limited

Personal goods (textile)
Azgard Nine Limited - 3rd issue *

Unlisted Term Finance Cerlificates

Azgard Nine Limited (4th issue) *
Azgard Nine Limited (5th issue) *
Dewan Faroogue Spinning Mills Limited *
JDW Sugar Mills Limited
Jahangir Siddigui & Company Limited
Silk Bank Limited
U MicroFinance Bank Limited
Bank Al-Habib Limited
JS Bank Limited
New Allied Electronics
Industries (Private) Limited *
NRSP Micro Finance Bank Limited
Pakistan International Airlines
Corporation Limited
Security Leasing Corporation
Limited (3rd issue)”

€D PakLibya

2017 2016
Market value Ratings Market value Ratings
(Rupees in (Rupees in
'000) 000)
500 Unrated 500 Unrated
- - 40,150 Unrated
5,000 Unrated -
5,500 40,650
- - 12,500 A-
- Unrated - Unrated
402,892 A- 403,078 A
23,750 A+ 35,000 At
= - - Unrated
426,642 438,078
- Unrated - Unrated
- Unrated - Unrated
- Unrated - Unrated
1,111 A 33,333 A+
218,750 AA+ 250,000 AA+
100,000 A- = z
90,000 BB+ - -
300,000 Al+ = %
199,960 A+ 100,000 At
93,750 A 187,500 A
110,581 Unrated 143,755 Unrated
- Unrated - Unrated
1,124,152 714,588

Unlisted sukuk
Pak Elektron Limited (2nd issue)
Hascol Pelroleum Limited
AGP Limited
TPL Trakker Limited
Liberty Power Technology Limited

8.15.3 Held-to-maturity securities
Unlisted Participation

Term Finance Certificates
Agro Dairles Limited *

Qureshi Vegetable Ghee Mills Limited *

Commercial paper

Crescent Steal & Allied Products Limited

Pak-Elektron Limited

8.15.4 Investment In Jolnt venture

maoki Limited
Unlisted ordinary shares -
strategic investment - net *

Total

* 100% provision has been made against these investments,

Mote: In case of investments, where instrument is unrated, entity rating has been stated, if applicable.

2017 2016
Market value Ratings Market value Ratings
{Rupees in (Rupees in
'000) 000)
13,574 A+ 23,887 Unrated
85,000 AA 100,000 Unrated
45,000 A - i
50,000 A+ 50,000 At
47,962 A+ 60,839 At
241,536 234726
- Unrated B Unrated
- Unrated - Unrated
191,322 A+ - -
265,882 At = 3
457,204 - -
- Unrated - Unrated
3,700,440 13,183,821

™ Investment in listed Term Finance Certificates of Invest Capital Investment Bank Limited was settled at
Rs.1,500,000 in the year 2016. The investment had a cost of Rs.3,000,000 and was fully provided in the prior years.

8.16 Information relating to TFCs and sukuks required to be disclosed as part of the financial statements under the SBP's
BSD circular no. 4 dated 17 February 2006, is given in Annexure "I" to these financial statements.

ADVANCES

In Pakistan

Loans

Met investment in finance lease
Staff loans

Consumer loans and advances

Long-term financing of export oriented projects - (LTF-EQP)

Long-term financing facility (LTFF)
Advances - gross

Less: Provision against
Non-performing advances - specific provision

Consumer loans and advances - general provision

Advances - net of provision

Note

8.2
8.5

9.3
2.3.1

2017

20186

== (Rupees in "000) —

4,493,456 3,614,162
212,921 209,308
148,709 150,973
58,270 96,675
60,179 60,179
162,500 223,790
5,137,036 4,355,087
1,543,715 1,616,914
237 650
1,543,952 1,517,564

3,593,084 2,837,523
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9.1 Particulars of advances (gross)

9.1.1 Inlocal currency
In foreign currencies

9.1.2 Short-term (for upto one year)
Long-term (for over one year)

Net investment in finance lease

The periodic break-up of minimum lease payments due is as follows:

Lease rentals receivable
Residual value
Minimum lease payments
Financial charges for future periods
Present value of minimum
lease payments

Lease rentals receivable
Residual value
Minimum lease payments
Financial charges for future periods
Present value of minimum
lease payments

9.2.1 The Company has entered into lease agreements with various companies for lease of vehicles
and plant and machinery. The amounts recoverable under these arrangements are receivable
by the year 2019 and carry mark-up at rates ranging between 8.09 to 9.97 (2016: 9.31 to
10.05) percent per annum. In respect of the aforementioned finance leases, the Company
holds an aggregate sum of Rs.61.682 million (2016: Rs.76.694 million) as security deposits on

2017

2016

---- (Rupees in "000) ---

B18

21,085
13,882
(24,880}

1,617 564

333,661

{1,353,530}
{1,018,869)

Total

1,522 660
1,543,715
1,502 414
1,516,914
Total

2572123
Total

1,517 564
1,517,564

1'242}‘
(242)

650
2018
General

2016
General

Overseas

Provision held

B18

21,055
1,522 660
1,543,715

13,682
1,502,414
1.516,814

Specific
2 571,231
333,661
(1,353.288)
(1,019,627)

{34,680}

1,516,914
Specific

1,516,914

1,516,914

Domestic

(39)
1,543,852

818
1,502,414

1516814
{Rupees |n 'DO0)

(Rupees In '000)
1,543,952

Total
99,864
1,522 660
1,622,524
13,882
Total
1,517,564
72,763
(486,336)
26,427
Total
1,543,952

207
General
68540
{413}|
(413)
237
2017
General
237
237

Overseas

{Ruposs in "000)

Provision required

818

1,543,715

99,864
13,682
1,616,014
1,516,914
72,763

(45,923)
26,840

1,522 660
1,622,524
1,502,414
Specific
1,543,715
Specific
1,543,715

Domestic

251

Total
399 456
1,581,193
1,980,900
2453
54,734
1,636
1,578,266
1,637,109

Classified advances
Overseas
86

251

399,456

1,960,900
2,453
54,734
1,636
1,578

1,681 193
1,637,108

Domestic

o & cwrtaln wiposure o the extent of S3

5,137,036 4,355,087
5,137,036 4,355,087
916,916 366,915
4,220,120 3,988,172
5,137,036 4,355,087
2017
Later than
Not later one and less
than one than five Over five
year years years Total
(Rupees in '000)
195,637 30,754 - 226,391
51,960 9,722 - 61,682
247 597 40,476 - 288,073
73,321 1,831 - 75,152
174,276 38,645 - 212,921
2016
Later than
Not later one and less
than one than five Over five
year years years Total
(Rupees in "000)
180,733 26,046 - 206,779
51,960 24,734 - 76,694
232,693 50,780 283,473
72,324 1,841 - 74,165
160,369 48,939 - 209,308

behalf of the lessees which are included under 'other liabilities' (refer note 15).

€D PakLibya

LU

respect of consumer financing and Rs.58.532 milon (2016; Rs.58.532 milkon) being securty deposit in respect of lsase financing. The FSV benefil recognised under the
Prudential Regulations is not aveilable for the distribution of cash or stock dividend to the sharsholders. Further, SBP through its letter no. OSEDVSEU-05/041(01-12/2218/2012

dated 26 Dacember 2012 had stipuleted that no dividend, cash or kind, shsll be pald out of the benefits realised through the relaxations aliowed therein,

Category of classification
Charge for the year
Less: Reversal during the year
Met charge | (reversal) for the year
Less: Amounts written off
Closing balance
In local currancy
In foreign currencies

Opening balance

8.3.3 The provision against non-performing advances includes an impact of Forced Sale Value (FSV) benefit amounting to Rs. Nil million (31 December 2016: Rs,17.342 million) in

8,31 Particulars of provision against non-performing advances
9.3.2 Particulars of provision against non-performing advances

Substandard®
Doubtful
Loss

2017

QAEM
Subsiandard
Doubtiul
Loss

2016

9.3 Advances include Rs,1.980.90 million (2016 Rs.1,637 .11 million) which have been placed under non-performing status as detaled betow:
OAEM

9.3.4 General provision against consumer finance loans represents provision made equal to 1.5% of the fully secured performing portfolio and 5% of the unsecured performing portfolio
as required by the Prudential Regulations issuead by the SBP for Consumer Flnancing.
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9.4 Details of loans written off of Rs.500,000 and above (refer Annexure Il}
in terms of sub-section (3) of Section 33A of the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962, the statement in
respect of written-off loans or any other financial relief of five hundred thousand rupees and above allowed
to a person(s) during the year ended 31 December 2017 is given in Annexure Il.
2017 2016 28 RN = g - = w» % 2 B s
Note --— (Rupees in '000) --- s » N ~
9.5 Particulars of loans and advances to - = = -
directors, associated companies etc. 37 & E' B89 E g 8- 3 § £ 5 8 8 ¥ 48
: " RF FR femgg, - & 2 7 ¢ 8 |8
Debts due by directors, executives or officers =
of the Company or any of them either o3 g 8§ 8§ E & 8 8 |2
severally or jointly with any other persons Soo . g E z 2 £ = & 8 |2
£ a
Balance at beginning of year 150,973 116,636 'E L5 | 8 = 3 T g8 g © z23eF
Loans granted during the year 49,454 54,218 2 £ gg Bl b s a o "'g- o
Repayments during the year (50,718) (19,881) E 583 b
Amount written off . - e £7
Balance at end of the year 149,709 150,973 gl _ g 3 8§ ¥ 8 £ g g |8
2 © Er- # - L n i fd ot e
35 E " - & & |8
257 ¢ il
Debts due by subsidiary companies, 5
controlled firms, managed modarabas =} 18 8 &8 8 &8 E 8 8%
and other related parties % § g - 8 g ¢ = & |
2
Balance at beginning of the year - 266,188 T PR
Loans granted during the year - - . 3 %% Ceoe e B E § 5o .E . E !-E E
Other receivable - - 8| 226 = ol s
Transfer from other receivable to short term loan - - 3 i
Repayments during the year - - s
Less: Provision during the year - (266,188) s g 2 & &8 & g 8§ I3
Less: Transfer of provision from % 3 g - 8 8 8 & & 3
other receivable to short-term loan - - <3
Balance at end of the year - -
9.5.1 Particulars of loans to @ E H _g_ -E
key management personnel E'é . E E é E -§ % g E E
2 E 5 B 2 = B 3 B e, -
Amount due at beginning of year 59,882 44,118 E §§ g g s B H E sS E 3 E g o
Disbursements during the year 27,353 24,717 o I g g 3 g E § 2 B2t B ¥ % s
Repayments / adjustments during the year (35,549) (8,953) £ E E‘é & § g = E E £ E g g“ E é
(8,196) 15,764 B 35E - ° .
Amount due at end of the year 51,686 59,882 © ogE € =
(=]
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Rate (%)
111
10,15 & 25
10 & 15
10
30
258&333

1,369
23,488
12,633

4,964

260

5,524

31,018

78,256

Met book
3
December
2016

582
57,466
35,592
8.238
418
23,080
29,710

155,086

2016

As at 31

the year ({on December
2
1,836
4,131
(4.809)
1,048
{1,339)
1,765
{10}
16,116
(18,339)
24971
(24,497)

Charge for
disposal)

Accumulated depreciation
561
55,630
38,270
8,529
21,325
31,833
154,612

As at 01
January
20186
{Rupees in "000}

1951
80,954
48,225
13,202

678
28,604
60,728

34,342

As at 31
December
2016

2

6,200
{4,810)
2,645
(1.339)

78
3,826
(100)
25,519
{18,348)
38,277

Caost
(deletions) |
adjustments

(24,597)

Additions [

600

As at 01
20186
1,951
80,954
46,826
11,896
24,878
53,557
220,662

January

the Company is pending.

(note 10.2.1)
10.2.1 The transfer of title to leasehold land and bullding thereon in respect of the Company's premises at the Finance and Trade Centre, Karachi In favour of

10.2.2 Assels having cost of Rs. 96.38 million (2016: Rs. 956 million) are fully depreciated.

31 December 2016
Leasehold land {note 10.2.1)
Buildings on leasehold land
Furniture and fixtures
Electrical appliances

Office equipment

Computer equipment

Motor vehicies

10.3 The following are operating fixed asseis having cost of Rs.1 million or above / net book value of Rs.250,000 or above, or those sold to employees
and key management personnel during the year;

Accumulated Met book Sale Gain / Mode of
Description Cost  depreciation value proceeds  (loss) disposal Particulars of purchaser
(Rupees in "000)
Key Management Personnal

Furniture and fixtures
House hold furnishing items * 183 183 - - - Company Policy  Mr, Atif Mehmood**
House hold furnishing ltems * 177 177 - - - Company Policy  Mr. Nasim Ahmed Khan**
House hald furnishing items * 475 475 - - - Company Policy  Mr. Muhammad All Yacoob™
House hold furnishing items * 360 360 - - - Company Policy Syed Ghazanfar Ali™

* The house fumishing facility is given to employees (SVP and above) under human resource policy of the Company.
** These are related parties of the Company.

10.4 Intangible assets

Cost Accumulated Amaortisation Net book
value as at
As at 01 As at 31 Asat01 Forthe As at 31 k1]
January Additions December January year December December Rate (%)
[Rupees in "000)
Computer software 2017 4,683 1,325 6,008 1,955 1,146 3,101 2,907 20%
Computer software 2016 _ 2807 1,878 4,683 1,238 717 1,955 2,728 20%
2017 20186
Note e (RUpees in "000) -—e
11. DEFERRED TAX ASSET - net
Deferred credits arising In respect of:
MNel investment in finance leases (28,782) (28,867)
Accelerated ! (decelerated) tax depreciation 1,206 (50)
Deferred debits arising in respect of:
Provision for compensated absences 3,825 4,527
Provision for advances, investments and other assets 80,242 82,917
56,491 57,527
Deferred tax asset on revaluation of available-for-sale investments - net 18 28,839 (31,108)
114 85,330 26,419

11.1 As at 31 December 2017, the Company has avallable provision for advances, investments and other assets amounting to Rs.1,801.99 million (31
December 2016: Rs:1,775.18 million) and unused tax losses upto 31 December 2017 amounting to Rs. 2,001.45 million (31 December 2016:
Rs.2,103.12 milion). However, the management has prudently recognised the deferred tax assel only to the extent given above based on the
absorption / admissibility of the same as forecasted in the projections approved by the Board of Directors.

Annual Report 2017 ()



2017 2016
Note --—--- (Rupees in '000) ~—---
12. OTHER ASSETS

Income / mark-up / return receivable in local currency 155,758 323,896
Security deposits 4,642 4,640
Short-term advances 12.1 16,540 35,135
Prepayments 3,588 4,676
Advance taxation 228,616 182,539
Non banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims 12.2 1,179,360 1,179,360
Other receivables 32,920 701

1,621,424 1,730,947
Less: Provision held against other assets 12.3 (29,628) 14,091

1,591,796 1,716,856

121

12.2

123

2017

2016

Note =meeee (Rupees in "000) —eem=e
13.2 Details of borrowings
Secured
Borrowings from State Bank of Pakistan under:

Long-term financing facility (LTFF) 13.2.1 162,500 211,904
Repurchase agreement borrowings - Repo 13.2.2 5,368,021 1,950,000
Barrowings from financial institutions 13.2.3 7,787,500 11,070,000
Bai Muajjal 13.2.4 299,111 -

13,617,132 13,231,904
Unsecured
Clean borrowings 750,000 160,000
14,367,132 13,391,904

The comparative includes short term advance given to deputy managing director (refer note 37).

This includes non-banking assets acquired under satisfaction of claim in relation to KEL's exposure (refer
notes 8.13 and 26 for further details). These assets comprise of land measuring 14.125 acre, building
structure and power plant. The project is situated at Kamoki, District Gujranwala, Punjab, Pakistan.

Considering the strategic importance of KEL, consequent to transfer of the said assets in Company's
name the management presented a Management plan, highlighting all aspects, regarding the Power
Project Assets to the Board of Directors. In continuation to the efforts made for the disposal, management
appointed M/s. Igbal A. Nanjee for a new valuation as at December 2016. As per the new valuation the
market value of these assets were Rs.1.799 billion whilst forced sale value is Rs. 1.286 billion.

The management had also submitted a time-bound action plan to SBP for the disposal of the said non-
banking assets in which it was anticipated that the assets will be disposed off before financial year end
2017. However, that could not materialise therefore management revisited its plan and commited to
dispose off these assets by May 2018. A wholly owned subsidiary has already been setup during the year
to obtain a generation license to increase the salability of these assets.

Provision against other assets

Opening balance 14,091 247,895
Charge for the year 26 18,065 2,298
Less: Reversal during the year (2,528) (236,102)
Net reversal for the year 15,537 (233,804)
Less: Amount written off - -
Closing balance 29,628 14,091

13. BORROWINGS

In Pakistan 13.1 14,367,132 13,391,904
Outside Pakistan - -
14,367,132 13,391,904
13.1 Particulars of borrowings with respect to currencies
In local currency 14,367,132 13,391,904
In foreign currencies - -
14,367,132 13,391,904

@ PakLibya

13.2.1 The Company has entered into agreements for financing with State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) for
long term financing facility (LTFF) to customers. According to terms of respective agreements,
the SBP has the right to receive outstanding amount from the Company at the date of maturity of
finances by directly debiting current account maintained by the Company with the SBP. Such
financing shall carry interest at the rate of 2.5 (2016: 2.5) and Nil (2016: 8.40 to 10.10) percent
per annum.

13.2.2 The Company has arranged borrowings from various financial institutions against sale and
repurchase of Government Securities. The outstanding facilities as at statement of financial
position date are due for maturity on various dates latest by April 2018 (31 December 2016:
January 2017). The rate of mark-up on these facilities range from 5.90 to 6.05 (31 December
2016: 5.90 percent per annum,

13.2.3 This includes borrowings from financial institutions as under:

(a) Rs. 3,787.5 million (2016: Rs.3,075 million) representing long term borrowings from certain
financial institutions which are secured by way of first pari passu charge over assets of the
Company with 25 and 30 percent margin on the facility amount. They carry a mark-up rate
of six months KIBOR plus 0.25 percent to 1.00 percent per annum payable on semi-annual
basis (2016: six months KIBOR plus 0.35 percent to 1.00 percent per annum payable on
semi-annual basis). As at 31 December 2017, the applicable interest rates were 6.40 to
7.17 (2016: 6.52 and 7.15) percent per annum. These borrowings are due for maturity latest
by August 2022 (2016: December 2021).

(b) For the year 2016, short term borrowings (running finance and money market line) from
certain financial institutions for period ranging from overnight to 12 months for running
finance and 1 month to 12 months for money market line. They carry mark-up rate between
one month to three months KIBOR minus 0.1 percent per annum to plus 1.25 percent per
annum. Of the total short term borrowings, facilities amounting to Rs. 6,795 million were
secured by way of hypothecation on all present and future loans, lease receivables and
pledge of government securities.

13.2.4 Rs. 299.11 million (2016: Rs. Nil) representing financing through Bai Muajjal of Sukuk from
financial institution secured against Government Securities due for repayment on 08 November
2018,
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14.

15.

16.

2017 2016

Note ==-=-=- (Rupees in '000) ---—--
DEPOSITS AND OTHER ACCOUNTS
Customers
Certificates of investment - (in local currency) 14.1 39,000 463,117
Financial institutions
Certificates of investment - (in local currency) - -
39,000 463,117
14.1 Particulars of deposits
In local currency 14.2 39,000 463,117
In foreign currency - -
39,000 463,117

14.2 The profit rates on these Certificates of Investment (COls) is 6.10 (31 December 2016: 6.15 to 6.50)
percent per annum. These COls are due for maturity on 09 August 2018 (31 December 2016: 21 July

2017).
OTHER LIABILITIES
Mark-up / return / interest payable in local currency 109,948 135,142
Accrued liabilities 23,972 47,292
Employees' compensated absences 15.1 15,384 14,190
Security deposits against investment in finance lease 9.2.1 61,682 76,694
Staff retirement gratuity - (asset) / liability 15.1 & 32.3 (11,117) 5173
Other advances and deposits 2,014 514
201,883 279,005
15.1 This is based on actuarial valuation carried out as of 31 December 2017 for regular employees.
SHARE CAPITAL
16.1 Authorised share capital
Number of shares 2017 2016
2017 216 e (Rupees in "000) --=----
800,000 800,000 Ordinary shares of Rs.10,000 each 8,000,000 8,000,000
16.2 Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital
Ordinary shares of Rs.10,000 each
471,836 471,836  Fully paid in cash 4,718,360 4,718,360
142,342 142,342 Issued as bonus shares 1,423,420 1,423,420
614,178 614,178 6,141,780 6,141,780

16.3 SBP on behalf of the GOP and the LAFICO on behalf of the State of Libya each held 307,089 (2016:
307,089) ordinary shares of the Company as at 31 December 2017.
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17.

18.

19.

2017 2016
Note —~— (Rupees in "000) —
RESERVES
Capital reserve - statutory reserve
As at 01 January 302,094 143,860
Add: Appropriation of profit 171 9,556 158,234
311,650 302,094

17.1 The statutory reserve during the year is created equal to 20% of profit after taxation in compliance with the applicable
legal requirements.

(DEFICIT) / SURPLUS ON REVALUATION OF ASSETS - net of tax

(Deficit) / Surplus on revaluation of ‘available-for-sale’ securities

Pakistan Investment Bonds (4,568) 99,602
Market Treasury Bills - (76)
(4,568) 99,526
Related deferred tax 1,371 (30,853)
(3,197) 68,673

Listed companies - fully paid-up ordinary and preference shares (186,504) 19,009
Listed TFCs 4,498 4,824
(182,006) 23,833
Related deferred tax 27,468 {255)
(154,538) 23,578

(157,735) 92,251

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

19.1 Contingencies

19.11

18.1.2

In financial year 2014, the Company received the appeal effect orders with respect to the Appellate Tribunal
Intand Revenue (ATIR) orders dated 20 February 2013 in relation to tax years 2004, 2005, 2006 and 2008
where the outcome was in favour of the Company in relation to issues of loans and advances written-off,
apportionment of expenditure and loans to executives/officers and the resulting refunds were adjusted against
the tax liabllity for the tax years 2009 and 2010. Based on the decision of ATIR, overall resulting relief and
brought forward losses, there was ‘nil' additional tax liability remaining for tax years 2009 and 2010. In June
2015, the Additional Commissioner Inland Revenue issued orders under section 221/124 of the ITO for the tax
years 2003 to 2010 lo give the appeal effect of the ATIR order. Upon Company's rectificalion application, a
rectified order was issued which resulted in a refund of Rs.122.777 million. The Tax department has filed the
references before Honorable High Court of Sindh against the order of ATIR.

For the tax year 2011, Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue (DCIR) vide order dated 30 August 2013 passed
under section 122(1) read with section 177 of Income Tax Ordinance (ITO) issued the amended assessment
order and raised a demand of Rs.84.392 million. The demand mainly pertains to additions made for
apportionment of expenses to dividend income/capital gains/{losses), disallowance of interest payable on
accrual basis, provision for loans and advances and loss on termination of leased assets etc. The Company
filed a refund claim of Rs.70.53 million for the tax year 2011 through a revised tax return; however, it did not
recognise the said addilional refund on a prudent basis. The Company filed an appeal with Commissioner
Inland Revenue Appeals CIR (A) on 14 October 2013. The CIR (A) disposed the appeal vide his order No. 22
dated 26 December 2016. In relation to the said appeal, CIR (A) confirmed the treatment of DCIR on certain
issues, whilst few matters were decided in favour of the Company. Therefore, an appeal before ATIR to contest
the various treatments adopted in the above mentioned order issued by CIR(A) has been filed in addition to a
rectification application.
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19.1.3

19.14

19.15

19.1.6

For the tax year 2013, the Company received a tax demand of Rs.24.3 million on 11 November 2014 vide order
under section 122 (5A) of the ITO. Against this order, rectification application was filed vide letter T-2798/2012
dated 12 December 2014 wherein it has been highlighted that the issue of apportionment of expenditure
against dividend income and capital gain has been decided in favour of the Company by ATIR. Also, the Tax
department did not consider the payment of tax of Rs.13.47 million. In June 2015, a rectification order under
section 221 of the ITO was passed by the Additional Commissioner Inland Revenue to give effect of
apportionment of financial charges and tax credits. Consequently the tax department revised its tax demand
and reduced it to Rs.13.198 million. The Company filed an appeal with Commissioner Inland Revenue Appeals
(CIRA) on 22 December 2014. The CIR (A) disposed the appeal vides his order No. 23 dated 26 December
2016. In relation to the said appeal, the CIR (A) confirmed the treatment of the ACIR on certain issues whilst
few matters were decided in favour of the Company. Therefore, an appeal before ATIR to contest the various
treatments adopted in the above mentioned order issued by CIR{A) has been filed in addition to a rectification
application.

For the tax year 2014, the ACIR passed an order wherein he demanded tax of Rs.57.866 million disallowing the
provision for non-performing loan and advances, apportionment of financial and administrative expenses
against dividend income and capital gain, penalty imposed by the State Bank of Pakistan, treated the
expenditure incurred on privately placed TFCs as capital expenditure and charged WWF. The Company filed
an appeal with Commissioner Inland Revenue Appeals (CIRA) on 22 November 2016. The CIR (A) disposed
the appeal vides his order No. 13 dated 16 January 2017, In relation to the said appeal, the CIR (A) confirmed
the treatment of the ACIR on certain issues whilst few matters were decided in favour of the Company.
Theretore, an appeal before ATIR fo contest the various treatments adopted in the above mentioned order
issued by CIR({A) has been filed.

Mo provision has been made in these financial statements in respect of above mentioned Income tax matters
as the management is hopeful of a favourable outcome on these matlers, considering the appellate history and
tax advisor's opinion.

The Company, through its lawyer, has challenged in the Court of Sindh (SHC) section 2(g}(V), 5(3), 5(4) and
6(1) of the Sindh Workers Welfare Fund Act, 2014 to be unlawful and void ab initio. The Court as an interim
measure passed the order that no coercive action shall be taken against the Company til next date of hearing
as suit No 610/2017, in which almost 20 Financial Institutions have filed a Composite Suit challenging the
same law, reguires hearing.

Claims not acknowledged as debl as referred to in note 8.13 to the financial statements.

2017 2016
== (Rupees in "000) ——

19.2 Commitments

19.2.1

19.2.2

Direct credit substitutes

Contingent llabllities in respect of guarantees given favouring:
Govemment a =
Others 861,571 BB0 487

861,571 860,487

This represents the guarantees issued on behalf of KEL, a joint venture. During the year 2012, a decision was
announced by the Honorable Supreme Court of Pakistan (SCP), in which all contracts of RPPs were declared
to be illegal and void ab initio and as a result of which the guarantee remained inoperative. Conseguently, as
per the opinion of the legal advisor, there cannot be any exposure of the Company under the same (refer note
8.13).

Trade - related contingent liabilities

Contingent liabilities in respect of letters of credit favouring:

Government - -
Others 104,666 241,500
104,666 241,500
19.3 Commitments to extend credit 1,021,967 737,675

@ PakLibya
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23

®

19.4 Unsettled investment transactions for:

Purchase of Pakistan Investment Bonds
Sale / purchase of listed ordinary shares

19.5 Commitments for acquisition of fixed assets

19.6 Commitments against other services

19.7 Contingent Assets

There were no contingent assets as at the statement of financial position date.

DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS

2017

2016

=== (Rupees in '000) ——-

. 219,781
28,890 89,705
28,890 309,486

2,550 2,530
13,879 24,198

The Company did not enter into any interest rate swaps, forward rate agreements and foreign exchange options during the

year.

MARK-UP / RETURN / INTEREST EARNED

On loans and advances to
customers

On Investments in

'held-for-trading' securities

‘available-for-sale’ securities

'held to maturity' securities
On deposits with customers / financial institutions
On lendings through clean / reverse repo agreement
Income on bank deposits

. MARK-UP / RETURN / INTEREST EXPENSED

-

Deposits and other accounts
On borrowings through repo agreement

On other borrowings
Long-term (includes PPTFC)
Short-term

GAIN ON SALE OF SECURITIES - NET

Government securities
Market Treasury Bills
Pakistan Investment Bonds

Listed shares
Listed preference shares
TFCs, sukuks and mutual fund units

24. OTHER INCOME

Gain on sale of operating fixed assets
Rental income

Bad debts recovered

Miscellaneous

2017 2016
=e=eeez (Rupees in "000) ===
219,041 200,868
65,714 4,148
653,356 961,815
6,284 B
70,940 9,741
B44 1,332
745 1,127
1,016,924 1,179,031
16,060 93,251
253,134 301,943
235,715 168,699
247,394 301,895
752,303 865,788
62 87
101,583 148,733
101,645 148,820
132,906 (91,990)
15,365 -
- {1,500)
249,916 55,330
15 1,944
3,317 2,220
- 1,465
6,909 498
10,240 6,127
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2017 2016 2017 2016
Note ~—-—— (Rupees in "000) --—- Note === (Rupees in '000) -
25. ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES 28. TAXATION
Salaries, allowances and benefits 184,737 171,726 For the year
Charge for defined benefit plan 32.8 (11,075) 10,643 - Current 28.1 65.229 64089
Contribution to defined contribution plan 33 7,152 5,857 - Prior ) {30'“1 ) T
Executive directors' remuneration (including remuneration - Deforrad 1'035 176.560
of the Managing Director and Depuly Managing Direclor) 107,273 110,132 35'.144 3 40‘649
Non-executive directors' fee and remuneration 34 3,418 4.030 : -
Diveckors orieviiation and takling supenss ) 943 28.1 Due to current year tax loss, the Company has made provision for applicable minimum tax and income tax at fixed
Board .rnaetlng Bxp_ems 24,701 25,57 rates. Therefore, relationship between tax expense and accounting profit for the year has not been presented.
Traveling and lodging 1,963 1,669
R : : et el 29. EARNINGS PER SHARE - BASIC AND DILUTED
Legal, consultancy and professional services 11,336 9,944
Communications 5723 5575 2 i ¢
‘ $ Earnings for the year after taxation (Rupees in thousand 47,781 781,170
Repairs and maintenance 11,398 10,825 9 ¥ e ) =
Motor vehicle expenses 2,72 2,730 Wei ; ;
eighted average number of ordinary shares in issue 614,178 614,178
Business development and other expenses 1,386 2,205 4 . >
Insurance 3,965 3,331
¥ ; Earnings per share (Rupees 29.1 78 1,288
Software maintenance expenses 2,666 4,260 989 (Rupees)
E::::;:E:taﬁnnery 2;:: 2:g; 291 m;are were no convertible dilutive potential ordinary shares ouistanding as at 31 December 2017 (31 December 2016:
Advertisement, pericdicals, membership dues and publicity 3,596 2,844 '
Auditors' remuneration 25.1 1,585 1,567
1 ) 30. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Depreciation 10.2 30,360 24,971
E;“c'“'““““ -— Lok 1-:‘;3 ”; Cash and balances with treasury banks 5 28,328 20,420
oﬂf”""?"’ (gain) { loss ( 1?5} 25‘4:' Balances with other banks 6 83,494 72,705
ars i 353 G5 Term deposit receipts (TDRs) 78301 3,550,000 700,000
. . 3,661,822 783,125
251 Auditors’ remuneration
30.1 These term deposit receipts (TDRs) are due for maturity on various dates between January 2018 fo March 2018.
Audit fee
Company 740 740 2017 2016
Consolidation 30 - wemmmeeme= (NUMbers)
Subsidiary 30 - 31. STAFF STRENGTH
Half yearly review fee 300 300
Special certifications and sundry advisory services 194 236 Permanent 81 E6
Out of pocket expenses 186 189 Temporary | on contractual basis 6 15
1,480 1,465 Daily wagers 11 10
Company’s own staff strength at the end of the year 98 o
Add: Sales tax on services 105 102 p m:urc:d gt " 13 15
Ls 1,587 Total staff strength LK 106
26. OTHER PROVISIONS | WRITE OFFS
2017 2016
Reversal of provision against non-banking assets acquired — Percent per annum —
in satisfaction of claims = = 32. DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN
Loss on non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims 26.1 - 116,000
- 116,000 Staff retirement gratuity
Others 15,537 2,298
15,537 118,298 Discount rate 8.25 7.25
Expected rate of i i lary level B6.75 575
26.1 As explained in note 8.13, the Company acquired non-banking assets of KEL In satisfaction of its secured credit of E:E d Et: :f :_';f:e l_:s; n;: ::’; ;ﬁ " 8.25 725
Rs.1,250 million. These assets were acquired under the order of the High Court of Sindh at the forced sale value of t p : )
Rs.1,134 million, whereas the market value of these assels amounted to Rs.1,417.60 million based on valuation dated g y . A . ; !
11 October 2014 conducted by M/s. Joseph Lobo (Private) Limited. 'I;I;ZB::sbc;?szLérfg madea in notes 32.1 to 32.10 are based on the information included in the actuarial valuation as at 31
27. OTHER CHARGES
32.1 Mortality rate
Arrangement fee and documentation charges 3,667 4,875
Brokerage commission 4,515 3,734 The rates assumed were based on the State Life Insurance Company 2001-2005 with one year age set back.
Expenses for privately placed term finance certificates 470 8,450
Expenses pertaining to KEL 20,875 16,866
Penalty imposed by SBP 244 -
29,771 34,025
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322

323

324

32.5

326

32.7

328

329

Expected return on plan assets

The expected return on plan assets is based on the market expectations and depends upon the asset portfolio of the
Company, at the beginning of the period, for returns over the entire life of related cbligation.

2017 2016
Note ——- (Rupees in "000) ——-—
Reconciliation of amount payable to defined benefit plan
Present value of defined benefit obligation 324 110,647 130,755
Fair value of plan assets 325 (121,764 (125,582)
(11,117 5,173
The movement in the defined benefit obligation
over the year is as follows:
Present value of obligation at the beginning of the year 130,755 112,319
Current service cost 326 10,408 10,298
Interest cost 8,785 10,390
Benefit paid (19,171) -
Past service cost 328 (21,514) -
Actuarial loss / (gain) on obligation 1,384 (2,252)
Present value of obligation at the end of the year 110,647 130,755
The movement in the fair value of plan
assets of the year is as follows:
Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year 125,582 103,448
Expected return on plan assets 3228326 8,754 10,045
Contributions 9,509 10,296
Benefits paid 328 (19,171) -
Actuarial (loss) / gain on assets 32.10 (2,910) 1,793
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year 121,764 125,582
The amount recognised in the profit and loss account is as follows:
Current service cost 324 10,408 10,298
Interest cost (net) 3244325 3 345
Past service cost 32.8 (21,514) -
(11,075) 10,643

Actual return on plan assets during the year was Rs. 5.844 million (2016: Rs,11.838 million).

The current year expense / net favourable balance of Rs. 11.075 million includes a past service cost of Rs. 21.514
million. As per the decision taken by the Board, an amount of Rs. 12.978 million pertaining to the MD / CEO for his
entitlement till November 18, 2012 based on the salary as at that time as SEVP has been paid. Now he will be entitled
for gratuity from his settlement date till his date of retirement as MD on last drawn salary will be payable to him.

Plan assets comprise the following:

The following information is based on the latest un-audited financial statements of the Fund:

2017 2016

Particulars Rupees in"'000 Percent Rupees in '000 Percent
Cash and bank balances 3,170 2.6% 79 0.1%
Market treasury bills 85,693 70.4% 42 B5T 34.1%
Pakistan investment bonds - - 50,958 40.6%
Units of mutual funds 1,025 0.8% 3,800 31%
Cerlificates of Investment 31,875 26.2% 27,788 22.1%

121,763 100% 125,582 100%

@ PakLibya

32.10 Amounts for the current year and previous four annual periods of the present value of the defined benefit obligation, the
fair value of plan assets, surplus / deficit and experience adjustments arising thereon are as follows:

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
Note (Rupees in "000)
Present value of defined
benefit obligation 110,647 130,755 112,319 99,830 104,724
Fair value of plan assets (121,764) (125,582) (103,448) (90,949) (92,368)
Net defined benefit obligation (11,117) 5,173 8,871 8,881 12,356
Liability recognised in
the balance sheet (11,117) 5173 11,297 8,881 12,356
Experience adjustments
on plan assets azs 2,910 (1,793) 3,245 {3,065) (683)
32.11 Staff benevolent fund
2017 2016
-—-- (Rupees in '000) —---
Contribution from the Company 125 119
Contribution from the employees 125 119
33. DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN
Contribution from the Company
Contribution from the employees 7,152 5,857
7,152 5.857
14,304 11,714
33.1 Provident Fund Disclosures
The following information is based on the latest financial statements of the Fund:
Unaudited Audited
2017 2016
-—— (Rupees in '000) ——--
Size of the Fund - total assets 95,520 98 681
Cost of investment made 92,588 95,986
Fair value of investments 94,475 87,650
Percentage of investment made 99% 99%
33.2 The break-up of fair value of investments is:
Unaudited Audited
2017 2016
Rupees in "000 Percent Rupees in "000 Percent
Bank balances 1,887 2.0% 220 0.2%
Market treasury bills 61,590 65.2% 25,035 25.6%
Pakistan investment bonds - - 42 870 43.9%
Certificate of Investment (COls) - at amortised cost 20,300 21.5% 18,283 18.7%
Units of mutual funds 10,698 11.3% 11,242 11.5%
94,475 100% 97,650 100%

33.3 The investments out of provident fund have been made in accordance with the provisions of section 227 of the
Companies Act, 2017 and the rules formulated for this purpose.
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34. COMPENSATION OF DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES i
Executive Directors Non-executive Directors Quoted Using ol ::liiTant
market price  observable E::rs abl Total
Managing Director _ Deputy Managing Director Directors Executives * {unadjusted) inputs I
2017 2016™ 2017 2016™ 2017 2016 2017 2016 o e ll.ll?r::i
W e
e s hoe IO P )
e S| . - B ~ 3.418 4,030 ~ ~ Recurring Fair Value Measurements
Managerial remuneration 44,009 60,177 54,440 42,406 . 2 154,851 143,232 .
Charged for defined Financial Assets - Investments
Contribution to defined ' - Preference Shares - 12.500 - 12,500
contribution plan 1,304 1292 1,480 1,484 . . 3,785 3,168 ~Muboal Fngl Lolta. ; 2 . 2
Employee compensated absences 83 - 1,154 - . - 2811 2,734 TR Gk L = NGEahg ¥ BRI
Rent and - Debentures and Corporate Debt Instruments . 438,078 - 438,078
heouse maintenance 805 954 1,467 1475 . - - -
Utities 1525 1292 1,510 1,511 . e - - A _
Medical 309 131 211 007 i = 5912 4812 Non-Banking Assets acquired in satisfaction of claims - 1,798,923 B 1,798,923
Others 1,563 144 220 204 i . 1,083 551 640,550 13,352,230 40,650 14,033,430
50,605 65,328 61,656 48 191 3,418 4,030 176,469 161,899
During the year, there has been no transfers of investments between the three hierarchies.
Nurber of persons 1 1 1 1 4 4 64 58 : ) . ) : - 2
The fair value of all remaining financial assets and financial liabilities approximate to their carrying values.
The M ing Director and uty Managing Director (Executive Committ | titled to usa f certain Com intained ets their
ter:-rs g;':r?'ngliyn:ent_ St Brepltny ek iudond Clveion (s i i i e % o i o 36. SEGMENT DETAIL WITH RESPECT TO BUSINESS ACTIVITY
Out of total Rs. 61.656 million, Rs. 27.161 million is related to compensation during the period to former Deputy Managing Director of the Company. His Tha segment analysla with fespaot io bushiass aclvity byas follows;
directorship had been concluded at 31 March 2017 and a new Deputy Managing Director resumed the office. 2017
Executive Commitlee members and executives are entitled o certain employment benefits referred to in note 4.8 as may be applicable under the terms of the SHE &
emplo nt and Human Resource palic Casposeln Cpltal Rl
Py pakcy: finance Treasury Markets Banking Others Total
* Executive means employees other than the Managing Director, Deputy Managing Director and Directors, whose basic salary exceeds five hundred thousand (e -
rupees in a financial year. Also Included hereln is compensation to 23 (2016:16) employees which are not involved in managerial activities; however their total
7 H : . Total income 273,423 794,924 171,503 39,175 (8,534) 1,270,491
compensation during the year exceeds Rs.500,000. Total compensation o these employees amounts lo Rs. 23,636 (2016: Rs.16.6) million. Total axpenssi (205, 466) (596,206) (25,563) (41,082) (318,050)  (1,186,367)
Met incoma / (loss) 67,957 198,718 145,940 (1,907) (326,584) 84,124
**Rs. 0.395 million have been recorded in current year as Company's local traveiling whilst comparative amount of Rs, 0.860 million together with certain Segment assets (gross) 8,193,912 10,956,019 796,312 390,477 1,725153 22,061,872
expanses amounting to Rs. 0.032 million have been reciassified from above disclosure. Segment non-performing loans 1,938,451 - - 42,449 - 1,980,500
Segment non-performing Investments [ lendings 1,356,392 39,430 - - - 1,395,822
35. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS Segment provision required & held on [oans 1,505,572 - . 38,380 - 1,543,952
Segment provision required & held on investments / lendings 1,315,560 39,430 - - - 1,354,990
Falr value hierarchy Segment [labilities 3,163,359 11,018,126 130 389,544 35,856 14,608,015
Net assets 4,554,915
Level 1 valuation technigue using quoted market price: financial instruments with quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical instruments in active Return on net assets 1.85%
markeis that the Company can access at the measurement date. Cost of funds (%) 6.27T%
Level 2 valuation technique using observable inputs: financial instruments with quoted prices for similar instruments in active markets or gquoted
prices for identical or similar instruments in inactive markets and financial instruments valued using models where all significant inputs are 2016
observable.
Corporate Capital Consumer
Level 3 valuation technigue with significant unobservable inputs: financial instruments valued using valuation techniques where one or more finance Treasury Markets Financing Others Total
significant inputs are unobservable. {Rupees in "000)
The following table sets out the financial instruments by fair value hierarchy. Total income 1,323,774 1,025,617 96,520 6,953 6,165 2,459,029
Total expenses (333,055) (716,098) (27.570) (17.499) (332,088)  (1,427.210)
Financlal instruments carmed &l fair value and basis of valualion Net income / {loss) 990,719 308,519 68,950 (10,546) {326,823) 1,031,819
2017 Segment assats (gross) 5,639,915 12,500,279 682,924 323,000 1,899,182 21,745,310
With Segment non-performing loans 1,568,192 - - 68,917 - 1,637,109
Quoted Using significant Segment non-performing Investments / lendings 1,381,783 41,934 - - B 1433717
market price observable unobservable Segment provision required and held on loans 1,469,239 - - 48,326 - 1,517,565
(unadjusted) inputs inputs Total Segment provision required and held on Invesiments / lendings 1,280,370 41,934 - - - 1,332,304
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Segment liabilities 1,354,523 12,329,283 1,114 312,794 136,312 14,134,026
(Rupees in "000] ——erereee Net assets - - - - - 4,761,415
Recurring Fair Value Measurements Retum on net assets 3.44%
Caost of funds (%) 6.19%
Financial Assetls - Investments
- Fully paid up ordinary shares 794,364 40,831 5,500 840,695
- Preference shares - - - -
- Governmen! securities - 6,610,211 - 6,610,211
- Debentures and corporate debt instruments . 426,642 - 426,642
Non Financial Assets
Non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims - 1,798,923 - 1,798,923
794,364 8,876,607 5,500 9,676,471
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38. CAPITAL ASSESSMENT AND ADEQUACY
5 = 38.1 Capital adequacy
i, B IR I 8. 88.8 22 £8gs gg
ES ol L “ -l -'E = g0 83 & SBP's regulatory capital guidelines under Basel Ill allow for three tiers of capital. Common Equity Tier |
i}
58 e S 3528 & D ; . ; A
é £ 8 s o B2 capital includes common shares and retained earnings. Pak Libya currently does not hold any instruments
8E SH8E %95 in Additional Tier 1 or Tier 2 capital. The authorised share capital of the Company is Rs.8,000 million and
o g .22 C Bl SREE 0 %E g % €2 Eg - the paid-up capital is Rs.6,141.780 million consisting of 614,178 shares with a par value of Rs.10,000 per
85w ol E o b e = 5 w g %
£32 . IF 2 gIEBF Bes BE3E gg;é: share.
o % -::}m', g‘m Eg o 1': % a E
" g8 L E‘I‘E, g ‘E’,;:_e § gg E Company's regulatory capital is divided into three tiers.
8 £ £58 &
3 a® sl 5 s 58f 29Fs 353
% 5 %f 29 % put I & EE & g E; 15 g -1 * Common Equity Tier 1 capital (CET1), which includes fully paid up capital and statutory reserves as per
g SEg - 2 B gg SELE g 3g the financial statements and unappropriated loss after all regulatory adjustments applicable on CET1.
B 5 e o 2
g g § 2f ¢ % = § 83 * There is no amount for Additional Tier 1 Capital (AT1) of the Company.
e =lE = = za 2 3 g*ﬁ §ET ¢ =& * Tier 2 capital includes revaluation reserves on account of unrealised gain on available-for-saie
E = DR Vg g P L T T T E =8 N — ﬁ (=1
- @ ~ ~ ] % RS E’ § E § TE; o - investments and general provisions for loan losses (up to a maximum of 1.25 % of credit risk weighted
285 - =£2 £3,.8 gé% assets).
1 RE- s#8% st
“ 55 2E£ad 23
g g g% 52 2 ﬁ E Eg The table below illustrates the following approaches that are adopted at Pak Libya for capital requirements
g im0 |18 LY & K e R Eg 5 E® g% S5 calculation under Basel Ill in relation to the various risk types under Pillar 1:
57 383 i
- -E-I;;“g g‘% s 3 o 5 Credit Risk Standardized Approach
538 N T cure OF OF Eg?g’ 2875 ED g Market Risk Standardized Approach
§7=; £ = I L R TS s & 3E% SEE Operational Risk Basic Indicator Approach
= £ DEF 25. % =
E GBS s:Es e
" " 2 x 88 £5 8 £ ;85 Minimum capital requirement
§s] E-8% . #8 SEBEE. 5 853 fg8%  fiE
gE=8 w oifed o<~ =3 £ 2= . . . o
| % g < & §83 £ £ g g 8 g E f§ gi SBP has prescribed that the minimum paid-up capital (free of losses) for DFI is required to be maintained
8" E g 8 & 2 % < § L at Rs.6 billion and ratio of total regulatory capital to risk weighted asset is to be maintained at or above
§ g 2 = E’é £ bt - RS 10% alongwith Capital Conservation Buffer (CCB) of 1.275%. The paid-up capital (free of losses) of the
5| - %f .+ 88 5 |5 oy g R 525 £ ;%ﬁ 5% 4 Company as of 31 December 2017 amounted to Rs.4.401 billion, which is below the minimum capital
Bl 53 g W = 2 ﬁ & g v 278 ‘E £ requirement of Rs.6 billion. However, the SBP has granted further exemption to the Company in meeting
g $ a 2 EE @ 3= g2 £ %E the MCR till 30 June 2018.The Board of Directors of the Company has approved the financial projections
5 o7 W W - . = St E s §3 2¢8 for the next 5 years, envisaging a capital injection which is aimed to comply with minimum capital
E % R . 5 . EF oo § % = ;_?, 2 = Sa g‘f., g requirement, enhance the risk absorption capacity and future growth and expansion in business prospects
g5t = e 8§ Egé S3p8 Eg% of the Company.
E @ £ c®= oE38 g
i g g2F §Si¢ il
p 58 o-sas 5 >3 Capital management
2 = i3 2853 Eic
a L] . . . . L] . . . L] . . . L] :,- L] % -g E EE E rg f_‘_.g) _E |E g o
2 > = ﬁ %E ‘;E.ﬁ g §§§ A strong capital position is essential to the Company's business strategy and competitive position. The
i i % gE 2 '% '95% ga 2 Company's capital strategy focuses on long-term stability, which aims to build and invest in core business
- § g g ¢t S g E E §§ g E § activities. The Company seeks to maintain adequate levels of capital in order to:
: ¢ 5 555 1 E2fosEzd Zug
58 8 e § 2= § & 5 %2&; s3vs g.% « comply with the capital requirement set by the regulators of the Company;
5 g 8 g 282 ¢ 3 gs2§ §Fe3  EF S ; : .
= | 5 EST 825 s B 4% E s2E r =E = safeguard Company's ability to continue as a going concern so that it can continue to provide retums
gd E § § o E 3w ; 3E 8 2 & B3 § G Ec 53 % for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders;
g8 § T E § % ﬁ £ 3% £ g ﬁ Exrg = ﬁ.iﬁ E £ 3 « acquire, develop and maintain a strong capital base to support the development of its business activities;
Lo lP Egd 25 f =502 g = @ EE_E g 5 £ z g ;ﬂ § » support the underlying risks inherited in the core business activities; and
= w = e — T w o W EE o ‘o ) Al )
=888 2% % 85 £ % s3§2%s E g k5 8% Bs % 52 §x8 * be able to withstand capital demands under market shocks and stress conditions.
= @ 3 =] - g £ [ Q— = = i ] =
§05C  B9E3E 0§ sacwiii: o F 85% 299l ias
E Z3 E £sE 3 z £ I3 % $EE£23 E .g 5 EE. _gé ez =3 5 The Company carries out Capital Planning annually to ensure the sufficiency of capital keeping in view the
82558 8885 = 22556882¢ € & E 58 8%ESS E 85 business strategy, expected growth, regulatory requirements, Basel Il guidelines and risks associated with
E T 4 8 = o the business operations. The capital planning is normally undertaken for the horizon of next three to five
years. The plan takes the following into account:
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= current capital requirement

= growth of core financing and investment business based on activities plans of the various business
units (Corporate & Investment Banking, Treasury and Capital Market)

= the funding structure and sources of funding, liabilities and equity to support the asset growth taking
into consideration the need to maintain strong liquidity position based on Basel Il guidelines

= maintenance of regulatory capital requirements and capital adequacy ratios

The Company has a comprehensive Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process (ICAAP). The
Company's ICAAP covers the capital management, sets the process for assessment of the adequacy of
capital to support current and future activities / risks and a report on the capital projections for a period of
three to five years. The ICAAP report is produced on an annual basis and is approved by the Board of
Directors.

Under the ICAAP methodology, the following risk types are identified and measured:

= risks covered under Pillar 1 (credit risk, market risk and operational risk)

= risks not fully covered under PFillar 1 (Residual Risk)

* risks covered under Pillar 2 (concentration risk, interest rate risk, liquidity risk, reputational risk,
strategic/business risk)

The Company has also implemented Stress Testing Framework as per the SBP guidelines. This involves
the use of various technigues to assess the Company's susceptibility to plausible yet extreme stress
scenarios. The stress tests cover shocks related to credit risk, interest rate risk, exchange rate risk, equity
price risk and liquidity risk. The stress tests are performed quarterly and results are reported to
Management and Board of Directors through respective Risk Management Committee.

Scope of applications

The Basel Ill Capital Regulations (Basel |Il) are applicable to Pak Libya Holding Company (Private) Limited
(Pak Libya) in line with the guidelines issued by State Bank of Pakistan (SBP).

SBP has issued the framework and guidance regarding implementation of the capital reforms under Basel
Il - which are effective from 31 December 2013. Accordingly, the Company's Risk Weighied Assets
(RWA), total capital and related ratios are calculated under the Basel Il and 11l framework.

Basel-lll framework enables a more risk-sensitive regulatory capital calculation along with tightening of
capital requirements, raising the quality, consistency and transparency of capital base to promote long term
viability of the Company. As the Company carry on the business, it is critical that the Company is able to
continuously monitor the exposure across entire organization and aggregate the risks so as to take an
integrated approach/view. Maximization of the return on risk-adjusted capital is the principal basis to be
used in determining how capital is allocated within the Company to a particular segment of business.

Significant subsidiary

Pak Libya has wholly owned subsidiary named Kamoke Powergen (Private) Limited incorporated on 07
February 2017. However, the Company does not have significant investment in any insurance entity.
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CAPITAL ADEQUACY RETURN AS OF 31 December 2017

Common Equity Tier 1 capital (CET1): Instruments and reserves
Fully paid-up capital / capital deposited with SBP

Balance in Share Premium Account

Reserve for issue of Bonus Shares

Discount on Issue of shares

General / statutory reserves

Gain / (losses) on derivatives held as cash fiow hedge
Unappropriated / unremitted profits / (losses)

Minority Interests arising from CET1 capital instruments issued to
third parties by consolidated bank subsidiaries (amount allowed in
CET1 capital of the consolidation group)

CET 1 before Regulatory Adjustments

Total regulatory adjustments applied to CET1 (note 38.2.1)
Common Equity Tier 1

Additional Tier 1 (AT 1) Capital
Qualifying Additional Tier-1 capital instruments plus any related
share premium

of which: Classified as equity

of which: Classified as liabilities
Additional Tier-1 capital instruments issued to third parties by
consolidated subsidiaries (amount allowed in group AT 1)

of which: instrument issued by subsidiaries subject to phase out
AT1 before regulatory adjustments
Total regulatory adjustment applied to AT1 capital (note 38.2.2)
Additional Tier 1 capital after regulatory adjustments
Additional Tier 1 capital recognized for capital adequacy

Tier 1 Capital (CET1 + admissible AT1) (11+20)

Tier 2 Capital
Qualifying Tier 2 capital instruments under Basel Ill plus any
related share premium
Tier 2 capital instruments subject to phase-out arrangement issued
under pre-Basel 3 rules
Tier 2 capital Instruments issued to third parties by consolidated
subsidiaries (amount allowed in group tier 2)

of which: instruments issued by subsidiaries subject to phase out
General provisions or general reserves for loan losses-up to
maximum of 1.25% of Credit Risk Weighted Assets
Revaluation Reserves (net of taxes)

of which: Revaluation reserves on fixed assets

of which: Unrealized gains/losses on AFS
Foreign exchange translation reserves
Undisclosed / other reserves (if any)
T2 before regulatory adjustments
Total regulatory adjustment applied to T2 capital (note 38.2.3)
Tier 2 capital (T2) after regulatory adjustments
Tier 2 capital recognized for capital adequacy
Portion of Additional Tier 1 capital recognized in Tier 2 capital
Total Tier 2 capital admissible for capital adequacy
TOTAL CAPITAL (T1 + admissible T2) (21+37)

Total Risk Weighted Assets (RWA) {for details refer note 38.5)}

Source
based on
reference

number

from Step

2 Table
38.3.2

(t)

{w)

(v)

(z)

(u)
(n}

(aa)

()
{ab)

(g)

portion of
{ac)

v)

31 December

2017

31 December

2016

saeee= (Rupees in '000) ----—-

6,141,780 6,141,780
311,650 302,094
(1,740,780) {(1.774,710)
4,712,650 4,669,164
(980,481) (206,254)
3,732,169 4,462,910
(605,058) {49,611)
3,732,169 4,462,910
237 650
- 71,956
237 72,806
(438,910) (122,216)
(438,673) {49,610)
3,732,189 4,462,910
11,848,688 12,180,821
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48
49
50
51
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10
11

12

13

14

15
16

17
18
19
20
21

Capital Ratios and buffers (in percentage of risk weighted assets)

CET1 to total RWA

Tier-1 capital to total RWA

Total capital to total RWA

Bank specific buffer requirement (minimum CET1 requirement plus
capital conservation buffer plus any other buffer requirement)

of which: capital conservation buffer requirement
of which: countercyclical buffer requirement
of which: D-SIB or G-SIB buffer requirement

CET1 available to meet buffers (as a percentage of risk weighted assets)

National minimum capital requirements prescribed by SBP

CET1 minimum ratio

Tier 1 minimum ratio

Total capital minimum ratio

Total capital minimum ratio plus CCB
Leverage ratio

Regulatory Adjustments and Additional Information

Commeon Equity Tier 1 capital: Regulatory adjustments
Goodwill (net of related deferred tax liability)

All other intangibles (net of any associated deferred tax liability)
Shortfall in provisions against classified assets

Deferred tax assets that rely on future profitability exeluding those
arising from temporary differences (net of related tax liability)

Defined-benefit pension fund net assets

Reciprocal cross holdings in CET1 capital instruments of banking,
financial and insurance entities

Cash flow hedge reserve

Investment in own shares / CET1 instruments

Securitization gain on sale

Capital shortfall of regulated subsidiaries

Deficit on account of revaluation from bank's holdings of fixed
assets | AFS

Investments in the capital instruments of banking, financial and
insurance entities that are outside the scope of regulatory
consolidation, where the Company does not own more than 10% of
the issued share capital (amount above 10% threshold)

Significant investments in the common stocks of banking, financial (b)-(af}-{(ah)

and insurance entities that are outside the scope of regulatory
consolidation (amount above 10% thresheld)
Deferred Tax Assets arising from temporary differences {amount
above 10% threshold, net of related tax liability)
Amount exceeding 15% threshold
of which: significant investments in the common stocks of
financial entities
of which: deferred tax assels arsing from temporary differences
Nationat specific regulatory adjustments applied to CET1 capital
Investments in TFCs of other banks exceeding the prescribed limit
Any other deduction specified by SBP (mention details)

Source
based on
reference

number
from Step

2 Table

38.3.2

(k) - (p)
(1)
(0]
{i}- {s}*
X

{(m)-(rp}*
x%

(d)

ad
(a)-(ae)-
(ag)

a0

Adjustment to CET1 due to insufficient AT1 and Tier 2 to cover deductions

Total regulatory adjustments applied to CET1 (sum of 1 to 21)

31 December 31 December
2017 2016
(%)

31.50% 36.64%

31.50% 36.64%

31.50% 36.64%

25.50% 30.64%

6.00% 6.00%

7.50% 7.50%

10.00% 10.00%

11.28% 10.65%

3.00% 3.00%

31 December 31 December
2017 2016

Subject to

Pre- Basel lll
treatment”

(Rupees in '000)

(2,807) - (8,441)
(157,735) - =
(210,781) (52,696) (68,048)

- - (BO,156)

{4,000) (5,000) -
(605,058) (150,074) (49,611)
(980,481) (207,770) (206,255)

38.2.2
23

24
25

26

27

28

29

38.2.3
kY|
32

33
34

35

36

38.2.4
a7
@

(i)
(iit)

(v)

38
39

a4
42

43

Additional Tier-1 & Tier-1 Capital: regulatory adjustments

Investment in mutual funds exceeding the prescribed limit [SBP
specific adjustment]

Investment in own AT1 capital instruments

Reciprocal cross holdings in Additional Tier 1 capital instruments of
banking, financial and insurance entities

Investments in the capital instruments of banking, financial and
insurance entities that are outside the scope of regulatory
consolidation, where the bank does not own more than 10% of the
issued share capital (amount above 10% threshold)

Significant investments in the capital instruments of banking,
financial and insurance entities that are outside the scope of
requlatory consolidation

Portion of deduction applied 50:50 to Tier-1 and Tier-2 capital
based on pre-Basel |ll treatment which, during transitional period,
remain subject to deduction from additional tier-1 capital
Adjustments to Additional Tier 1 due to insufficient Tier 2 to cover
deductions

Total regulatory adjustment applied to AT1 capital (sum of 23 to 29)

Tier 2 Capital: regulatory adjustments

Portion of deduction applied 50:50 to Tier-1 and Tier-2 capital
based on pre-Basel Il treatment which, during transitional period,
remain subject to deduction from tier-2 capital

Reciprocal cross holdings in Tier 2 instruments of banking, financial
and insurance entities

Investment in own Tier 2 capital instrument

Investments in the capital instruments of banking, financial and
insurance entities that are oulside the scope of regulatory
consolidation, where the bank does not own more than 10% of the
Issued share capital (amounl above 10% threshold)

Significant Investments In the capital instruments Issued by
banking, financial and Insurance entities that are outside the scope
of regulatory consolidation

Total regulatory adjustment applied to T2 capital (sum of 31 to 35)

Additional Information

Risk Weighted A=sets subject to pre-Basel lll treatment

Risk weighted assets in respect of deduction items (which during

the transitional period will be risk weighted subject to Pre-Basel Il

Treatment)

of which: deferred tax assets

of which: Defined-benefit pension fund net assets
of which: Recognized portion of investment in capital of banking,
financial and insurance entities where holding is less than 10%
of the issued common share capital of the entity
of which: Recognized portion of investment in capital of banking,
financial and insurance entities where holding Is more than 10%
of the |ssued common share capital of the entity

Source
based on
reference

number
from Step

2 Table

39.3.2

(e)

(ae)

(af)

(ag)

(ah)

Amounts below the thresholds for deduction (before risk weighting)

Non-significant investments in the capital of other financial entities
Significant investments in the common stock of financial entities

Deferred tax assets arising from temporary differences (net of related tax liability)

Provisions eligible for inclusion in Tier 2 in respect of exposures
subject to standardized approach (prior to application of cap)

Cap on inclusion of provisions in Tier 2 under standardized
approach

Provisions eligible for inclusion in Tier 2 in respect of exposures
subject to internal ratings-based approach (prior o application of
Cap for inclusion of provisions in Tier 2 under internal ratings-
based approach

31 December 31 December
2017 2016
Subject to
Pre- Basel 1l
treatment®

{Rupees in '000)

(165,886) (41,471) -
(500) - -
(438,672) (109,103) 49,611
(605,058) (150,574) 49,611
{500) - =
(438,410) (109,602) (122,216)
{438,910) (109,602) (122,2186)
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
=== (Rupees in 000} ——-—
52,696 45,364
109,602 81,478
455,201 466,072
85,330 26,419
237 650
118,990 95,257
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38.3 Capital Structure Reconcifiation
38.3.1 Step 1: Under Step 1, the Company Is required to use balance sheet of the published financial statements based on the accounting scope of 38.4 Main features template of regulatory capital instruments
consolidation as a starting point and report the numbers for each item In the published financial staterents based on regulatory scope of
consolidation, Since in case of PLHC, the accounting consolidation is identical to the scope of regulatory consolidation there is no need to
undertake Step-1. Disclosure template for main features of regulatory capital instruments
38.3.2 Step 2: Under Step 2 the company Is required to expand the balance sheet under the regulatory scope of consclidation to identify all the
elements that are used in the capital adequacy disclosure template set out in Note 38.2. Each element must be given a reference number / Main features Common shares
letter in the 2nd column that will be used as a cross reference for note 38.2,
31 December 2017 1 Issuer Pak Libya
N e 2 Unique identifier (e.g. KSE Symbol or Bloomberg identifier etc.) NA
positionasin . oill 3 Governing law(s) of the instrument Government of Pakistan
ublished
o ks ‘: Regulatory treatment
on anuoen ags . "
Reference  financial 4 Transitional Basel Il rules Common Equity Tier 1
e 'm'“?;;n“ . 5 Post-transitional Basel lll rules Common Equity Tier 1
Assets 6 Eligible at solo / group / group & solo Solo
Cash and balances with treasury banks 28,328 28,328 '
Balances with other banks 83,484 83,494 7 Instrument type i . R Ordlnary Shares
Lendings to financial institutions 4,000,000 4,000,000 8 Amount recognized in regulatory capital (Currency in PKR thousands, 6,141,780
imostmonts. _ _ ) _ 9,700,440 9,700,440 as of reporting date)
of which: Non-significant investments in the capital instruments of banking, financial i
and Insurance entities exceeding 10% threshold i 1,018,845 1,018,845 9  Par value of instrument 10,000 per share
of :I:ll-:hr slgniﬁca;;ahvestn:r_ns In u.::t:plﬂ Instruir:enls Issued by banking, financial . 10 Accounting classification Share Holders' equity
and insurance entities exceeding reg ry thresho L. .
afwhichs Wakian Fndi esioneding nsolebary thrsshold 5 11 Original date of issuance 28-11-1981
of which: reciprocal crossholding of capital instrument (separate for CET1, AT1, T2) d 12 Perpetual or dated No maturity
of which: others (mention detalls) e 13 Original maturity date NA
Advances r 3,503,084 3,583,084 : ) .
shartfall in provisions | excess of total EL amount over eligible provisions under IRB 14 Issuer call subject to prior supervisory approval No
i Bdﬂ"““&": provisions:refiscied in Tier 2 capital g a5 ::; % ::; 15  Optional call date, contingent call dates and redemption amount NA
XBd ass /1 {l . 1
of which: intangible h 2.907 2,907 16  Subsequent call dates, if applicable NA
Daﬁ:"s;h.‘lj taxnﬁﬁa Iy on f fitability excluding those arising f e e Coupons / dividends
ol ch: al rely on fulure tability excl ng those arisi rom lempora x . .
iPaphenbin PR, S PR , ) i 17 Fixed or floating dividend/ coupon NA
of which: DTAs arising from temporary differences exceeding regulatory threshold j 85,330 85,330 18 Coupon rate and any related index/ benchmark NA
G faah kb L ki 19  Existence of a dividend stopper No
of which: Goodwill k
of which: intangibles i - . 20 Fully discretionary, partially discretionary or mandatory fully discretionary
Tngl“:::f"ﬁ"“'“"“ﬁ* pension fund net ssssts m i e 21 Existence of step up or other incentive to redeem No
' o 22  Noncumulative or cumulative Non cumulative
'E-lllﬂlb"'““b;"d equity 23 Convertible or non-convertible Non convertible
i : : h k ;
En:;:;;: 14,367,132 14,367,132 24 If convertible, conversion trigger (s) NA
Deposits and ofher accounts 39,000 39,000 25 If convertible, fully or partially NA
Sub-ordinated loans - - .
of which: eligble for indlusion In AT4 | i ) 2% If convert!ble, conversion rate . NA
of which: eligible for inclusion in Tier 2 o - - 27 If convertible, mandatory or optional conversion NA
;‘:E:’:L?t:g‘:i::;;::m suibjact io financs inase 28  If convertible, specify instrument type convertible into NA
of which: DTLs related to goodwill p - . 29 If convertible, specify issuer of instrument it converts into NA
St DL ekt ol pon i st : ! : 0 Wyoldown fagline e
L8] ICnC reigle elin pensi nei asse r - - § i i
of which: other deferred tax liabilfies s : - 31 If write-down, write-down trigger(s) NA
Other liabilities 201,883 201,883 32 If write-down, full or partial NA
O o e THIONS 33 If write-down, permanent or temporary NA
Share capital 6,141,780 6,141,780 34 If temporary write-down, description of write-up mechanism NA
of which: amount sligible for CET1 t 6,141,780 6,141,780 P ¥ " . . ook T " e
aFhich: amatint shgible for AT1 u i ) 35 Posrl_mn in efubor’dina‘flun hlferarchy in liguidation (specify instrument NA
Resarves 311,650 311,850 type immediately senior to instrument
of which: portion eligible for inclusion in CET1: Share premium v - - 36 0 i t it a o
of which: partion eligible for inclusion in CET1: General [ statutory reserves W 311,650 311,650 Non-c mp!l?m rans:tiongd features N
of which: portion eligible for inclusion in Tier 2 % A . 37 If }'EB, SP'ECIfy nﬂn-ﬂomp"ant features NA
Unappropriated profit/ {losses) y (1,740,780) (1,740,780)
Minarity Interest
of which: portion eligible for inciusion in CET1 z - -
of which: portion eligible for inclusion in AT1 aa - -
of which: partion eligible for inclusion in Tier 2 ab - -
Surplus on revaluation of assals
af which: Revaluation reserves on fixed assets e
af which: Unrealized gains / (losses) on AFS {157,735) {157,735)
In-case of Deficit on revaluation (deduction from CET1) ad
Total liabilities and equity 19,162,930 19,162,930
@ ParLibya Annual Report 2017 (&




38.5 Risk weighted exposures

The risk-weighted assets are measured by means of hierarchy different risk weights classified according to
the nature and reflecting an estimate of credit, market and other risks associated with each asset and
counterparty, taking into account any eligible collateral or guarantees. A similar treatment is adopted for off-
balance sheet exposure, with some adjustments to reflect the more contingent nature of the potential off-
balance sheet exposure, with some adjustments to reflect the more contingent nature of the potential

losses.

Capital requirements

Risk weighted assets

2017 2016 2017 2016
(Rupees in '000)
Credit risk
PSE 5,529 7,188 55,291 71,878
Banks 131,357 29,829 1,313,574 298,291
Corporates 309,895 284,340 3,098,950 2,843,403
Retail portfolio 2,333 11,323 23,329 113,230
Secured by residential mortigage 4,705 1,517 47,049 15,167
Past due loans 56,380 4,360 563,797 43,598
Significant investment and DTAs 21,333 6,605 213,325 66,048
Listed equity investment 48,856 30,071 488,558 300,706
Unlisted equity investment 75 6,098 750 60,975
Investment in fixed assets 7,755 7,926 77,551 79,256
Other assets 159,180 171,686 1,591,796 1,716,856
747,397 560,941 7,473,970 5,609,407

Credit risk on off-balance sheet
Non-market related 203,745 192,889 2,037,451 1,928,885
Market related 777 8,227 7,769 82,272
Market risk
Interest rate risk 36,139 241,115 361,392 2,411,155
Equity position risk 124,883 139,413 1,248,825 1,394,128
Foreign exchange risk 8 14 79 145
Operational risk
Capital requirement

for operational risks 71,920 75,483 719,201 754,829
Total 1,184,869 1,218,082 11,848,688 12,180,821

2017 2016

Capital adequacy ratios Required Actual Required Actual
CET1 to total RWA 6.00% 31.50% 6.00% 36.64%
Tier-1 capital to total RWA 7.50% 31.50% 7.50% 36.64%
Total capital to total RWA 10.00% 31.50% 10.00% 36.64%
Total capital plus CCB to total RWA, 11.28% 31.50% 10.65% 36.64%
Leverage Ratio 3.00% 14.37% 3.00% 19.40%

@ PakLivya

39. RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company has an independent risk management division and developed risk management framework to
continuously manage and mitigate risks emanating from the regular course of its operational and financial
activities. The risk management framework and policies of the Company are guided by specific objectives to
ensure that comprehensive and adequate risk management policies are established to mitigate salient risk
elements in the operational facets of the Company. It involves identification, measurement, monitoring and
controlling risks with a view to ensure that:

- Adequate capital is available as a buffer,

- Exposures remain within the limits prescribed by the Board of Directors; and

- Risk taking decisions are in line with the policy guidelines, business strategy and objectives set by the
Board.

The Company is exposed to a number of risks, which it manages at different levels.

The main categories of risk associated to / with the Company are as follows:
Credit risk

The risk of losses resulting from counterparties' failure to meet all or part of their obligations towards the
Company.

The Company has established an appropriate credit risk structure and culture whereby policies are reviewed and
revamped to maintain sound credit granting procedures, maintaining appropriate credit administration,
measurement, monitaring processes and adequate controls.

Risk management structure facilitates the Credit approval function by its Internal Credit Risk Rating model
through which an appropriate risk level of the borrower / counterparty is assessed for credit sanctioning and
disbursement.

The Company manages credit risk through:

- Establishment of acceptable risk appetite and tolerance levels;

- Sound procedures and controls for the management of risk assets and credit documentation;
- Target market planning and overall market intelligence; and

- Accurate and detailed information about the borrower, its financial position and operations.

Market risk

The risk of losses resulting from the variance in the market value of the Company's assets and liabilities owing to
changes in market conditions.

Market risk measures and controls are applied at the portfolio level and limits and other controls are applied to
particular books and to specific portfolios. Controls and established parameters are applied to prevent any undue
risk concentrations in the trading book and include controls on exposure to individual market risk faciors and on
positions in securities of individual issuers.

The principal market risk in respect to the Company's assets and liability management is primarily associated
with the capital market exposure and the maturity and repricing mismatches of its assets and liabilities. The
Board is responsible for reviewing and recommending all market risk policies and ensures that sound market risk
and effective risk management systems are established and complied with.

Operational risk

The risk of losses resulting from deficient or erroneous internal procedures, human or system errors, or extemnal
events.

The Company has in place a duly approved operational risk policy, manual disaster recovery system (DRS) and
a business continuity plan (BCP). These are continuously reviewed to strengthen operational controls prevailing
in the Company.
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Operational risk policy and manual set minimum standards and require all business units to identify and assess
risks through loss data collection, Risk Control Self Assessment (RCSA) and key risk indicators (KRls). The
business units are responsible for day-to-day monitoring of operational risks and for limiting losses as a result
thereof. The business unit is responsible to report any potential deviation giving rise to operational risk events in
the Company.

The Company is in the process of continuously improving its internal controls which aids in strengthening the
Operational Risk Management of the Company. In this regards, the Company maintains a detailed internal
control over financial reporting (ICFR) documentation.

Liquidity risk

The risk arising due to failure in raising funds at reasonable cost within the required time duration to finance the
Company's operations and meet its liabilities when these become due is categorised as liquidity risk.

The Company's approach to liguidity risk management is to ensure as far as possible that it will always have
sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due. The Liguidity Management Policy is formulated keeping in view
SBP's guidelines on risk management and Basel Il principles on sound liquidity management. The Company has
also formulated Liquidity Risk Management policy as per SBP's guidelines. The risk management division uses
different tools for identifying, assessing, measuring and controlling liquidity risk and periodically reports to senior
management and risk management committees. The Company is also preparing leverage ratio report on
quarterly basis for senior management, risk management committees and regulator.

The management is responsible for managing liquidity profile of the Company although strategic management of
liquidity has been delegated to Asset & Liability Committee (ALCO). The ALCO of the Company deliberate and
recommend liquidity strategy ensuring that appropriate policies and procedures are in place to control and
consfrain liguidity risk. It is also responsible for ensuring that Company has adequate information systems for
measuring, monitoring, controlling and reporting liquidity risk.

39.1 Credit risk
Credit risk management objectives and policies

Credit risk refers to the risk of financial loss arising from defaults by counterparties in meeting their
obligations. Exposure to credit risks for the Company arises primarily from the lending and investment
activities.

Credit exposures include both individual borrowers, corporates and groups of connected counterparties
and portfolios in the Company's banking/trading books.

The management of credit risk is governed by credit management policies and procedures approved by
the Board and management respectively. The procedures and policy guidelines spell out relevant process
flow, approval authorities, limits, risks, credit ratings and other matters involved in order to ensure sound
credit granting and approving standards in compliance with the Prudential Regulations and Risk
Management Guidelines of the State Bank of Pakistan.

Appropriate levels of facilities are approved by the Board of Directors. The Executive Committee (EC)
approves facilities of upto Rs.200 million while facilities exceeding this limit require approval from the Board
of Directors on recommendation of the EC. ALCO / Credit Committee (CC) considers and recommends the
said facilities to EC upon identifying key opportunities and risks prevalent in taking requisite exposure
towards the borrower / counterparty.

The Company currently uses Standardised Approach for computing capital charge an credit risk weighted
assets. Currently, the Company does not employ Credit Risk Mitigation (CRM) approach as there is no
hedging (in whole or in part) by a collateral posted by the third party on the behalf of the counterparty.

Credit risk rating

Credit risk rating is an important tool in monitoring and controlling credit risk. In order to identify changes in
risk profiles at early stages, credits with deteriorating ratings are subject to additional oversight and
monitoring.

@ PakLibya

The Internal Credit Risk Rating System (ICRRS) is intended to reflect the overall risk profile of the borrower
{ guarantor / counterparty. Risk ratings are assigned according to the perception of risk on a numerical
scale, determined within the gualitative and quantitative set of parameters and variables encompassing the
risk levels of the borrower / guarantor / counterparty. The Credit scoring in the ICRRS is being conducted
by Corporate and Investment Banking Division which is reviewed by the Risk Management Division on
periadic basis and from time to time upon receiving the required information and documents of the credit
proposallobligor for its credit approval.

Objective of internal Credit Risk Rating (ICRR)
Credit ratings are aimed at achieving one or more of the following:

- Internal risk reporting;
- Portfolio management; and
- Setting of credit risk concentration limits.

The Company constantly updates and improves upon its rating system to facilitate prudent lending
decisions along with proactive and effective identification and monitoring of potential credit risks emanating
from the lending activities of the Company.

The Company also uses and give due weightage to external rating while evaluating the risk. The Company
considers external ratings assigned by external credit rating agencies including PACRA and / or JCR-VIS.

Exposures JCR-VIS PACRA Other
Corporate Yes Yes X
Banks Yes Yes X

Credit exposures subject to standardised approach

2017 2016
Rating Amount  Deduction Amount Deduction Net
Exposures Category outstanding CRM* Netamount outstanding CRM* amount
e (RUpEES in "000) (Rupees in "000) =—seemsememmean

Corporate 0 - - - - - -
1 1,016,802 - 1,016,802 411,301 - 411,301
2 693,572 - 693,572 665,917 - 665,917

3-4 532,353 - 532,353 - - -

5-6 - - - - - -
Unrated 1,735,012 - 1,735,012 2,040,387 - 2,040,387
3,977,739 - 3,977,739 3,117,605 - 3,117,605

Banks 0 - - - - - -
1 2,583,494 - 2,583,494 1,022,705 - 1,022,705
2-3 1,593,750 - 1,593,750 187,500 - 187,500

4-5 - " - . ’ N

6 g 2 g = 5 =

Unrated - - - - - -
4,177,244 - 4,177,244 1,210,205 - 1,210,205

Sovereigns - - - - - -
Total Credit Exposure 8,154,983 - 8,154,983 4,327,810 - 4,327 810

*CRM= Credit Risk Mitigation

The accounting policies and methods used by the Company are in accordance with the requirements of the
prudential regulations of the SBP. These policies are disclosed in note 4 to these financial statements.
Reconciliation in the provision against non-performing advances has been disclosed in note 9.3 of these
financial statements.
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7,354
244,599
500,000
200,000

60,000
138,781
13,474
3,897
301,135
47,674

1,516,914

1,516,914

1,516,914

2,033,522

2,175,876

Specific
provisions
held
s cmenneees (RUpEES (N "000) —ecommememmeaamaaaaas
Contingencies
and
commitments

2016
7,354
253,130
500,000
60,000
138,781
53,896
53,897
301,135
68,916
1,637,109

200,000
4,761,415

Classified
1,637,109
1,637,109
4,554 915

advances
Met assets

employed

2017
2016

7,354
220,808
3,897
301,135

provisions
60,000

Specific
held
500,000
200,000
138,781
73,599
38,141
1,543,715
1,543,715
1,543,715
employed
e nmeeanneee (RUpEES 0 "000)
19,162,930
18,895,441

2017
7.354
229,340
500,000
200,000
60,000
138,781
447 944
53,897
301,135
42 449
1,980,900
1,980,900
1,980,900

taxation

84,124
1,031,819

advances
Profit before Total assets

Classified

by sector

VISioNns

Automoblle and transportation equipment
Transport, storage and communication
Power (electricity), gas, water, sanitary

Electronics and electrical appliances
Individuals

Construction

Agriculture, forestry, hunting and fishing

Textile

Chemicals and pharmaceuticals
Cement

Sugar

Public / Government

Private
Pakistan

39.1.1.3 Details of non-performing advances and specific provisions by class of business segment
Pakistan

39.1.1.4 Details of non-performing advances and specific pro

39.1.1.5 Geographical segment analysis

@ PakLibya

39.2 Market risk

Market risk refers lo the impact on the Company's financial condition resulling from future price volatility or adverse movemenis in
the value of assets contained in its trading book and / or investment parifolio. The principal market risk in respect of the Company's
assets and liabllities is primarily associated with the maturity and repricing mismatches of its assets and liabilities and equity price
risk. The risk emanating from any potential changes in market prices, due to changes in the interest rates, foreign exchange rates
and equity prices are duly identified and accounted for.

A trading book consisis of positions in financial instruments held either with trading intent or in order to hedge other elements of the
trading book. To be eligible for trading book, financial instruments must either be free of any restrictive covenants on their tradability
or able to be hedged complately,

Transaclion undertaken by the financial institution for the banking book means any position or financial instrument held by Company
in the normal course of business, not for trading purpose, or financial instrument that the financial institution intends to hold until
maturity, All invesiment excluding trading book are considered as part of banking beok which includes Available-for-Sale, Held-lo-
Maturity and Strategic Investments. Due to diversified nature of investments in banking book, it shall be subject to inferest rate and
equity price risk,

The Company has a sound framework for Market Risk Managemenl with the Treasury Investment Policy and Markel Risk
Managerment policies duly approved by the Board.

The Markel Risk Management framework of the Company comprises of exposure limits, a series of stop loss limits and potential
less limits recommended by Asset and Liability Commities (ALCQ) of the Company to ensure that front line risk-takers do not
exceed or breach the defined boundaries set by the management, Limit management is a control mechanism to ensure that all
business activities are conducted In compliance with the risk management guidelines and policies. Gap analysis |s conducted on
regular basls in order to assess the quantum of market risk and liquidity position of the Company. The limits are sel and reviewed
requiarly taking Into account number of factors, including market trading, lguidity of the instruments, retums and Company's
business siralegy.

Management of interest rate risk of the banking and / or trading book is primarily focused on interest cum fair value through Re-
pricing Gap Analysis and Fair Value Sensitivity. The management of interest rate risk of the trading book is achieved through mark-
to-market practice. On quarterly basis, the Stress Test reporls are being prepared for senior management, risk management
committees and regulator to have an accurate understanding of Company's risk tolerance levels.

38.21 Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in forelgn currency
rates. The Company's exposure to this risk is negligible as its assets and liabiliies are primarily denominated in Pakistan

rupees,

Off-balance sheet Net currency

Assets Liabilities items eXpOSUre
{Rupees in "000)

Pakistan rupee 19,162,851 14,608,015 1,808,405 6,463,320
United States dollar 79 - 125117 125,196
Euro - - - -
31 December 2017 19,162,930 14,608,015 2,033,522 6,588,516
Pakistan rupee 18,895,296 14,134,026 1,915,008 6,676,279
United States dollar 75 - 260,867 260,942
Euro 70 . - 70
31 December 2016 18,895,441 14,134,028 2,175,876 6,937,291

38.2.2 Equity position risk

Equity position risk refers to the risk arising from taking long or short positions, in the trading book, in the equities and all
instruments that exhibit market behaviour similar to equities. Equity price risk is managed within the statutory limits and as
defined in the policy framework by applying trading limit, scrip-wise and portfolic wise limits. Value at Risk (VaR) and stress
testing of the equity portfolio are also performed and reporled to ALCO, senior management and risk management
commitiees.

38.2.3 Mismatch of interest rate sensitive assets and liabilities

Yield and interest rate sensitivity position for on-balance sheat instruments is based on the earlier contractual re-pricing or
maturity date and for off-balance sheet instruments is based on the settlement date.

Yield risk is the risk of decline in eamings due o adverse movement of the yield curve.

The Company takes on exposure to the effects of fluctuations in the prevailing levels of market interest rates on both its fair
value and cash flow risks. The Board approves limits on the recommendation of the Executive Committee on the level of
mismatch of interest rate repricing that may be undertaken, which is complied by the Company's Treasury & Fund
Management Division.
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40. NON-ADJUSTING EVENTS AFTER THE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION DATE

There is no event subsequent to the staternent of financial position date that requires disclosure in these
financial statements.

41. DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE

These financial statements were authorised for issue on 23 March 2018 by the Board of Directors of
the Company.

42, GENERAL
42.1 In its latest rating announcement (June 2017), the Pakistan Credit Rating Agency Limited (PACRA) has

maintained the Company's rating of AA-(Double A Minus) in the long term and A1+ (A One Plus) in the
short term (with negative outlook assigned to ratings).

42.2 Amounts in these financial statements have been rounded off to the nearest thousand rupee, unless
otherwise stated.

42.3 Certain comparative figures have been reclassified in order to present information on a basis consistent
with current year.

Muhammad Masood Ebrahim Abid Aziz
Chief Financial Officer Managing Director & CEO
Abid Aziz Khaled Joma Ezarzor
Director Director

@ PakLibya

PAK-LIBYA HOLDING COMPANY (PRIVATE) LIMITED
Annexure |
As referred in note 8.15 of the financial statements.

PARTICULARS OF INVESTMENT IN TERM FINANCE CERTIFICATES (TFCs)

Name of TFCs

Particulars of investments held in listed
Term Finance Certificates (TFCs)

Summit Bank Limited - TFC (27-10-2011)
Certificate of Rs.5,000 each

Mark-up: 9.42% (6 - Months Kibor + 3.25%)
Redemption: Half yearly from April 2012
Maturity: October 2018

Trust Invesiment Bank Limited - TFC - IV (04-07-2008)
Certificate of Rs.5,000 each

Mark-up: 11.22% (6 - Months Kibor + 1.85%)
Redemption: Half yearly from July 2008

Maturity: July 2013

Installment status: Overdue

Jahangir Siddiqui & Co. Limited - TFC - (31-03-2014)
Certificate of Rs.5,000 each

Mark-up: 7.92% (6 - Months Kibor + 1.75%)
Redemption: Half yearly from October 2014

Maturity: April 2019

Azgard Nine Limited - TFC - Il (20-09-2005)
Certificate of Rs.5,000 each

Mark-up: 11.43% (6 - Months Kibor + 1.25%)
Redemption: Half yearly from Mar 2006
Maturity: September 2017

Installment status: Overdue

Cost

2017

2016

ssmsees (RUpees in "000) «-seee-

398,395 398,255
9,3M1 9,37
23,750 35,000
13,015 13,015
444,531 455,641
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Name of TFCs

Particulars of investments held in unlisted
Term Finance Certificates (TFCs)

Azgard Nine Limited - TFC - V (19-12-2010)
Certificate of Rs.5,000 each

Mark-up: 10.83% (3 - Months Kibor + 1.25%)
Redemption : Quarterly from May 2011
Maturity: November 2015

Installment status: Overdue

Azgard Nine Limited - TFC - VI (31-08-2012)
Certificate of Rs.5,000 each

Mark-up: 0%

Redemption: Half yearly from March 2014
Maturity: March 2017

Dewan Farooq Spinning Mills Limited - TFC (04-12-2004)
Certificate of Rs.5,000 each

Mark-up: 11.15% (6 - Months Kibor + 3.75%)
Redemption: Half yearly from June 2006

Maturity: June 2010

Installment status: Overdue

Jahangir Siddiqui & Co. Limited - TFC - (24-05-2016)
Certificate of Rs.5,000 each

Mark-up: 7.86% (6 - Months Kibor + 1.65%)
Redemption: Half yearly from December 2017
Maturity: June 2021

NRSP MicroFinance Bank Limited - TFC - (24-06-2016)
Certificate of Rs. 5,000 each

Mark-up: 8.51% (6 - Months Kibor + 2.35%)
Redemption: Half yearly from September 2016

Maturity: June 2018

Silk Bank Limited- TFC- (30.06,2017)
Certificate of Rs.5,000 each

Mark-up: 8.00% (6 - Months Kibor + 1.85%)
Redemption: Half yearly from February 2018
Maturity: August 2025

U MicroFinance Bank Limited-TFC- (29.06.2017)
Certificate of Rs.5,000 each

Mark-up: 9.65% (6 - Months Kibor + 3.5%)
Redemption: Half yearly from December 2022
Maturity: June 2024

Balance cif.

Cost

2017

2016

-==—== (Rupees in ‘000) ~--—

179,652 179,652
80,400 80,400
18,750 18,750

218,750 250,000
93,750 187,500

100,000 -
90,000 -

781,302 716,302

10

11

12

13

Name of TFCs

Balance bff.

Particulars of investments held in unlisted
Term Finance Certificates (TFCs)

New Allied Electronics Industries (Pvt.) Limited - TFC (05-09-2007)
Certificate of Rs.5,000 each

Mark-up: 12.36% (3 - Months Kibor + 2.75%)

Redemption: Quarterly from August 2008

Maturity: May 2011

Installment status: Overdue

Pakistan Intermational Airlines Corporation Limited - TFC - Il (20-02-2009)
Certificate of Rs.5,000 each

Mark-up: 7.39% (6 - Months Kibor + 1.25%)

Redemption: Quarterly from May 2016

Maturity: February 2020

Security Leasing Corporation Limited - TFC - 11l (28-03-20086)
Certificate of Rs.5,000 each

Mark-up: 0% (as per the terms of restructuring)

Redemption: Monthly from February 2012

Malurity: January 2022

Installment status: Overdue

Bank Al-Habib Limited

Certificate of Rs.100,000 each

Mark-up: 8.58% (3 - Months Kibor + 2.00%)
Redemption: Quarterly from July 2012
Maturity: April 2016

JDW Sugar Mills Limited-TFC- (06.08.2013)
Certificate of Rs.50 million each

Mark-up: 7.15% (3 - Months Kibor + 2.50%)

Redemption: Quarterly from December 2013
Maturity: March 2018

JS Bank Limited - TFC- (14-12-2016)
Certificate of Rs. 5,000 each

Mark-up: 7.57% (6-Months Kibor + 1.40%)
Redemption: Half yearly from June 2017
Maturity: December 2023

Cost

2017

2016

wneeee (RUPEES iN "000) —-emeee

781,302 716,302
15,957 15,957
110,581 143,756
3,081 3,081
300,000 -
11,111 33,333
199,960 100,000
1,421,992 1,012,429
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45,000

Certificate of Rs.5,000 each

2  AGP Limited

Mark-up: 10.00% (3 - Months Kibor + 1.75%) (Cap 25% Floor 10%)

Redemption: Quarterly from June 2015

Maturity: September 2016

23,883

13,574

Mark-up: 8.00% (3 - Months Kibor + 1.00%) (Cap 25% Floor 8%)

Redemption: Quarterly from June 2015

3 Pak-Elektron Limited - Il {31-03-2008)
Certificate of Rs.5,000 each
Maturity: March 2019

60,840

47,962

4 Liberty Power Technology Limited (18-03-2009)
Certificate of Rs.5,000 each

50,000

50,000

Mark-up: 9.60% (3 - Months Kibor + 3.00%)
Redemption: Quarterly from March 2011
Maturity: December 2020

5 TPL Trakker Limited (13-04-2018)
Certificate of Rs. 100,000 each

Redemption: Quarterly from October 2019

Mark-up: 6.02% (3-Months Kibor + 3.00%)
Maturity: April 2021

100,000

85,000

6 Hascol Petroleum Limited (07-01-2016)
Certificate of Rs. 5,000 each

Mark-up: 6.03% (3 - Months Kibor + 1.5%)
Redemption: Quarterly from April 2017

Maturity: January 2022

247,046

253,859
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e CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS 2017

DIRECTORS' -
REPORT . 4

On behalf of the Board of Directors, we are pleased to present the Directors’ Report of Pak Libya Holding Company (Private)
Limited (*Pak-Libya") along with annual audited consolidated financial statements and the auditor's report thereon for the year
ended 31 December 2017.

A brief summary of the financial results and financial position is as follows:

2017
{PKR in thousands)

Year-end balances:

Total assets 19,162,456
Total liabilities 14,608,015
MNet assets 4 554 441

Shareholders’ equity (net):

Share capital 6,141,780
Reserves 311,650
Accumulated loss (1,741,254)
Sub total 4,712,650
Surplus/(deficit) on revaluation of assets — net of tax (157,735)
Total 4,554 441

For the year:

Profit before taxation 83,649
Profit after taxation 47 306
Eamings per share (Rs.)
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Comments of Auditors in their Audit
Report

The Company auditors have added
emphasis of matter paragraphs in their audit
report. They have drawn attentionto note 1.2
to the accompanying consolidated financial
staternents and stated that the State Bank of
Pakistan (SBP) has granted exemption fo
the Company from the required minimum
paid-up capital (free of losses) of Rs. 6 billion
till 30 June 2018.

The opinion of auditors is not qualified in
respect of the above matier.

Auditors

The present auditors M's Grant Thomion
Anjum Rahman, Chartered Accountants (A
member firm of Grant Thormnton International
Licl) retire and being eligible, have offered
themselves for re-appointment. The Audit
Committee has recommended
re-appointment of auditors for the year
ending 31 December 2018 which has been
endorsed by the Board of Directors.

Acknowledgements
On behalf of the Board and the

Management, we would like to exprass our
sincere gratitude to the customers and all

@ PaklLibya

stakeholders of Pak-Libya for their
confidence that they continue to repose in
the Company. We would also like to express
our appreciaiion to the shareholders;
LAFICO and SBP, including MoF, for their
confinued support and guidance and to the
employees of the Company for their
steadfast trust and loyalty.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

Khaled Joma Ezarzor
Deputy Managing Director

Abid Aziz
Managing Director & CEO

Date: 23 March 2018

o GrantThornton GRANDTHORNTON AN FAUA @

15t & 3rd Floor, T +92 021 3567 2051-56
. . u Madam Motor House F +02 021 3568 8834 z
An instinct for growth BearourtFoad,  wkgkcom PakLibya

AUDITORS REPORTTO
THE MEMBERS

We have audited the annexed consolidated statement of financial position of Pak Libya Holding Company
(Private) Limited (the Company) and its subsidiary company (the Group) as at December 31, 2017 and the
related consolidated profit and loss account, consolidated statement of comprehensive loss, consolidated cash
flow staternent and consdlidated statement of changes in equity together with the notes forming part thereof
(hereinafter referred to as the “consolidated financial statements”) for the year then ended. We have also
expressed separate opinions on the financial statements of Pak Libya Holding Company (Private) Limited and
its subsidiary Kamoke Powergen (Private) Limited. These consolidated financial statements are responsibility
of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express our opinion on these consolidated financial
staternents based on our audit.

Our audit was conducted in accordance with the International Standards on Auditing and accordingly included
such tests of accounting records and such other auditing procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances.

In our opinicn, the consolidated financial statements present fairly the financial position of Pak Libya Holding
Company (Private) Limited and its subsidiary company as at December 31, 2017 and the results of their
operations, their cash flows and changes in equity for the year then ended in accordance with the approved
accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan.

Emphasis of matter

We draw attention to note 1.2 to the accompanying consolidated financial statements which explains that State
Bank of Pakistan (SBP), has granted further exemption to the Company from the required minimum
paid-up-capital (free of losses) of Rs. 6 billion till 30 June 2018 and has advised the Company to pursue the
case with ministry of finance for equity injection in the Company by the Government of Pakistan.

Our opinion is not qualified in respect of the above matter.

Karachi Grant Thomton Anjum Rahman
Date; March 29, 2018 Chartered Accountants

Muhammad Shaukat Naseeb
ﬂng.agement Partner

Annual Report 2017 @



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

<

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2017 FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 PakLibya
2017 2017
Note (Rupees in '000) Note (Rupees in '000)
ASSETS . Mark-up / return / interest earned 21 1,016,924
Cash and balances with treasury banks 5 28,328 Mark-Up / retum / interest expensed 22 752 303
Balances wilh ofher banks 5 88,495 Net mark-up | interest income 264,621
Lendings to financial institutions ¥ 4,000,000 v :
Investments 8 9,695,440
Advances 9 3,593,084 Provision against non-performing advances - net 9.31 26,427
Operating fixed assets 10 81,302 Reversal of provision against lendings to financial institutions 7.3 (2,504)
Deferred tax asset - net 11 85,330 Provision for diminution in the value of investments - net 8.13 25,190
Other assets 12 1,590,477 Bad debts written-off directly -
19,162,456 49,113
Net mark-up / interest income after provisions 215,508
;‘_I’:‘E""T‘EIS NON MARK-UP / INTEREST INCOME
= payEe N Fee, commission and brokerage income 19,733
Borrowings 13 14,367,132 il :
; Dividend income 39,294
Deposits and other accounts 14 39,000 L ; ;
R e Income from dealing in foreign currencies -
e : ; Gain on sale of securities - net 23 249,916
Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease = Urmeiiend: s e vl o b mnstvaits
Deferred tax liabilities - ; g :
0 i classified as ‘held-for-trading (968)
ther liabilities 15 201,883 Other i 24 10.240
14,608,015 bt _ :
NET ASSETS 2,554,441 Total non mark-up / interest income 318,216
533,724
REPRESENTED BY NON I'J!ﬁ?RK-I:JF.' INTEREST EXPENSES
Share capital 16 6,141,780 Administrative expenses _ 25 404,766
Resorves 17 311,650 Other (reversals) / provisions / write offs 26 15,537
Accumulated loss (1,741,254) Othercharges- a7 29,771
4,712,176 Total non mark-up / interest expenses 450,074
Deficit on revaluation of assets - net of tax 18 {157,735) ) ) 83,649
4,554,441 Extraordinary / unusual items -
PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 83,649
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 19 Taxation
- current 65,329
The annexed notes 1 to 42 and Annexures | & Il form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. - prior years (30,021)
- deferred 1,036
28 36,344
PROFIT AFTER TAXATION 47,306
(Rupees)
Earnings per share - basic and diluted 29 T

Muhammad Masood Ebrahim Abid Aziz
Chief Financial Officer Managing Director & CEO
Abid Aziz Khaled Joma Ezarzor
Director Director

The annexed notes 1 to 42 and Annexures | & || form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Muhammad Masood Ebrahim
Chief Financial Officer

Abid Aziz
Director

Managing Director & CEQ

Khaled Joma Ezarzor
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

<

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 PakLibya
2017 2017
in" Note
(Rupees in '000) (Rupees in '000)
: ; CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit after taxation 47,306 Profit before taxation 83,649
Less: Dividend income (39,294)
Other comprehensive income - net 44,356
Adjustments:
Depreciation 10.1 30,390
Itgms not to be recla!sslfied in profit and loss account Amodaation 10.3 1146
in subsequent periods Provision against non-performing loans and advances - net 9.3.1 26,427
Unrealised loss on revaluation of investments
Actuarial loss on defined benefit plan (4,294) classified as 'held-for trading' 968
To‘al comprehenslve income for the year 43’012 Reversal of pmvlsicn against ]Eﬂdiﬁgﬁ to financial institutions {2,.5@4]
Reversal of provision against other assets - net 12.2 15,537
Provision for diminution in the value of investments - net 8.13 25,190
Gain on sale of operating fixed assets 24 (15)
Components of comprehensive income 97,138
not reflected in equity 141,494
{Increase) / decrease in operating assets
: ; ' : Lendings to financial institutions (200,000)
Defici valuation of 'availabl
l: o {:n e u: D, ? ta ?t: t?,e- Investments classified as 'held-for-trading’ (4,986,243)
Total comprehensive loss (206,974) Other assets (excluding advance taxation) 159,104
(5,809,088)
*Surplus / (deficit) arising on revaluation of 'Available-for-sale securities' - net of tax has been shown in the Increase / (decrease) in operating liabilities
Statement of Comprehensive Income in order to comply with the revised "Prudential Regulations for Borrowings 975,228
Corporate / Commercial Banking" issued by the State Bank of Pakistan vide BPRD Circular No. 06 of 2014 SNapesis: and oner acoou s (424,117)
on 26 June 2014 Other liabilities (81,417}
’ 469,694
{5,197,900)
Income tax paid (81,382)
The annexed notes 1 to 42 and Annexures | & Il form an integral part of these consolidated financial Net cash used in operating activities (5.279,282)
statements, CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Investments in 'available-for-sale' securities - net 8,590,735
Investment in subsidiary 5,000
Investments in 'held-to-maturity’ securities - net (457,204)
Dividend received 39,569
Investments in operating fixed assets - net (25,134)
Proceeds on sale of operating fixed assets 15
TP Ma Ebrahim Net cash generated from investing activities 8,152,981
Chief Financial Officer Managing Diréctor & CEO Increase in cash and cash equivalents 2,873,698
i i
a Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 793,125
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 30 3,666,823
Abid Aziz Khaled Joma Ezarzor
Director The annexed notes 1 to 42 and Annexures | & Il form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
Muhammad Masood Ebrahim Abid Aziz
Chief Financial Officer Managing Director & CEO
Abid Aziz Khaled Joma Ezarzor
@ PakLibya Director Director




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

Balance as at 01 January 2017
Total comprehensive
income for the year
Profit after taxation for the year
ended 31 December 2017

Other comprehensive income

Transfer to statutory reserve

Balance as at 31 December 2017

Muhammad Masood Ebrahim

Chief Financial Officer

Reserves
Issued, Capital reserve Revenue reserve
subscribed Total
and paid-up Statutory reserve  Accumulated Total
capital (refer note 17) loss Reserve
(Rupees in "000)
6,141,780 302,094 (1,774,710) (1.472616) 4,669,164
- - 47,306 47,306 47,306
- - (4,294) (4,294) (4,294)
- - 43,012 43,012 43,012
= 9,556 (9,556) - z
6,141,780 311,650 (1,741,254) (1,429,604) 4,712,176
The annexed notes 1 to 42 and Annexures | & Il form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
Abid Aziz
Managing Director & CEQ

Abid Aziz
Director

Khaled Joma Ezarzor

Director

1. STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

The Group compnses of Pak-Libya Holding Company (Private) Limited (the Hoiding Company) and its wholly owned subsidiary
company, Kamoki Powergen (Private) Limited. Brief profile of the Holding Company and its Subsidiary Company is as follows:

The Halding Company

1.1 Pak-Libya Holding Company (Private) Limited {the Company) was incorporated in Pakistan as a private limited company on
14 October 1978. It is a joint veniure belween the Government of Pakistan and Government of Libya (State of Libya), The
tenure of the Holding Company was thirty years from the date of its establishment. The two contracting parties (L.e. both the
governments through their representatives) extended the tenure for further thity years uplo 14 October 2038, The
objectives of the Holding Company interalia include the promotion of economic growth of Pakistan through industrial
development, to undertake other feasible business and to establish and acquire companies to conduct various businesses
as may be decided from time to fime. The Holding Company is designated as a Development Financial Institution (DFI)
under the BPD Circular No. 35 dated 28 October 2003 issued by the State Bank of Pakistan (SBP).

The registered office of the Company is located at 5th Floor, Block C, Finance and Trade Centre, Shahrah-e-Faisal,
Karachi, Pakistan. The Company has one sales and service center located at Lahore, Effective 05 August 2012, activities
of Islamabad office have been suspended for the time being after review of the business strateqgy.

1.2 The State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) through its BSD Circular No, 19 dated 05 September 2008 has prescribed that the
minimum paid-up capital (free of losses) for Development Financia! Institutions (DFls) is required to be maintained al Rs.6
billlon. The paid-up capital of the Company (free of losses) as of 31 December 2017 amounted to Rs.4.401 billlon.

The Board of Directors {BOD) of the Company in its meeting held on 08 December 2012 and 10 December 2012,
recommended the shareholders for increase in paid-up capital by Rs.4 billion in the year 2013, The increase |n capital is
aimed to comply with minimum capital requirement (MCR) for risk absorption and future growth and business prospects of
the Company.

Further, the Chairman of the Company (Libyan Nomines} in the Board meeling held on 26 April 2014 informed that BOD of
Libyan Faoreign Investment Company (LAFICO) has given approval for the capital injection of Rs_2 billion with a condition of
simultaneous injection of additional capital by Government of Pakistan (GOP).

In this regard, SBP has been reviewing the progress and performance of the Company and the Company has been
following up the malter of additional capital injection with the Ministry of Finance (MOF). Considering the favorable
performance of the Company, both Shareholders in the Annual General Meeting (AGM) held on 15 April 2018 revisited the
required additional capital and agreed to reduce the capital injection from Rs.4 billion to Rs.2 billion (Rs.1 billion by each
sharehaldar).

The SBP vide Its fetter no. BPRD/BA&CP/G57/134/2017 dated 03 January 2017 had granted further extension in the
examption for meeting the minimum paid-up capital (free of losses) requirement till 30 June 2017 and had advised the
Company to pursue the matter of capital injection with Finance Division and provide specific timeline for equity injection by
the GOP In the Company by 31 March 2017. The management of the Company proposed shareholders to Inject the
additional Capital in tranches, for which the timeline has not been decided yet. However, GOP's firm commitment to inject
additional capital in the Company has nol been recelved Ul date. Further, the Company has applied to SBP for furlher
extension in relation to regulatory minimum capital reguirement. In this regard during the year, the Company has submitied
a 3 year plan to SBP to demonstrate its ability to meet the MCR through organic growth, as advised by the SBP.
Subsequently, MOF vide its letter no. F.2(1) Inv-IV/2014 dated 16 January 2018 has stated that In the last quarter of current
Financial Year, after a review of fiscal space, injection of equity would be given due consideration. Consequently, SBP vide
its letter No. BPRD/BABCP/E57/5114/2018 dated 07 March 2018 granted relaxation in MCR till 30 June 2018.

Subsidiary Company

1.3 Kamoke Powergen (Private) Limited (the Company) (KPL) was incorporated n Pakistan as a private limited company on 07
February 2017, The principal objective of the Company, as per formation documents, is generating, ftransforming,
converting, selling, supplying and dealing in electricity and all other forms of allled products and services and promoting the
conservation and efficlent use of electricity for generation, sale and supply. The Company is wholly owned subsidiary of
Pak Libya Holding Company (Private) Limited. The Company has been established as a Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV)
and applied for the power generation license from NEPRA to increase the salability of assets of Kamoki Energy Limited
(KEL). Approval from State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) was oblained for the formation of KPL which was granted vide letter
MNo. BPRD/RPDI27366/16 dated 16 November 2016, The registered office of the Company is located at 5th Floor, Block C,
Finance and Trade Centre, Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi, Pakistan.

2. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the approved accounting standards as
applicable in Pakistan, reguirements of the Companies Ordinance, 1984 (repealed - note 2.1), the Banking Companies
Ordinance 1862 and the directives issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) and the SBP. The
approved accounting standards comprise of International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and interpretations issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (IASB). Wherever the requirements of the Ordinance (repealed - note 2.1), the
Banking Companies Ordinance, 1862 or the directives issued by SECP and SBP differ with the requirements of these standards,

the requirements of the Ordinance or the said directives prevail, Annual Report 2017 @



2.1 The Companies Ordinance, 1984 has been repealed after the enactment of the Companies Act, 2017 (the Act)
on 30 May 2017. However, SECP vide its circular No. 23 dated 04 October 2017 allowed companies whose
financial year closes on or before 31 December 2017 to prepare the consclidated financial statements in
accordance with the provisions of the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984. The Act does not impact the
financial statemenis of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017,

The SBP through its BSD circular No, 11 dated 11 September 2002 has deferred the implementation of 1AS 39
‘Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement’, and IAS 40 ‘Investment Property’ for Non-Bank Financial
Institutions (NBFls) In Pakistan. The SECP has deferred applicability of IFRS-7 “Financial Instruments: Disclosures”
on banks through S.R.O 411(1)/2008 dated 28 April 2008, Accordingly, the requirements of these |IASs have not
been considered in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements. However, investments have been
classified and valued in accordance with the requirements of various circulars issued by the SBP.

BASIS OF MEASUREMENT

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except that certain
investments have been stated at revalued amounts in accordance with the direciives of the SBP.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The accounting policies and the methods of computation adopted Iin the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements are the same as those applied in the preparation of the annual audited unconsolidated financial

statements for the year ended 31 December 2016 other than those disclosed in note 4.1 below:

4.1 New Standards, Interpretations and Amendments

The Group has adopted the following accounting standards and the amendments and interpretation of IFRSs
which became effective for the current year:

Standard or Interpretation Effective Date
{Annual periods beginning
on or after)

IAS 7 - Disclosure Initiative 01 January 2017
IAS 12 - Recognition of Deferred Tax

(Amendments to |1AS 12) 01 January 2017
IFRS 12 - Annual Improvements to 01 January 2017

Adoption of the above revisions, amendments and interpretations of the standards have no significant effect on
the amounts for the year ended 31 December 2017.

Standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations that are effective but not relevant

The other new standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations that are mandatory for the
financial year beginning on 01 January 2017 are considered not to be relevant or to have any significant effect
on the Group's financial reporting and operations and are therefore not presented here.

4.2 Basis of consolidation

Subsidiary
The parent consolidated the investees in which it controls the composition of the Board or exercises or controls
mare than one-half of its voling securities either by itself or together with one or more of its subsidiary
companies.

4.3

4.4

4.5

Subsidiary company is consolidated from the date on which more than one-half of the voting securities are
transferred to the parent or power to control the entity is established and excluded from consolidation from the
date of disposal or when the control is lost.

The financial statements of subsidiary company are prepared for the same reporting period as the parent for
the purpose of consolidation using consistent accounting policies.

The assets, liabilities, income and expenses of subsidiary have been consolidated on line by line basis and the
carrying value of investment in subsidiary held by the parent is eliminated against equity in the financial
statements. Inter-company balances have been eliminated.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and balances with treasury banks, balances with other banks and
placements wilh financial institutions having maturities of three (3) months or less.

Revenue recognition

Dividend income is recognised when the Group's right to receive payment is established.

Gain on sale of shares is recognised at the time of sale of relevant shares.

Project evaluation, arrangement and front end fee are accounted for on receipt basis.

Income from loans, term finance cerlificates, sukuks, debentures, bank deposits, government securities and

reverse repo transactions are recognised on accrual basis using the effective interest method except where
recovery is considered doubtful in which case the income is recognised on receipt basis.

Premium or discount on debt securities is amortised using the effective interest method and taken to
consaolidated profit and loss account.

The Group follows the finance method in recognising income on lease contracts. Under this method the
unearned income i.e. the excess of aggregate lease rentals and the estimated residual value over the cost of

the leased asset is deferred and then amortised over the term of the lease, so as to produce a constant rate of
return on net investment in the lease,

Advances including net investment in finance leases

Advances are stated as net of provisions for bad and doubtful debts, if any, which are charged to the
consolidated profit and loss account currently. Advances are written off where there is no realistic prospect of
recovery.

The Group determines the provisions against advances on a prudent basis keeping in view the stipulations of
the prudential regulations issued by the SBP. The provision is charged to consoldiated profit and loss account.

Leases

When substantially all risks and rewards related to ownership of the assets are transferred to the lessee, such
leases are classified as finance lease.

A receivable is recognised at an amount equal to the present value of the lease payment. The difference
between gross receivable and the present value of the receivable is recognised as unearned finance income.

Provisions
Specific

Specific provision against funded loans is determined in accordance with the reguirements of the Prudential
Regulations and other directives issued by SBP and charged to the consolidated profit and loss account.
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4.6

4.7

General provision

General provision is maintained on consumer financing portfolio in accordance with the requirements of
Prudential Requlations for Consumer Financing issued by SBP and charged 1o the consoclidated profit and loss
account.

Investments

Investments other than those categorised as held-for-trading are initially recognised at fair value which includes
transaction costs associated with the investments. Investments classified as heid-for-trading are initially
recagnised at fair value, and transaction costs are expensed in the consolidated profit and loss account.

The Group has classified its investments, except for strategic investment in joint venture, into ‘held-for-trading’,
‘held-to-maturity’ and ‘available-for-sale’ portfolios as follows:

Held-for-trading

These are securities which are acquired with the intention to trade by taking advantage of short-term market /
interest rate movements and are to be sold within 90 days, These are carried at market value, with the related
gain / (loss) on revaluation being taken to consolidated profit and loss account.

Infra day trading

The cost of acquisition of ‘dealing securities’ (i.e. listed securities purchased and sold on the same day) (s not
considered for calculating the ‘'moving average cost' of other listed securities (i.e. listed securities sold after the
date of purchase).

Held-to-maturity

These are securities with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity that are held with the intention and
ability to hold to maturity. These are carried at amortised cost.

Available-for-sale

These are investments that do not fall under the held-for-trading or held to maturity categories. Investments are
initially recognised at cost being its fair value which Includes transaction costs associated with the investment.
These are carried at market value except for unlisted securities where markel value is not available, which are
carried at lower of cost and break-up value, if any. Surplus / {deficit} on revaluation is taken to 'surplus / (deficit)
on revaluation of assets' account shown below equity. Provision for diminution in value of investments in
respect of unlisted shares is calculated with reference to book value of the same. On derecognition of quoled
avallable-for-sale investments, the cumulative gain or loss previously reported as 'surplus /[ (deficit) on
revaluation of investments' below equity is included in the consolidated profit and loss account for the period.

The Group amortises the premium / discount on acquisition of government securities using the effective yield
method.

Provision for diminution in value of investments for unlisted debt securities is calculated as per the SBP's
Prudential Requlations.

The Group follows the ‘Settlement date’ accounting for investments.

Gains and losses arising on sale of investments are recognised in the consolidated profit and loss account.
Operating fixed assets

4.7.1 Owned

Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, if any.
Capital work in progress is stated at cost, and these are transferred to specific assets as and when
assels are available for use.

4.8

4.9

Residual values and useful lives are reviewed at each balance sheet date, and adjusted if impact on
depreciation is considered significant.

Depreciation is charged to the consolidated profit and loss account applying the straight-line method
whereby the cost of an asset is written off over its estimated service life.

Depreciation on additions in the first half of the month and disposals in the second half of the month is
charged for the whole month whereas no depreciation is charged on additions during the second half of
the month and disposals in the first half of the manth.

Maintenance and normal repairs are charged to consolidated profit and loss account as and when
incurred.

Assets are derecognised when no future economic benefit is expected from its use or disposal. Profit or
loss on sale or retirement of fixed assets is included in the consolidated profit and loss account.

4.7.2 Leased

Assets held under finance leases are accounted for by recording the assets and related liabilities at the
amounts determined on the basis of lower of fair value of assets and the present value of minimum lease
payments. Finance charge is allocated to accounting periods in a manner as to provide a constant rate
on the outstanding liability. Depreciation is charged on leased assets on a basis similar to that of owned
assels.

4.7.3 Intangible assets
Intangibie assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses, if any.

Intangible assets having a finite life are amortised using the straight line method over their estimated
useful lives after taking into account the residual value, if any.

Amortisation on additions and deletions of intangible assets during the year is charged in proportion to
the period of use.

Amortisation on additions in the first half of the month and disposals in the second half of the month is
charged for the whole month whereas no amortisation is charged on additions during the second half of
the month and disposals in the first half of the month.

Taxation
Current

The charge for current taxation is based on taxable income at the current rates of taxation after taking into
account the tax credits and tax rebates available, if any.

Deferred

The Group accounts for deferred taxation using the balance sheet liability method on temporary differences
arising between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. The
amount of deferred tax provided is based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the camying
amount of assets and liabilities using the applicable tax rates. A deferred tax asset is recognised only to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available and the credits will be utilised. Deferred tax
assets are reduced to the exient that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.

Staff retirement benefits
Defined benefit plan
- Gratuity Fund
The Group operates a funded gratuity scheme for all its permanent employees in accordance with the
human resource policy of the Group and terms of employment for managing director and deputy managing

director. Contributions towards defined benefit schemes are made on the basis of actuarial advice using the
Projected Unit Credit Method.
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4.10

4.1

4.12

Actuarial gains or losses are recognised in accordance with the requirements of 1AS-19 (Revised).

The last actuarial valuation of the scheme was carried out as at 31 December 2017. The benefit under the
gratuity scheme |s payable on retirement al the age of 60 or earlier cessalion of service, in lump sum.

- Benevolent Fund

The Group operates a benevolent fund scheme for its employees where equal fixed contributions are being
made by employees and the Group. Employees or their legal heirs are entitled to certain pre-defined
benefits on happening of specified events including retirement, incapacitation, marriage and death etc. as
per their entittement. Contributions paid by Group to the fund are included in expenses for the period.

Defined contribution plan

The Group also operates a recognised provident fund scheme for its permanent employees. Equal monthly
contributions are made, both by the Group and the employees, to the fund at a rate of 3.5 and 4 (2016: 3.5 and
4) percent respectively and 10 percent of salary for the managing director and deputy managing director, as
applicable. The Group has no further payment obligation once the contributions have been paid. The
contributions are recognised as an expense when they are due. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an
asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction of the future payments is available.

Compensated absences

The liability in respect of compensated absences of employees is accounted for in the period in which it is
eamed in terms of salary earned upto the consolidated statement of financial position date.

The Group recognises provision for compensated absences on the basis of actuarial valuation under Projected
Unit Credit Method. The last actuarial valuation was carried out as at 31 December 2017,

Securities under repurchase / resale agreements

Securities sold with a simultaneous commitment to repurchase at a specified future date (repos) continue to be
recognised in the statement of financial position and are measured in accordance with accounting policies for
investment securities. The counterparty liability for amounts received under these agreements is included in
borrowings. The difference between sale and repurchase price is treated as mark-up / retum / interest expense
and accrued over the life of the repo agreement using effective yield method.

Securities purchased with a corresponding commitment to resell at a specified future date (reverse repos) are
not recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position, as the Group does not obtain control over the
securities. Amounts paid under these agreements are included in lendings. The difference between purchase
and resale price is treated as mark-up / retumn / interest income and accrued over the life of the reverse repo
agreement using effective yield method.

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the consoclidated financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary
economic envirenment in which the Group operates. These financial statements are presented in Pakistani
Rupee, which is the Group's functional and presentation cumrency.

Foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are recorded at the rates prevailing on the date of transaction.
Monetary assels and liabilities in foreign cumrencies are translated into Pakistanl Rupee al the rales of
exchange prevailing on the balance sheet date. Exchange gains and losses are included in the consolidated
profit and loss account. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost denominated in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction.

4.13

4.14

4,15

4.16

4.17

Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past

events, and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of obligation.

Provision against identified non-funded losses is recognised when intimated and reasonable certainty exists for
the Group to settle the obligation. The provision is charged to the consolidated profit and loss account net of
expected recovery and the provision is classified under other liabilities.

Provisions are reviewed at each statement of financial position date and are adjusted to reflect the current best
estimate.

Off-setting of financial assets and financial liabilities
A financial asset and a financial liability is set off and the net amount reported in the statement of financial

position if the Group has a legal right to set off the transaction and also intends either to settle on a net basis or
to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Dividend and reserves
Dividend declared and appropriations, except for transfer of statutory reserve, made subsequent to the balance

sheet date are recognised as liability and recorded as changes In reserves respectively in the period in which
\hese are approved by the directors / shareholders as appropriate.

Critical accounting estimates and judgments

The preparation of these consolidated financial statements In conformity with approved accounting standards
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgment
in the process of applying the Group's accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgment or

complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements are as
follows:

a) Provision for bad and doubtful advances including net investment in lease (note 4.5)

b) Classification and provisioning of investments (note 4.6)

c) Depreciation of property and equipment and amortisation of intangible assets (note 4.7)
d) Assumptions and estimation in recegnition of deferred taxation (note 4.8)

e) Accounting for defined benefit plan and compensated absences (note 4.9)

f)  Impairment (note 4.21)

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectation of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Segment reporting

An operating segment is a component of the Group that engages in business activities from which it may eamn
revenues and Incur expenses; whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the entity's chief operating
decision maker to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its performance
and for which discrete financial information is available.

The Group's primary format of reporting is based on its business segments for which individual business
strategies are formulated based on Group's overall business strategy and implementation plan.
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4,18

4.19

4.20

4.21

Business segments
Following are the main segments of the Group:

Corporate & Includes loans, advances, lease financing, advisory services, mergers and
Investment Banking acquisitions and other such corporate and investment banking transactions.

Treasury Undertakes Group's fund management activities through leveraging and investing in
liquid assets such as short term placements, government securities and reverse
repo activities. It carries out spread based activities in the interbank market and
manages the interest rate risk exposure of the Group.

Capital Market Undertakes trading and investment primarily in listed securities with an aim to earn
trading gains from market fluctuation and to hold securities for dividend income and
price appreciation in the form of capital gain.

SME & Retail Banking Undertakes SME and Retail Finance activities via bills discounting, business loans
against mortgaged property, auto-lease financing and consumer financing.

Geographical segments

The geographical spread of Group's operations is limited to Pakistan only.

Borrowing cost

Borrowings are recorded al the proceeds received.

Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which these are incurred except where such
cosis are directly atiributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying asset in which case
such costs are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset.

Earnings per share

The Group presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) for its shareholders. Basic EPS Is calculated
by dividing the consolidated profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Group by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year. Diluted EPS is delermined by adjusting the

consolidated profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares, if any.

Depaosits and their cost
Deposits are recorded at the fair value of proceeds received.

Deposit costs are recognised as an expense in the perfod In which these are incurred using effective mark-up /
interest rate method.

Impairment

The carrying amounts of the Group's assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine whether
there is any indication of impairment. If such indication exists the assets' recoverable amount is estimated. An
impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses are recognised in consolidated profit and loss account.

4.22 Standards, amendments and interpretations to the published standards that are relevant but not yet
effective and not early adopted by the Group

The following new standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations would be effective from
the dates mentioned below against the respective standard or interpretation.

Effective date (annual periods
Standard or interpretation beginning on or after)

IFRS 10 and IAS 28 - Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor
and its Assoclate or Joint Venture (Amendmenis to IFRS 10 and IAS 28) Postponed

IFRS 2 - Classification and Measurement of Share-based Payment

Transaction (Amendements to IFRS 2) Ot dmnisary FO18

IFRS 1 and IAS 28 - Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2014-2016 01 January 2018
IFRIC 22 - Foreign Currency 01 January 2018
IAS 40 - Transfers of Investment 01 January 2018
IFRS 15 - Revenue from Contracts with Cuslomers 01 July 2018

IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments 01 July 2018

IFRIC 23 - Uncertainty over Income 01 January 2019
IAS 28 - Long-term Interests In Associates and Joint Ventures 01 January 2019

(Amendmentls to |1AS 28)
Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2015 01 January 2019

IFRS 9 - Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation 0 19
(Amendments to IFRS 9) L 20
The above standards and amendments are not expected to have any material impact on the Group's financial
statements in the period of Initlal application.

Further, following new standards have been issued by |IASE which are yet to be nolified by the SECP for lhe
purpose of applicability in Pakistan.

IASB Effective date (annual
Standard periods beginning on or after)
IFRS 14 — Regulatory Deferral Accounts 01 January 2016
IFRS 17 - Insurance Contracts 01 January 2021
IFRS 16 — Leases 01 January 2019
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2017 2017
Rupees in '000
Note (Rupee ) Held by the  Given as
5. CASH AND BALANCES WITH TREASURY BANKS Group collateral Total
P HERY Note (Rupees in "000)
Foreign currency -
Balances with State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) - 8.1 Investments by types
Local currency current account 51 27,749
Balances with National Bank of Pakistan (NBF) - Held-for-trading securities
Local currency current account 549
28,328
Market Treasury Bills 8.3.1 862,620 4,123,623 4,986,243
51 This includes a balance required to be maintained with the SBP by the Group in accordance with the
SBP's regulations for cash reserve requirements.
Available-for-sale securities
6. BALANCES WITH OTHER BANKS Pakistan Investment Bonds 8.3.2 946 1,628,558 1,629,504
In Pakistan Listed ordinary shares 8.4 1,247,542 - 1,247,542
Current accounts 30,297 Unlisted ordinary shares 8.5 52,801 - 52,801
Deposit accounts 6.1 58,198 Unlisted preference shares 8.6 300,000 - 300,000
88,495 Listed Term Finance Certificates 8.7 444,531 - 444,531
——— —— R t Unlisted Term Finance Certificates 8.8 1,421,992 - 1,421,992
1 e return on these balances ranges from 3. .00 percent per annum. Unlisted sukuks 8.9 253,859 } 253,859
7. LENDINGS TO FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS 3,721,671 1,628,558 5,350,229
7.1 Inlocal currency Held-to-maturity securities
Placements , 33,064 Commercial paper 8.10 457,204 - 457,204
Repurchase agreement lendings (reverse repo) - Unlisted Particibation Term
Term deposit receipts 7.2 4,000,000 i P
Less: Provision against placements 7.3 (33,064) Certificates (PTCs) 8.11 6,366 z 6,366
74 4,000,000 463,570 - 463,570
7.2 Term deposit receipts carry mark-up at rates ranging from 6.55 to 8.00 percent per annum. These are Strategic investment in
due to mature between 05 January 2018 and 05 September 2018. joint venture - Kamoki
Energy Limited
7.3 Provision against lendings
Ouscig balsncs 35,568 Unlisted ordinary shares - net 8.12.2 404,867 - 404,867
Investment at cost 5,452,728 5,752,181 11,204,309
Charge for the year -
Less: Reversal during the year (2,504)
Net reversal for the year (2,504) Less: Provision for diminution
Closing balance 33,064 in the value of
investments 8.13 (1,321,926) - (1,321,926)
7.4 Particul f lendi
bsta e Investments (net of provisions) 4,130,802 5752181 9,882,983
In local currency 4,000,000
Deficit on revaluation
of 'held-for-trading' securities (168) (800) (968)
Deficit on revaluation of
‘available-for-sale' securities (182,008) (4,567) (186,575)
Total investments 3,948,626 5,746,814 9,695,440
=
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2017 8.3 Available-for-sale securities
{Rupees in B.3.1 Market T Bill
5 E- 5 a reasury Bills
Note 000)
8.2 Investments by segments The purchase yield an the market treasury bills is 5.99 percent per annum maturing by January 2018, These are held by the
SBP and are eligible for rediscounting.
Federal government securities 8.3.2 Pakistan Investment Bonds
Market treasury bills 8.3.1 4,986,243 These Pakistan investment bonds camy interest rate of 9.25 percent per annum maturing by March 2020, These are held by
- . the SBP and are eligible for rediscounting.
Pakistan investment bonds 8.3.2 1,629,504 ¢ ¢
8.4 Particulars of investment held in erdinary shares of listed companies - available-for-sale
Fully paid-up ordinary shares R—— .
shares ot
Listed 8.4 1,247,542 2017 2017
Unlisted 8.5 52,801 {Rupees in
Note '000)
: Name of investee
Fully paid-up preference shares
Commercial banks
. Habib Bank Limited 450,000 102,568
Unlisted 8.6 300,000 Naticnal Bank of Pakistan 700,000 44 544
MCB Bank Limited 375,000 85,659
Term finance certificates Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited 100,000 3,397
" Financial services
Listed 8.7 444,531 Pakistan Stack Exchange (PSX) 8.4.2 1,602,953 16,060
Unlisted 8.8 1,421,992
Chemicals
= Agritech Limited 843 8,384,283 266,675
Other investments Ittehad Chemicals Limited 989,076 39,332
s M 59 Eon800 Ph;mamsm?:kﬁs Pakistan Limited 150,000 35,189
; mithkline Pakistan Lim 1 3
Commercial Paper 8.10 457,204 '
Fertilizers
Participation term certificates 8.1 6,366 Fauli Fertilizer Company Limited 1,150,000 141,197
Engro Corporation Limited 325,000 104,161
5 P Engro Ferlilizers Limited 450,000 29,419
Strategic investment in joint venture -
Kamoki Energy Limited Non life insurance
Pakistan Reinsurance Company Limited 1,425,000 63,885
; 1 Adamjee Insurance Company Limited 700,000 38,728
Unlisted ordlnary shares - net 8.12.2 404,867 1G! Insurance Limited 130,000 48,286
Atlas Insurance Limited 237,000 19,586
Total investment at cost 11,204,909 i
Al Shaheer Corporation Limited 650,000 35,552
Less: Provision for diminution in value of investments 8.13 (1,321,926)
Investments (net of provisions) 9,882,983 Textlle and composite
Gul Ahmed Textile Mills Limited 450,000 19,252
Unrealised loss on revaluation of 'held-for-trading’ securities (968) Cable and electrical goods
Deficit on revaluation of ‘available-for-sale' securities (186,575) TPL Trakker Limitod 1,300,000 21,953
Total investments 9,695,440 Tecnology and communication
TRG Pakistan Limited 200,000 7912
Power Generation & Distribution
Lalpir Power Limited 962,500 22,257
Pakgen Power Limited 462,000 11,400
Engineering
International Steels Limited 100,000 13,470
Oil and gas
Hi-Tech Lubricants Limited 125,000 11,677
Ol & Gas Development Company Limited 150,000 24141
Attock Refinery Limited 125,000 41,242
1,247 542
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8.4.1 The nominal value of each share held in a listed company Is Rs. 10 per share as at 31 December 2017.

8.4.2 The Pakistan Stock Exchange (PSX) divested 40% of the shares, that were aliotted pursuant lo Stock Exchanges
(Corporatisation, Demutualisation and Integration) Act, 2012, to the Chinese Consortium at a price of Rs. 28 per share. These
shares were held by the Group in the blocked account; the divestment constituted 40% of the total Group's shareholding.
Thereafter, the remaining 20% shares in the blocked account were further divested through book bullding and retail offering.

B8.4.3 Additional 1,008,787 ordinary shares of Agritech Limited (Agritech) at Rs. 35 per share were purchased at a total
consideration of Rs. 35.31 million, under a buy-back arrangement, signed by the investors in vear 2012, during first quarter of
the financial year 2016. The SBP vide its letter No.BPRD/BPD (Policy)/ 2016-14898 dated 14 June 2016 has granted
relaxation fo the investors for recording impalrment on this investment upto 30 June 2017 in phases. Pursuant to the
requirement of this letter, impairment equivalent to 100% of the required amount has been recorded by the Group as at 30
June 2017,

8.5 Particulars of investment held in unlisted ordinary shares - available-for-sale

Based on
audited
Break-up financial  Number of c
ost
value per  statements shares
share as at 2017 a7
(Rupees in
Mame of investee % (Rupees) ‘000)
Shareholding upto 10%
Agro Dairies Limited b % - 300,000 2,301
CEO - Mr. Mukhtar Hussain Rizvi
FTC Management Company Limited 30 June
CED - Mr. Kalim Sheikh 8.1 10.00 2017 50,000 500
Pakistan Textile City Limited 30 June
CEOQ - Mr. Muhammad Hanif 400 3.38 20158 5,000,000 50,000
52,801

* Under litigation

8.5.1 The nominal value of each share held in an unlisted company is Rs.10 per share as at 31 December 2017 and 31 December
2018,

8.5.2 During the year, the Group established a wholly owned subsidiary named Kamoke Powergen (Private} Limited with a paid-up
capital of Rs. 5,000,000 representing 500,000 shares of Rs. 10 each. The Group appointed an SVP grade executive (Mr.
Kashif Shabbir} as Chief Executive Officer (CEO) of KPL. KPL has been established as a Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV) to
abtain power generation license from NEPRA to increase the salability of assets of KEL. SBP's approval was obtained for the
formation of KPL which was granted vide letter No. BPRD/RPDV27366/16 dated 16 November 2016,

8.6 Particulars of investment held in unlisted preference shares - avallable-for-sale

Number of Cost
shares
2017 2017
(Rupees in
Name of investee Note ‘000)
Electricity
Kamoki Energy Limited
{CEO Dr. Umer Masood) 8.12.1 30,000,000 300,000

under liguidation

8.7

These are cumulative, converlible, redeemable and non-participatory preference shares carrying dividend at the rate of 17% per
annum having face value of Rs.10 each. These are redeemable within four years of the allotment date. If preference shares are not
fully redeemed by the issuer in this time period, the remaining part along with the unpaid dividend therson will be convertible at the
option of preference shareholder at par value of Rs.10 into ordinary shares ranking parl passu in all respects with the ordinary shares
except for participation in dividend / bonus disfribution for the period for which preference share dividend has been paid.

The Group has made 100% provision against this investment based on the reasons as explained In note 8.12.

Particulars of investment in listed term finance cerificates (TFCs) - available-for-sale

Number of
certificates Cont
2017 2017
(Rupees in
'000)
Name of investee
Commercial banks
Summit Bank Limited 79,955 398,394
Financial services
Trust Investment Bank Limited 5,000 8,371
Jahangir Siddigul & Company Limited 10,000 23,750
Personal goods (textile)
Azgard Mine Limited 8,000 13,015
444 531
8.71 The face value of each term finance certificate was Rs.5,000 as at 31 Decembar 2017,
Particulars of investment held in unlisted TFCs - available-for-sale
Number of Cont
certificates
2017 2017
Note {Rupees in
Name of investee Name of the chief executive officer '000)
Azgard Nine Limited (4th issue) Mr. Ahmed H. Sheikh 56,000 179,652
Azgard Nine Limited (5th issue) Mr. Ahmed H. Sheikh 16,080 80,400
Dewan Farooque Spinning Mr. Dewan Abdul
Mills Limited Baqi Farooqui 15,000 18,750
Silk Bank Limited Mr. Azmat Tarin 20,000 100,000
New Allied Electronics Industries
{Private) Limited Mr. Mian Pervaiz Akhtar 10,000 15,957
Pakistan International
Airlines Corporation Limited 8.8.1 Dr. Musharral Rasool 35415 110,581
Securlty Leasing Corporation
Limited (3rd issue) Mr. 5. Nauman Akhtar 4,000 3,081
U MicroFinance Bank Limited Syed Umar Vigar 18,000 90,000
Bank Al-Hablb Limited Mansoor All Khan 60,000 300,000
JDW Sugar Mills Limited Mr. Jahangir Khan Tareen 2 11,11
NRSP Micro Finance Bank Limited Mr. Zahoor Hussain Khan 50,000 83,750
JS Bank Limited Mr. Khalid Imran 40,000 199,960
Jahangir Siddiqui & Company Limited Mr. Suleman Lalani 50,000 218,750
1,421,992

8.8.1 No provision has been made agains! the investment on the basis of exposure being guaranteed by the Gavernment as stated

in Annexure V "Guidelines in the matter of classification and provisioning of assets” of Prudential Regulations R-8 of
Corporate | Coammercial Banking.

SBP vide its letter no. BPRD/BPD(Palicy)/2015-T848 dated 04 April 2015 has allowed relaxation to the investors for their
restructured debt (including this PPTFC issue) from the requirements of Prudential Regulation R-B of Corporate / Commercial
Banking upto 31 December 2015. The investment has been restructured through a TFC Investor Agreement effective from 06
May 2015.
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8.9 Particulars of investment held in unlisted sukuks - available-for-sale

31 December 2017

Number of
certificates Cost
Name of investes Mame of the chief executive 2017 2017
(Rupees in
'000)
Security Leasing Corporation
Limited (2nd issue) Ms. Farrah Azeem 8,000 12,323
AGP Limited Ms. Musrat Munshi 500 45,000
Pak Elektron Limited Mr. Murad Saigol 44 600 13,574
Hascol Petroleum Limited Mr. Saleem Butt 20,000 85,000
TPL Trakker Limited Mr. Ali Jameel 50 50,000
Liberty Power Technology Limited Mr. Azam Sakaran| 1,000,000 47 962
253,858
8.10 Particulars of investment held in unlisted commerclal paper - held to maturity
Number of
certificates Cost
MName of investes Name of the chief executive officer 2017 2017
(Rupees in
'000)
Crescent Steel & Allied Products Limited Mr. Ahsan Saleem 2,000 191,322
Pak-Elektron Limited Mr. Murad Saigol 280 265,882
457,204
8.11 Particulars of investment held in unlisted Participation Term Certificates (PTCs) - held-to-maturity
Nu:1_1har of Cost
certificates
2017 2017
(Rupees in
Name of investee Mame of the chief executive officer '000)
Agro Dairies Limited Mr. Mukhtar Hussain Rizvi 12 1,825
Qureshi Vegelable Ghee Mills Limited Mr. Tarlg Mahmud Qureshi 96 4,441
6,366
8.12 As at 31 December 2017, the Group has the following investments [ exposures in Kamoki Energy Limited (KEL) which was a joint

venture project between the Group and Tapal Family. KEL was established in 2009 to own, construct, manage and operate a rental
power generation plant. KEL couid not commence its commercial operations.

On 30 March 2012, a decision was announced by the Honorable Supreme Court of Pakistan (SCP) on the Human Rights Case with
respect o Rental Power Plants (RPPs) which was initiated by the Honorable SCP taking a suc moto action. In this decision, all
contracts of RPPs were declared to be illegal and void ab initio and ordered to be rescinded. KEL had filed a review petiticn against
the decision of the Courl which is pending adjudication.

Keeping In view the above, the Board of Directors in their meeling, held on 09 December 2012 and 10 December 2012, had
deliberated upon different alternatives in detail with respect to the exposure in KEL and thereafier decided lo take exit from KEL. The
Board advised the management to explore options, to sel| the project to a third party.

Consequent to filing of winding up petition, for KEL, by Ameejee Valejee & Sons (Private) Limited along with certain shareholders of
KEL from Tapal Family, Honorable Sindh High Court (SHC) has ordered liquidation of KEL and appointed an Official Assignee.

As per the order of Honorabla SHC, Mfs. Joseph Lobo (Private) Limited was appointed to carry oul fresh valuation of the KEL.
Subsequently, the first and second auctions were held on 29 November 2014 and 08 April 2015 respectively under the jurisdiction of
Official Assignee, which, however, remained uneventiul. Conseguently, the Honorable SHC passed an order dated 28 April 2015 to
sel off the assets of KEL fo the exient of forced sale value of Rs. 1,134 million against claim of the Group. Later, the SHC vide its
letter dated 27 May 2015 directed that the asseis of KEL be handed over to the Group. Subsequent to the said order of SHC certain
claimants filed their claims, amounting to Rs.117.371 million before official assignee, the final outcome of which is still pending.

Book value Book value
before Provision after
Mature of assets / provision held provision
exposures Note (Rupees in ‘000)
Preference shares 8.12.1 300,000 (300,000) -
Ordinary shares 8.12.2 404,867 (404,867) -
Total funded exposure 704,867 (704,867) -

8.12.1 These are unlisted preference shares issued by KEL, the entire issue (100%} of these preference
shares was subscribed by the Group during the year 2011. These have been fully provided due to the

reasons stated above.

8.12.2 This represents 50% shareholding in the ordinary shares (Rs.10 each) of KEL, which has been fully
provided due to the reasons stated above. The book value represents cost of investment amounting to
Rs. 500 million less share of loss on interest in joint venture amounting to Rs. 95.133 million upto 30
June 2012, This investment is designated as strategic investment under the Prudential Regulations for

Corporate / Commercial Banking.

8.13 Particulars of provision

Opening balance
Add: Adjustments during the year

Charge for the year
Less: Reversal during the year
Net charge for the year

Less: Reversal on disposal
Net charge
Closing balance

8.13.1 Particulars of provision in respect of type and segment

Available-for-sale securities
Listed shares (ordinary and preference)
Unlisted shares (ordinary and preference)
Listed / unlisted Term Finance Certificates
Unlisted sukuks

Held-to-maturity securities
Unlisted Participation Term Certificates

Strategic investment in joint venture -
Kamoki Energy Limited
Unlisted ordinary shares - net

Note

8.131

8.13.2
8.13.3
8.134
8.13.5

8.13.6

8.13.7

2017
(Rupees in
'000)

1,296,736

45,402

45,402

(20,212)
25,190
1,321,926

225,842
352,301
320,227

12,323

6,366

404,867
1,321,926

Annual Report 2017 @



8.13.2

8133

8.134

8.13.5

B.13.6

813.7

Particulars of provision against listed shares
(ordinary and preference shares)

Opening balance

Charge for the year

Less: Reversal for the year

Net charge for the year

Less: Reversal / adjustment of provision on sale of
available-for-sale ordinary and preference shares

Closing balance

Particulars of provision against unlisted shares
(ordinary and preference shares)

Opening balance

Charge for the year

Less: Reversal during the year

Met charge for the year

Less: Reversal of provision on sale of
available-for-sale ordinary shares

Closing balance

Particulars of provision against listed / un-listed TFCs

Opening balance

Charge for the year

Less: Reversal during the year
Met charge for the year

Less: Reversal on settlement
Closing balance

Particulars of provision against unlisted sukuks

Opening balance

Charge for the year

Less: Reversal during the year
Net reversal for the year
Closing balance

Particulars of provision against unlisted PTCs

Opening balance

Charge for the year

Less: Reversal during the year
Net charge for the year
Closing balance

Particulars of provision against strategic investment
in joint venture - Kamoki Energy Limited -
unlisted ordinary shares - net

Opening balance

Charge for the year

Less: Reversal during the year
Net charge for the year
Closing balance

@ PaklLibya

Note

2017
(Rupees in
‘000)

200,262

45,402

45,402

(19,822)
225,842

352,691

390
352,301

320,227

320,227

12,323

12,323

6,366

6,366

404,867

404,867

8.14

8.14.1

8.14.2

Quality of securities / entities
Held-for-trading securities

Government securities
Market treasury bills

Avallable-for-sale securities

Government securities
Pakistan Investment bonds (PIBs)

Lis ordinary shares
Commercial banks

Habib Bank Limited

Mational Bank of Pakistan

MCB Bank Limited

Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited

Financial services
Invest Capital Investment Bank Limited**
Pakistan Stock Exchange (PSX)

Chemicals
Agritech Limited
Ittehad Chemicals Limited

Pharmaceuticals
Glaxosmithkiine Pakistan Limited

Fertilizers

Faujl Fertillzer Company Limited
Engro Corporation Limited
Engro Fertilizers Limited

Food and personal care products
Al Shaheer Corporation Limited

Textile and Composite
Gul Ahmed Textlle Mills Limited

Mon-life insurance

Pakistan Reinsurance Company Limited
Adamjee Insurance Company Limited
1GI Insurance Company Limited

Atlas Insurance Limited

Cable and electrical goods
TPL Trakker Limiled

Power generation and distribution
Lailpir Power Limited
Pakgen Power Limited

Technology and Communication
TRG Pakistan

Engineering
International Steel Limited

Oil and gas

Qil & Gas Development Company Limited
Altock Refinery Limited

Hi Tech Lubricants

2017
Market value Ratings
{Rupees in
'000)
4,985,276 Unrated
1,624,935 Unrated
75,191 AAA
33,992 AAA
79,620 AAA
3,450 AA+
35,906 Unrated
40,831 Unrated
25,796 Unrated
25,182 Unrated
90,977 AA
89,294 AA
30,474 Al-
14,443 Unrated
16,686 Unrated
60,463 AA
36,379 A+
38,075 AA
18,116 Unrated
9,295 A-
21,685 AA
10,224 AA
5,920 Unrated
10,637 A%
24,419 AAA
29,265 AA
8,875 Unrated
835,195

Annual Report 2017 @



2017 2017
Market value Ratings Market value Ratings
{Rupees in (Rupees in
‘000) ‘000)
Unlisted ordinary shares 8.14.4 Investment in joint venture
Agro Dairies Limited * .
FTC Management Company Limited 500 Unrated amuoki Ene mited
MNew - VIS Credit Information Unlisted ordinary shares -
Services (Private) Limited * - sirategic Investment - net * . Unrated
Pakistan Textile City Limited * -
500 Total 9,695,440
* 100% provision has been made against these investments.
nli n hares
Eloctricity Note: In case of investments, where instrument is unrated, entity rating has been stated, if applicable.
Kamoki Energy Limited * . Unrated 5 ” . .
8.15  Information relating to TFCs and sukuks required to be disclosed as part of the financial statements under the SBP's
Listed Term Finance Certificat B30 circular no. 4 dated 17 February 2006, is given in Annexure "I* to thesa financial statemants.
Commercial banks 207
Summit Bank Limited 402,892 A- s (Rupees in '000)
ADVANCE
Financial services .
Trust Investment Bank Limited* - in Pakistan
Jahangir Siddiqui & Company Limited 23,750 AA+ Lodrs 4,493,456
Parsonal goodi (extile) Net investment in finance lease 92 212,921
Azgard Nine Limited - 3rd issue * : Stlonw e L L
T Consumer loans and advances 58,270
* Long-term financing of export oriented projects - (LTF-EOP) 60,179
itied T i Certi Long-term financing facility (LTFF) 162,500
Advances - gross 5,137,036
Azgard Nine Limited (4th issue) * - Unrated 4 _— :
Azgard Nine Limited (5th issue) * - Unrated AR mefw" gty ; -
gt Tty e o Mon-performing advances - specific provision 93 1,543,715
Dewan Faroogue Spinning Mills Limited - Unrated -
b Consumer loans and advances - general provision 931 237
JOW Sugar Mills Limited 1,111 A 1543 952
Jahangir Siddiqui & Company Limited 218,750 AA+ s
Silk Bank Limited 100,000 A-
7 Adva - net of provisi 593,084
U MicroFinance Bank Limited 90,000 BB+ el e 3
Bank Al-Habib Limited 300,000 AA+
JS Bank Limited 199,960 A+ .
New Allied Electronics 91 Particulars of advances (grossj
Industries {Private) Limited * -
NRSP Micro Finance Bank Limited 93,750 A sl i i
Pakistan International Airlines 'g 5137038
Corporation Limited 110,581 Unrated et
SECIU!I_IY Laasm_g CorErorailun 9.1.2 Short-term (for upto one year) 916,916
Limited (3rd issue) - Unrated o
124,152 Long-term (for over one year) 4220120
gl 5,137,036
Unlisted sukuks
Pak Elektron Limited (2nd issue) 13,574 At S3 et imowstvent i fimencs love
Hascol Patroleum 85,000 AA o e X
AGP Limited 45,000 A The periodic break-up of minimum lease payments due |s as follows: —
TPL Trakker Limited 30,000 A¥
Liberty Power Technology Limited 2::.:: At Later than one
. Not later than and less than Over five
one year five years years Total
8.14.3 Held-to-maturity securities diiiiaiiisaicnanes TR T DO o
- Lease rentals recelvable 195,637 30,754 - 226,301
Unilsted Participation Residual value 51,960 9,722 z 61,682
Term Finance Certificates Minimum lease payments 247,597 40,478 z 288,073
Agro Dairies Limited o . Unrated Financlal charges for future petiods 73,321 1,831 z 75,152
Qureshi Vegetabla Ghee Mills Limited - Unrated Prasent valls ot minirur
lease payments 38,645 - 212,921
Crescent Steel &_Alliod Products Limited 191,322 A 9.2.1 The Group has entered into lease agreements with various companies for lease of vehicles and planl and
Pak-Elektron Limited 265,882 At machinery. The amounts recoverable under these arrangements are receivable by the year 2019 and carry mark-
457,204 up al rates ranging between 8.09 to 9.97 perceni per annum. In respect of the aforementioned finance leases,
the Company holds an aggregate sum of Rs.61.682 million as security deposits on behalf of the lessees which
are included under 'other liabilities' (refer note 15},
@ FPakLibya Annual Report 2017 @




In terms of sub-section (3) of Section 33A of the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962,
the statement in respect of written-off loans or any other financial relief of five hundred

9.4 Details of loans written off of Rs.500,000 and above (refer Annexure II)

2017
(Rupees in
'‘000)

Note
37

severally or jointly with any other persons

directors, associated companies etc.

thousand rupees and above allowed to a person(s) during the year ended 31 December
of the Group or any of them either

2017 is given in Annexure Il.
Debts due by directors, executives or officers

9.5 Particulars of loans and advances to

150,973
49,454
(50,718)
149,709

59,382
27,353
(35,549)

(8,196)
51,686
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Repayments / adjustments during the year

Amount due at end of the year
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2017
(Rupees in

'000)

10. OPERATING FIXED ASSETS

78,395

101

Property and equipment

Intangible assets

2,907
81,302

10.3

10.1 Property and equipment

Net book
value as at

Accumulated depreciation

Cost

31
December

As at 31 As at 01 Charge for As at 31
December December

Additions /

As at 01

January the year/ (o

(deletions) /
adjustments

January

2017 disposal) 2017 2017 Rate (%)
{Rupees in '000)

2017

2017

31 December 2017

in

1,348

604

1,951 582 22

1,951

Leasehold land (note 10.2.1)

5

81,826 57,466 1,865 59,331 22,495

872

80,954

Buildings on leasehold land

{note 10.2.1)

49,294 35,592 4,224 38,622 10,672 10,15& 25
(1,195)

2,264

(1,195)

48,225

Furniture and fixtures

10 & 15

9,076 4,818

1,153

13,894 8,238

1,007

13,202

Electrical appliances

[~
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e
=
@
E
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=
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30

31,773 23,080 2,573 25,653 6,120

3,169

28,604

Computer equipment

25&33.3

32,740

50,163

22,216 82,903 29,710 20,494

60,728

Motor vehicles

(41)

30,390
(1,551)

(41)

78,395

183,925

262,320 155,086

29,528
(1,551)

10.1.1 The transfer of title to leasehold land and building thereon in respect of the Group's premises at the Finance and Trade Centre, Karachi in favour of the

Group is pending.

10.1.2 Assets having cost of Rs. 96.38 are fully depreciated.

10.2 The foliowing are operating fixed assels having cost of Rs.1 million or above / net book value of Rs.250,000 or above, or those sold to employees and key

managemant personnal durng the year;

Sale
Cost  Accumulsted Netbook  proceeds Gain!  Mode of
Description depreciation value (loss) dispesal Particulars of purchaser
wmsmm e, | RUpOES (0 000)
Key Managament Personnal
Furniture and fixtures
House hold furnishing tems * 183 183 - - = Policy Mr, Atif Mehmood™
House hold furnishing items * 177 177 - - = Paticy Mr. Nasim Ahmed Khan**
House hold furnishing items * 475 A75 - - - Policy Mr. Muhammad Ali**
House hold fumishing items * 360 360 - - - Palicy — Syed Ghazanfar Ali*
* The house furnishing facility is glven to employses {SVP and above) under human resource policy of the Graup.
** Thess are related parties of the Group.
10.3 Intangible assets
Cost Accumulated Amortisation Net book
value as at
As at 01 As at 31 Asat01  Forthe As at 31 3
January Additions December January year December  December
(Rupees in '000)
Compuder software 2017 4,683 1,325 6,008 1,855 1,146 3101 2,907
2017
{Rupees in
MNaote "00a)
11. DEFERRED TAX ASSET - nat
Deferrad credits arising in respect of:
Net investmant in finance leases (28,782)
Accelerated tax depreciation 1,206
Deferred debits arising in respect of:
Provision for compensated absences 3,825
Provision for advances, investments and other assets 80,242
56,491
Deferrad tax asset on revaluation of available-for-sale investmants - net 18 28,833
114 85,330
—_—t

111 As al 31 Decamber 2017, the Group has available provision for advances, imvestments and othar assels amounting to Rs.1,801.99 million and unused tax
Iosses upto 31 December 2017 amounting to Rs. 2,007.45 milion. However, the management has prudently recognized the deferred tax assst only o the

extent given above based on the absorplion / admissibility of the same as forecasted in the projections approved by the Board of Directors.
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2017

Note (Rupees in "000)

12. OTHER ASSETS

Income / mark-up / return receivable in local currency 155,758
Security deposits 4,642
Short-term advances 16,540
Prepayments 3,588
Advance taxation 228,616
Non banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims 121 1,179,360
Other receivables 31,601
1,620,105
Less: Provision held against other assets 12.2 (29,628)
1,590,477

12.1 This includes non-banking assets acquired under satisfaction of claim in relation to KEL's exposure (refer

12.2

note 8.12 for further defails). These assets comprise of land measuring 14.125 acre, building structure
and power plant. The project is situated at Kamoki, District Gujranwala, Punjab, Pakistan.

Considering the strategic importance of KEL, consequent to transfer of the said assets in Group's name
the management presented a Management plan, highlighting all aspects, regarding the Power Project
Assets to the Board of Directors. In continuation to the efforts made for the disposal, management
appointed M/s. Igbal A. Nanjee for a new valuation as at December 2017. As per the new valuation the
market value of these assets were Rs.1.799 billion whilst forced sale value is Rs.1.286 billion.

The management had also submitted a time-bound action plan to SBP for the disposal of the said non-
banking assets in which it was anticipated that the assets will be disposed off before financial year end
2017. However, that could not materialise therefore management revisited its plan and commited to
dispose off these assets by May 2018. A wholly owned subsidiary has already been setup during the
year to obtain a generation license to increase the salability of these assets.

2017
(Rupees in '000)

Provision against other assets

Opening balance 14,091
Charge for the year 26 18,065
Less: Reversal during the year (2,528)
Net reversal for the year 15,537
Less: Amount written off -
Closing balance 29,628

13. BORROWINGS

1341

In Pakistan 13.1 14,367,132
Outside Pakistan -
14,367,132
Particulars of borrowings with respect to currencies
In local currency 14,367,132
In foreign currencies -
14,367,132

2017

Note (Rupees in '000)

13.2 Details of borrowings

Secured
Borrowings from State Bank of Pakistan under:

Long-term financing facility (LTFF) 13.2.1 162,500
Repurchase agreement borrowings - Repo 13.2.2 5,368,021
Borrowings from financial institutions 13.2.3 7,787,500
Bai Muajjal 13.24 299,111

13,617,132
Unsecured
Clean borrowings 750,000
14,367,132

13.2.1 The Group has entered into agreements for financing with State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) for
long term financing facility (LTFF) to customers. According to terms of respective agreements,
the SBP has the right to receive outstanding amount from the Group at the date of maturity of
finances by directly debiting current account maintained by the Group with the SBP. Such
financing shall carry interest at the rate of 2.5 percent per annum.

13.2.2 The Group has arranged borrowings from various financial institutions against sale and
repurchase of Government Securities. The outstanding facilities as at statement of financial
position date are due for maturity on various dates latest by April 2018. The rate of mark-up on
these facilities is 5.9 to 6.05 percent per annum.

13.2.3 This includes borrowings from financial institutions as under:

Rs.3,787.5 million representing long term borrowings from certain financial institutions which
are secured by way of first pari passu charge over assets of the Group with 25 and 30 percent
margin on the facility amount. They carry a mark-up rate of six months' KIBOR plus 0.25
percent to 1.00 percent per annum payable on semi-annual basis. As at 31 December 2017, the
applicable interest rates were 6.40 to 7.17 percent per annum. These borrowings are due for
maturity latest by August 2022,

13.2.4 Rs. 299.11 million representing financing through Bai Muajjal of Sukuk from financial institution
secured against Government Securities due for repayment on 08 November 2018,
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Note
14. DEPOSITS AND OTHER ACCOUNTS

Customers
Certificates of investment - (in local currency)

Financial institutions
Certificates of investment - (in local currency)
14.1 Particulars of deposits

In local currency
In foreign currency

2017
(Rupees in "000)

39,000

39,000

39,000

39,000

14.2 The profit rates on these Cerlificates of Investment (COls) is 6.10 percent per annum. These COls are

due for maturity on 09 August 2018.
15. OTHER LIABILITIES

Mark-up / return / interest payable in local currency
Accrued liabilities

Employees' compensated absences 151
Security deposits against investment in finance lease 9.2.1
Staff retirement gratuity 15.1 & 32.3

Other advances and deposits

109,948
23,972
15,384
61,682

(11,117)

2,014

201,883

15.1 This is based on actuarial valuation carried out as of 31 December 2017 for regular employees.

16. SHARE CAPITAL
16.1 Authorised share capital

Number of shares
2017

800,000 Ordinary shares of Rs.10,000 each

16.2 Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital

Ordinary shares of Rs.10,000 each

471,836 Fully paid in cash
142,342 Issued as bonus shares
614,178

16.3 SBP on behalf of the GOP and the LAFICO on behalf of the State of Libya each held 307,089

ordinary shares of the Group as at 31 December 2017.

@ PaklLibya

2017
(Rupees in "000)

8,000,000

4,718,360
1,423,420

6,141,780

17. RESERVES

Capital reserve - statutory reserve
As at 01 January 302,094
Add: Appropriation of profit

2017
{Rupees in
Note ‘000)

171 9,556
311,650

17.1 The statutory reserve during the year is created equal to 20% of profil after taxation In compliance with the applicable
legal requirements.

18. SURPLUS ON REVALUATION OF ASSETS - net of tax

Surplus on revaluation of ‘avallable-for-sale’ securities
Pakistan Investment Bonds (4,568)
Market Treasury Bills

(4,568)

Related deferred tax 1,371

Listed companies - fully paid-up ordinary and preference shares {186,504)

Listed TFCs

(3,197)

4,498
{182,006)

Related deferred tax 27,468

(154,538)
515?,735!

19. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

18.1 Contingencies

18441

18.1.2

In financial year 2014, the Group received the appeal effect orders with respect to the Appellate Tribunal
Infand Revenue (ATIR) orders dated 20 February 2013 in relation to tax years 2004, 2005, 2006 and 2008
where the outcome was in favour of the Group in relation to issues of loans and advances written-off,
apportionment of expendilure and loans to executives/officers and the resulting refunds were adjusted against
the fax liability for the tax years 2009 and 2010. Based on the decision of ATIR, overall resulting reliel and
brought forward losses, there was ‘nil' additional tax liability remaining for tax years 2009 and 2010, In June
2015, the Additional Commissioner Inland Revenue issued orders under section 221/124 of the ITO for the
tax years 2003 to 2010 to give the appeal effect of the ATIR order. Upon Group's rectification application, a
rectified order was issued which resulted in a refund of Rs.122.777 million. The Tax department has filed the
references before Honorable High Court of Sindh against the order of ATIR.

For the tax year 2011, Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue (DCIR) vide order dated 30 August 2013
passed under section 122(1) read with section 177 of Income Tax Ordinance (ITQ) issued the amended
assessment order and raised a demand of Rs.84.392 million. The demand mainly pertains to additions made
for apportionment of expenses to dividend income/capital gains/(losses), disallowance of interest payable on
accrual basis, provision for loans and advances and loss on termination of leased assets etc, The Group filed
a refund claim of Rs.70.53 million for the tax year 2011 through a revised tax retum; however, it did not
recognise the said additional refund on a prudent basis. The Group filed an appeal with Commissioner Inland
Revenue Appeals CIR (A) on 14 October 2013, The CIR (A) disposed the appeal vide his order No. 22 dated
26 December 2016. In relation to the said appeal, CIR (A) confirmed the treatment of DCIR on certain issues,
whilst few matters were decided in favour of the Group. Therefore, an appeal before ATIR to contest the
various treatments adopted In the above mentioned arder lssued by CIR(A) has been filed in addition to a
rectification application.
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19.1.3 For the tax year 2013, the Group recelved a tax demand of Rs.24.3 million on 11 November 2014 vide order
under section 122 (5A) of the ITO. Against this order, rectification application was filed vide letter T-2798/2012
dated 12 December 2014 wherain it has been highlighted that the issue of apportionment of expenditure
against dividend income and capital gain has been decided in favour of the Group by ATIR. Also, the Tax
department did not consider the payment of tax of Rs.13.47 million. In June 2015, a rectification order under
section 221 of the ITO was passed by the Additional Commissioner Inland Revenue lo give effect of
apportionment of financial charges and tax credits. Consequently the tax department revised its tax demand
and reduced it to Rs.13.198 million. The Group filed an appeal with Commissioner Inland Revenue Appeals
(CIRA) on 22 December 2014. The CIR (A) disposed the appeal vides his order No. 23 dated 26 December
2016. In relation to the said appeal, the CIR (A) confirmed the treatment of the ACIR on certain issues whilst
few matters were decided in favour of the Group. Therefore, an appeal before ATIR to contest the various
treatments adopted in the above mentioned order issued by CIR{A) has been filed in addition to a rectification
application.

19.1.4 For the tax year 2014, the ACIR passed an order wherein he demanded tax of Rs.57.866 million disallowing
the provision for non-performing loan and advances, apportionment of financial and administrative expenses
against dividend income and capital gain, penalty imposed by the State Bank of Pakistan, treated the
expenditure incurred on privately placed TFCs as capital expenditure and charged WWF. The Group filed an
appeal with Commissioner Inland Revenue Appeals (CIRA) on 22 November 2016. The CIR (A) disposed the
appeal vides his order No. 13 dated 16 January 2017. In relation to the said appeal, the CIR (A) confirmed the
treatment of the ACIR on certain issues whilst few matters were decided in favour of the Group. Therefare, an
appeal before ATIR to contest the various treatments adopted in the above mentioned order issued by CIR(A)
has been filed.

No provision has been made in these financial statements in respect of above mentioned Income tax matters.
as the management is hopeful of a favourable outcome on these matters, considering the appellate history
and tax advisor's opinion.

12.1.5 The Group, through its lawyer, has challenged in the Court of Sindh (SHC) section 2{g)(V), 5(3), 5(4) and &(1)
of the Sindh Workers Welfare Fund Act, 2014 to be unlawful and void ab Initlo. The Court as an interim
measure passed the order that no coercive action shall be taken against the Group till next date of hearing as
suit No 610/2017, in which almost 20 Financial Institutions have filed a Composite Suit challenging the same
law, requires hearing.

19.1.6 Claims not acknowledged as debt as referred to in note 8.12 to the financial slatements.

2017
(Rupees in
Note '000)
12.2 Commitments
19.2.1 Direct credit substitutes
Contingent liabilities in respect of guarantees given favouring:
Govemment .
Others 861,571

861,571

This represents the guarantees issusd on behalfl of KEL, a joint venture. During the year 2012, a decision was
announced by the Honorable Supreme Court of Pakistan (Court), in which all contracts of RPPs were
declared to be illegal and void ab initio and as a result of which the guarantee remained Inoperative.
Consequently, as per the opinion of the legal advisor, there cannot be any exposure of the Group under the
same (refer note 8.12).

2017
Note (Rupees in
'000)
19.2.2 Trade - related contingent liabilities
Contingent liabilities in respect of letters of credit favouring:
Govermnment .
Others 104,666
104,666
19.3 Commitments to extend credit 1,021,967
19.4 Unsettled investment transactions for:
Purchase of Pakistan investment bonds -
Sale ( purchase of listed ordinary shares 28,890
28,890
19,5 Commitments for acquisition of fixed assets 2,550
19.6 Commitments against other services 13,879

19.7 Contingent Assets
Thera were no contingent assets as at the statement of financial position date.
20. DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS

The Group did not enter into any interest rate swaps, forward rate agreements and foreign exchange options during the year,

2017
(Rupees in
‘000)
21. MARK-UP | RETURN / INTEREST EARNED
On leans and advances to
cuslomers 219,041
On investments in
"held-for-trading” securities 65,714
‘available-for-sale’ securities 653,356
On deposits with customers / financial institutions 70,940
On lendings through reverse repo agresment 844
Income on bank deposits 745

1,016,924

22. MARK-UP / RETURN / INTEREST EXPENSED

Deposits and other accounts 16,060
On borrowings through repa agreement 253,134

On other borrowings
Long-term {includes PPTFC) 235,715
Short-term 247,384
752,303

23. GAIN ON SALE OF SECURITIES - NET

Government securities

Market Treasury Bills 62
Pakistan Investment Bonds 101,563
101,645

Listed shares 132,306
Listed preference shares 15,365

TFCs, sukuks and mutual Tund units -
249,916
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2017

(Rupees in
'000)
24. OTHER INCOME
Gain on sale of operating fixed assets 15
Rental income 3,317
Bad debts recovered -
Miscellanaous 6,909
10,240
25. ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
Salaries, allowances and benefits 184,737
Charge for defined benefit plan 326 (11,075)
Contribution to defined contribution plan a3 7.152
Executive directors’ remuneration (including remuneration -
of the Managing Director and Deputy Managing Director) 107,273
Mon-executive directors' fee and remuneration 34 3,418
Directors orlentation and training expense -
Beard meeting expenses 24701
Incorporation expenses pertaining to KPL 444
Traveling and lodging 1,963
Rent and ulilities 6,907
Legal, consultancy and professional services 11,336
Communications 5723
Repairs and maintenance 11,398
Motor vahicia axpenses 2,712
Business development and other expenses 1,386
Insurance 3,965
Software maintenance expenses 2,666
Bank charges 405
Printing and stationery 2,895
Advertisement, periedicals, membership dues and publicity 3,596
Auditors' remuneration 251 1,585
Depreciation 10.1 30,390
Amortisation 10.3 1,146
Exchange (gain) / loss (130)
Others 175
T 404,766
25.1 Awuditors’ remuneration
Audit fee
Company 740
Consolidation 30
Subsidiary 30
Half yearly raview fee 300
Special certifications and sundry advisory services 194
Qut of pockel expenses 186
1,480
Add: Sales tax on services 105
1,585
26. OTHER PROVISIONS / WRITE OFFS
Reversal of provision against non-banking assets acquired
in satisfaction of claims
Loss on non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims 26.1
Others 15,537
15,537

26.1 As explained in note 8.12, the Group acquired non-banking assets of KEL in satisfaction of its secured credit of
Rs.1,250 million, These assets were acquired under the order of the High Court of Sindh at the forced sale value of
Rs.1,134 million, whereas the market value of these assets amounted to Rs.1,417.60 milllon based on valuation
dated 11 October 2014 conducted by M/s. Joseph Lobo (Private) Limited.

@ PaklLibya

27. OTHER CHARGES

28.

289,

30.

31.

32,

Arrangement fee and documentation charges
Brokerage commission

Expenses for privately placed term finance cerlificates
Expenses pertaining to KEL

Penalty imposed by SBP

TAXATION

For the year
- CGurrent

- Prior

- Deferred

2017
(Rupees in
Note '000)

3,667
4,515
470
20,875

29,771

281 65,329
{30,021)

1,036

36,344

28.1 Due to current year tax loss, the Group has made provision for applicable minimum tax and income tax at fixed rates.
Therefore, relationship between tax expense and accounting profit for the year has not been presented.

EARNINGS PER SHARE - BASIC AND DILUTED

Eamings for the year after taxation {Rupees in thousand)

Weighted average number of ordinary shares in Issue

Eamings per share (Rupees)

47,3086

614,178

29.1 77

291 There were no convertible dilutive potential ordinary shares outstanding as at 31 December 2017,

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and balances with freasury banks
Balances with other banks
Term deposit receipts (TDRs)

5 28,328
] 88,495
7 3,550,000

3,666,823

30.1 These term deposit receipts (TDRs) are due for maturity on various dates in January 2018 to March 2018.

STAFF STRENGTH

Permanent

Temporary { on contractual basis

Daily wagers

Group's own staff strength at the end of the year
Outsourced

Total staff strength

DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN
Staff retirement gratuity
Discount rate

Expected rate of increase in salary levels
Expected rate of retum on plan assets

2017
(Numbers)

81

1
98
13

1

2017
Percent per
annum

8.25
6.75
8.25
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The disclosures made in notes 32.1 to 32.10 are based on the information included in the actuarial valuation as at 31
December 2017.

321

32.2

323

324

32.5

32.6

32.7

32.8

32.9

Mortality rate
The rates assumed were based on the State Life Insurance Company 2001-2005 with one year age set back.
Expected return on plan assets

The expected return on plan assets is based on the market expectations and depends upon the asset portfolio of the
Company, at the beginning of the period, for returns over the entire life of related obligation.

2017
(Rupees in
Note '000)

Reconciliation of amount payable te defined benefit plan
Present value of defined benefit obligation 324 110,647
Fair value of plan assets azs (121,764)

(11,117}
The movement in the defined benefit obligation

over the year is as follows:
Present value of abligation at the beginning of the year 130,755
Currant service cost 326 10,408
Interest cost 8,785
Benefit paid (19,171)
Past service cost (21,514)
Actuarial loss on obligation 1,384
Present value of obligation at the end of the year 110,647
The movement in the fair value of plan
assets of the year is as follows:
Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year 125,582
Expected return on plan assets 32283286 8,754
Contributions 9,508
Benefits paid (19,171)
Actuarlal (loss) on assets 3210 (2,910)
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year 121,764
The amount recognised in the profit and loss account is as follows:
Current service cost 3z2.4 10,408
Interest cost (net) 324 &325 M
Past service cost 21,514
11,075

Aclual return on plan assets during the year was Rs.5.844 million.

The current year expense | net favourable balance of Rs. 11,075 million includes a past service cost of Rs. 21.514
miliion. As per the decision taken by the Board, an amount of Rs, 12.978 million pertaining to the MD / CEO for his
entitlement Ll November 18, 2012 based on the salary as at that ime as SEVP has been paid. Now he will be
entitied for gratuity from his seftiement date till his date of retirement as MD on last drawn salary will be payable to
him.

Plan assets comprise the following:

The following information is based on the latest un-audited financial statements of the Fund:

2017
Rupees in
Particulars ‘000 Percent
Cash and bank balances 3170 2.6%
Market treasury bills 85,693 T70.4%
Pakistan investment bonds - 0.0%
Units of mutual funds 1,025 0.8%
Certificates of Investment 31,875 26.2%
~ 121,763 100%

@ PaklLibya

32.10 Amounts for the current year of the present value of the defined benefit obligation, the fair value of plan assets,

surplus / deficit and experience adjustments arising thereon are as follows:

Present value of defined
benefit obligation

Fair value of plan assets
Net defined benefit obligation

Liability recognised in
the balance sheet

Experience adjustments
on plan assets

32.11 Staff benevelent fund

Contribution from the Group
Contribution from the employees
33. DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN

Contribution from the Graup
Contribution from the employees

33.1 Provident Fund Disclosures

The following information is based on the latest financial statements of the Fund:

Size of the Fund - tolal assets
Cost of investment made
Fair value of investments

Percentage of investment made

33.2 The break-up of fair value of investments is:

Bank balances

Market treasury bills

Pakistan investment bonds

Certificate of Investment (COls) - at ammortised cost
Units of mutual funds

33.3 The investments out of provident fund have been made in accordance with the provisions of section 227 of the

Companies Act, 2017 and the rules formulated for this purpose.

2017
(Rupees In
Note '000)

110,647
121,764
232,410

!11,11?!

32.5 2,910

125
125

7,152
7,152
14,304

Unaudited
2017

(Rupees in
'000)
95,520
92,588
94,475

98%

Unaudited
2017

Rupees in
000 Percent

1,887 2.0%
61,590 65.2%
- 0.0%
20,300 21.5%
10,698 11.3%

94,475 100%
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34, COMPENSATION OF DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

35.

Non-executive
Executive Directors Directors Executives *
~ Managing Deputy
Director Managing Directors

2017 2017 2017 017
eeeemee [RUPEES N DY) rormrrmmm e

Fees and remuneration - - 3,418 .
Managerial remuneration 44,009 54,440 - 154,851
Charged far dafined

benefit plan 107 1,174 - 8,027
Contribution to defined

contribution plan 1,304 1,480 - 3,785
Employes compensaled absences T83 1,154 - 2,811
Rant and

house maintenance 905 1,467 - -
Utilitiea 1,525 1,510 - -
Medical 308 21 - 5,912
Others 1,563 220 - 1,083

50,505 61,656 3,418 176,469

MNumber of persons 1 1 4 64

The Managing Director and Deputy Managing Director (Executive Committes) are also entitled to usage of certain Group maintained assets as per thelr
terms of employment.

Out of lotal Rs.61.656 millon, Rs. 27.161 milion |s related to compensation during the peried to former Deputy Managing Director of the Group. His
directorship had besn concluded at 31 March 2017 and a new Daputy Managing Direclor resumed the office.

Executive Commitiee members and executives are entitled to certain employment benefits referred 1o in note 4.9 as may be applicable under the terms of
the employment and Human Resource policy.

* Executive means employeas other than the Managing Director, Deputy Managing Director and Directors, whose basic salary exceeds five hundred
thousand rupees in a financial year. Also Included hersin |s compensation to 23 employees which are not involved in managerial activities; however their
total compensation during the year exceeds Rs.500,000. Total compensation to these employees amounts to Rs. 23.636 million.

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Fair value hierarchy

Level1 wvaluation technigue using quoted market price: financial instruments with quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical instruments in active
markets that the Group can access at the measurement date.

Level 2 wvaluation technigue using ebservable inputs: financial instruments with quoted prices for similar instruments in active markets or quoted
pricas for identical or similar instruments In inactive markets and financial instruments valued using models whera all significant inputs are
obsarvable.

Leval 3 wvaluation technique with significant unobservable inpuls: financial instruments valued using valuation techniques where one or mare
significant Inputs are unobservable,

The following table sets out the financial instruments by fair valus hierarchy,

Financial instruments carred af fair value and basis of valuation

36.

ir.

2017

With
Quoted Using significant
market price observable unobservable
(unadjusted) inputs inputs Total

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
s (Rupoes in "000)

Recurring Fair Value Measurements

Financial Assets - Investments

- Fully paid up ordinary shares 794,364 40,831 5,500 840,695
- Government securities - 6,610,211 - 6,610,211
- Debentures and corporate debl instruments - 426,642 - 426,642
Nan Financial Assets
Non-Banking Assels acguired in satisfaction of claims - 1,798,923 - 1,798,923

794,364 8,876,607 5,500 9,676,471
SEGMENT DETAIL WITH RESPECT TO BUSINESS ACTIVITY
The segment analysis with respect to business activity is as follows:

2017
SME &
Corporate Capital Retail
finance Treasury Markets Banking Others Total
[Rupees in "000)

Total income 273,423 794,924 171,503 39,175 (8,534) 1,270,401
Total expenses (205,466) (596,206) (25,563) (41,082) (318,525) (1,186,842)
Net income / (loss) 67,957 198,718 145,940 {1,907) (327,059) 83,649
Segmenl assels (gross) 8,193,912 10,856,019 796,312 390,477 1,724 679 22,081,388
Segmeni non-performing loans 1,938,451 - - 42,449 - 1,980,900
Sagment non-parforming Investments 1,356,392 39,430 - - - 1,395,822
Segment provision required & held on loans 1,505,572 - - 38,380 - 1,543,952
Segment provision required & held investments 1,315,560 39,430 - - - 1,354,990
Segmeni llabilities 3,163,359 11,019,128 130 389,544 35,856 14,608,015
Net assels 4,554,441
Raturn on net assats 1.84%
Cost of funds (%) 8.2T%
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Group has related party relationship with its joint venture, state controlied antitias (by virlue of governmant shareholding), companies with common
diractorships, employeas banafit plans, key managemant personnel and its diractors.

The Group enters into transactions with related parties in the normal course of business. The fransactions were camed out at contracted rates,
Transactions with key management personnel are govemed by the applicable policies and { or terms of employment / office. Key management personnel
hereln inciude Managing Director, Deputy Managing Director, Group Secretary and Head of Dapartments.

Contribution to approved defined benefit pian and defined contribution plan, post employment benefil, are disclosed In note 32 and note 33 respectively
to these consolidated financial statements. Employees’ compensated absences, other long - term bensfit, are disciosed in note 15 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Transactions with Owners have been disclosed In 'Statement of Changes in Equity’.

Remuneration, short term amployes benafil, to the Executives is disclosed in note 34 1o the consolidated financial statemeants.

Details of transactions during the year, other than those which have been disclosed alsewhere in these consoclidated financial statements, and balances
with related parties are as follows:
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37.1 Balances outstanding
Bank balance

Lendings to financial institutions

Cpening balance

Placements / reverse repo made
during the year

Placements ( reverse repo matured
during the year

Closing balance

Investments

Cpening balance

Investment made during the year

Investment redeemed / disposed off /
adjusted during the year

Closing balance

Pravision for diminution
in value of investments

Surplus on revaluation
of investments

Advances

Opening balance (3)

Additions during the year

Settled / (repaid) during the year (3)
Closing balance

Provision held against advances

Other assets
Mark-up receivable

- Gross

- Suspended [ provided
Closing balance

Amount receivable from defined
contribution plan

Other recelvables (5)

Advance laxation

Other advances

Opening balance
Additions during the year (4)
Settled / repaid during the year (4)
Closing balance

Provision against other assets

31 December 2017

Key State
management Joint venture controlled Other related
Directors personnel {1) 12) entities parties
(Rupees in "000)

- . » 28,298 -
- - . 350,000 -
- - . {350,000) -
- - 704,867 11,201,958 500
- - . (22,829,037) .
- - 704,867 (11,627,079) 500
- - 704,867 50,000 -
: - : (18,265) -
- 59,882 . - -
- 27,353 . - -
- (35,549) " - e
- 51,686 . - =
- 742 - 41,420 -
- - - (3,002) -
- 742 - 38418 -
- 26,110 » . &
& & - 228,616 -
- 25,548 - = &
- Bay - = &
- {25,907) - . &
- 538 - - F

a7z

Borrowings from financial institutions

Cpening balance - - - 2,260,256 -
Borrowings during the year - - - 201,916,445 -
Settled during the year - - - (200,275,778} -
Closing balance - - - 3,900,923 -

Deposits and other accounts

Opening balance - - . 200,000 -
Additions during the year - - - 439,000 -
Repayments during the year - - - (600,000) -
Closing balance - - - 39,000 -
Other liabilities
Mark-up payable - - - 15,275 -
Amount payable to retirement benefit funds - - - - (11,117)
Others (3) ; 2 1,008 1,132 .

- - 1,008 16,407 (11,117)
Contingencies and commitmenis
Letter of guarantes - - 861,571 - -
Commitment to extend cradit - 14,712 - - -
Unsettled sale / purchase of =

investrment transactions - - = 2,284 =
- 14,712 861,571 2,284 -

Transactions, income and expenses

Mark-up / raturn / interest eamed - net - 518 " 620,016 -
Mark-up { return / interest expensad - - . 128,087 -
Gain on sale of securitias - nat - B - 124,761 -
Dividend income - - " T.085 -
Contribution paid to defined contribution plan - - " - T.152
Contribution paid to defined benefit plan - - " - 10,091
MNon-executive directors’ fee and remuneration 3418 - " - -
Remunerations - 188,597 " - 13,804

(1) Key management personnel are also entitied to the usage of certain Group assets as per their tarms of employment.

(2) Fee based income to be recorded on cash receipt basis.

(3) The opening balance include Rs. 25 million, grandfathered, loan obtained by the then Senior Execulive Vice President (SEVP) during FY

2009-2010 before becoming the managing director (executive director) of the Group in FY 2012. As per the terms approved by the board, the
SEVP was given relaxation in cerlain employee loan related terms; including o pay the entire Rs.25 million (principal) upon completion of his
employment term. However, he has been paying interest on the said loan. The loan was due for repayment on 21 February 2017 which has
been settled during the year.

(4) During the year 20186, the former deputy managing director obtained an advance amounting to Rs. 25 million, As per employment terms of the

managing director and deputy managing director (the executive directors), the managing director/deputy managing director is entitled to 3
months salary as advance, without intarest, repayable in 12 months; howevar, the deputy managing director requested for Rs.25 million.
Considering this being a related party transaction, the board of directors approved the transaction as an interest free advance repayable within
12 months agalnst his end of service benefits. The Group marked a lien on end of service benefit against this advance as security. The
advance was due for repayment on 06 April 2017 however has been settled at 31 March 2017 consequent lo conclusion of his directorship.

(5) This includes an amount of Rs, 26.11 million pald o former depuly managing director (DMD) of the Company, who was relocated to Libya on

31 March 2017, on account of depreciation benefit, transportation cosl and tax paid by the Company. The Board subsequently resolved that
the said benefits will be recovered from former DMD partly from sale proceeds of the car surrendered by former DMD to the Company and
partly from actual payment. The car was disposed off subsequent to year end at the price of Rs.9.11 million. The management has started
recovery procesdings against the remaining amount.
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38. CAPITAL ASSESSMENT AND ADEQUACY

38.1 Capital adequacy

SBP's regulatory capital guidelines under Basel |ll allow for three tiers of capital. Common Equity Tier | capital
includes common shares and retained earnings. Pak Libya currently does not hold any instruments in Additional
Tier 1 or Tier 2 capital. The authorised share capital of the Group is Rs.8,000 million and the paid-up capital is
Rs.6,141.780 million consisting of 614,178 shares with a par value of Rs.10,000 per share.

Group's regulatory capital is divided into three tiers.

* Commen Equity Tier 1 capital (CET1), which includes fully paid up capital and statutory reserves as per the
financial statements and unappropriated loss after all regulatory adjustments applicable on CET1.

* There Is no amount for Additional Tier 1 Capital (AT1) of the Group.

* Tier 2 capital includes revaluation reserves on account of unrealised gain on available-for-sale investments
and general provisions for loan losses (up to a maximum of 1.25 % of credit risk weighted assets).

The table below illustrates the following approaches that are adopted at Pak Libya for capital requirements
calculation under Basel |1l in relation to the various risk types under Pillar 1:

Credit Risk Standardized Approach
Market Risk Standardized Approach
Operational Risk Basic Indicator Approach

Minimum capital requirement

SBP has prescribed that the minimum paid-up capital (free of losses) for DFI is required to be maintained at
Rs.6 billion and ratio of tfotal regulatory capital to risk weighted asset is to be maintained at or above 10%
alongwith Capital Conservation Buffer (CCB) of 1.275%. The paid-up capital (free of losses) of the Group as of
31 December 2017 amounted to Rs.4.401 billion, which Is below the minimum capital requirement of Rs.6
billion. However, the SBP has granted further exemption to the Group in meeting the MCR till 30 June 2018.The
Board of Directors of the Group has approved the financial projections for the next 5 years, envisaging a capital
injection which is aimed to comply with minimum capital requirement, enhance the risk absorption capacity and
future growth and expansion in business prospects of the Group.

Capital management

A strong capital position is essential to the Group's business strategy and competitive position. The Group's
capital strategy focuses on long-term stability, which aims to build and invest in core business activities. The
Group seeks to maintain adequate levels of capital in order to:

= comply with the capital requirement set by the regulators of the Group;

» safeguard Group's ability to continue as a going concern so that it can continue to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders;

* acquire, develop and maintain a strong capital base to support the development of its business activities;

= support the underlying risks inherited in the core business activities; and

* be able to withstand capital demands under market shocks and stress conditions.

The Group carries out Capital Planning annually to ensure the sufficiency of capital keeping in view the business
strategy, expected growth, regulatory requirements, Basel |l guidelines and risks associated with the business
operations. The capital planning is normally undertaken for the horizon of next three to five years. The plan
takes the following into account:

= current capital reguirement

« growth of core financing and investment business based on activities plans of the various business units
{Corporate & Investment Banking, Treasury and Capital Market)

« the funding structure and sources of funding, liabilities and equity to support the asset growth taking into
consideration the need to maintain strong liquidity position based on Basel lll guidelines

= maintenance of regulatory capital requirements and capital adequacy ratios

The Group has a comprehensive Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process (ICAAP). The Group's ICAAP
covers the capital management, sets the process for assessment of the adequacy of capital to support current
and future activities f risks and a report on the capital projections for a period of three to five years. The ICAAP
report is produced on an annual basis and is approved by the Board of Directors.

Under the ICAAP methodology, the following risk types are identified and measured:

= risks covered under Pillar 1 (credit risk, market risk and operational risk)

» risks not fully covered under Pillar 1 (Residual Risk)

= risks covered under Pillar 2 (concentration risk, interest rate risk, liquidity risk, reputational risk,
strategic/business risk)

The Group has also implemented StressTesting Framework as per the SBP guidelines. This involves the use of
various technigues to assess the Group's susceptibility to plausible yet extreme stress scenarios. The siress
tests cover shocks related to credit risk, interest rate risk, exchange rate risk, equity price risk and liquidity risk.
The stress tests are performed quarterly and results are reporied to Management and Board of Directors
through respective Risk Management Committees.

Scope of applications

The Basel Ill Capital Regulations (Basel Ill) are applicable to Pak Libya Holding Company (Private) Limited (Pak
Libya) in line with the guidelines issued by State Bank of Pakistan (SBP).

SBP has issued the framework and guidance regarding implementation of the capital reforms under Basel Ill -
which are effective from 31 December 2013. Accordingly, the Group's Risk Weighted Assets (RWA), total
capital and related ratios are calculated under the Basel Il and Il framework.

Basel-lll framework enables a more risk-sensitive regulatory capital calculation along with tightening of capital
requirements, raising the quality, consistency and transparency of capital base to promote long term viability of
the Group. As the Group carry on the business, it is critical that the Group is able to continuously monitor the
exposure across entire organization and aggregate the risks so as to take an integrated approachiview.
Maximization of the retun on risk-adjusted capital is the principal basis to be used in determining how capital is
allocated within the Group to a particular segment of business.

Significant subsidiary

Pak Libya (the Parent Company) has wholly owned subsidiary named Kamoki Powergen (Private) Limited
(KPL), however, as per the requirement of Basel Il 1.3 (ii) the capital adequacy ratio is measured without
consolidating the assets and liabilities of KPL as it is a commercial entity. Furthermore, the Group does not have
significant investment in any insurance entity.
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CAPITAL ADEQUACY RETURN AS OF 31 December 2017

Common Equity Tler 1 capital (CET1): Instruments and reserves
Fully paid-up capital / capital deposited with SBP

Balance in Share Premium Account

Reserve for issue of Bonus Shares

Discount on Issue of shares

General / statutory reserves

Gain / (losses) on derivatives held as cash flow hedge
Unappropriated / unremitted profits / (losses)

Minority Interests arising from CET1 capital instruments issued to
third parties by consclidated bank subsidiaries (amount allowed in
CET1 capital of the consclidation group)

CET 1 before Regulatory Adjustments

Total regulatory adjustments applied to CET1 (note 38.2.1)
Common Equity Tier 1

Additienal Tier 1 (AT 1) Capital
Qualifying Additional Tier-1 capital instruments plus any related
share premium

of which: Classified as equity

of which: Classified as liabilities
Additional Tier-1 capital Instruments issued to third parties by
consolidated subsidiaries (amount allowed in group AT 1)

of which: instrument issued by subsidiaries subject to phase out
AT1 before regulatory adjustmentis
Total regulatory adjustment applied to AT1 capital (note 38.2.2)
Additional Tier 1 capital after regulatory adjustments
Additional Tier 1 capital recognized for capital adeguacy

Tier 1 Capital (CET1 + admissible AT1) (11+20)

Tier 2 Capital
Qualifying Tier 2 capital instruments under Basel Il plus any
related share premium
Tier 2 capital instruments subject to phase-oul arrangement issued
under pre-Basel 3 rules
Tier 2 capital instruments issued to third parties by consolidated
subsidiaries (amount allowed in group tier 2)

of which: instruments issued by subsidiaries subject to phase out
General provisions or general reserves for loan losses-up fo
maximum of 1.25% of Credit Risk Weighted Assets
Revaluation Reserves (net of taxes)

of which: Revalualion reserves on fixed assets

of which: Unrealized gains/losses on AFS
Foreign exchange translation reserves
Undisclosed ! other reserves (if any)
T2 before regulatory adjustments
Total reguiatory adjustment applied to T2 capital (note 38.2.3)
Tier 2 capital (T2) after regulatory adjustments
Tier 2 capital recognized for capital adequacy
Portion of Additional Tier 1 capital recognized in Tier 2 capital
Total Tier 2 capital admissible for capital adequacy
TOTAL CAPITAL (T1 + admissible T2) (21+37)

Total Risk Weighted Assets (RWA) {for details refer note 38.5}

Source
basad on

reference

number

from Step

2 Table
38.3.2

]

(w)

(y)

()

{u)
(n)
(aa)

(o)
(ab)

(a)

portion of
(ac)

v)

31 December
2017

(Rupees in
.m:l

6,141,780

311,650

{1,740,780)

4,712,650
280,481
3,732,169

(605,058)

=

3,732,169

237
(438,910)

(438,673)

=

3,732,169

11,848,688

40
41
42
43

45

47

48
49

51
52

38.2.1

3 B3 =

W~ [=2]

P
- 0

13

14

15
16

17
18
19
20
21
22

Capital Ratios and buffers (in percentage of risk weighted assets)

CET1 to total RWA

Tier-1 capital to total RWA

Total capital to total RWA

Bank specific buffer requirement (minimum CET1 reguirement plus
capital conservation buffer plus any other buffer requirement)

of which: capital conservation buffer requirement
of which: countercyclical buffer requirement
of which: D-S1B or G-SIB buffer requirement
CET1 available to meet buffers {as a percentage of risk weighted assets)

National minimum capital requirements prescribed by SBP

CET1 minimum ratio

Tier 1 minimum ratio

Total capital minimum ratio

Tetal capital minimum ratio plus CCB
Leverage ratio

Regulatory Adjustments and Additional Information

Commeon Equity Tier 1 capital: Regulatory adjustments
Goodwill (net of related defarred tax liability)

All ather intanglbles (net of any associated deferred tax liability)
Shortfall in provisions against classified assets

Deferred tax assets that rely on future profitability excluding those
arising from temporary differences (net of refated Lax liability)

Defined-benefit pension fund net assets
Reciprocal cross holdings in CET1 capital instruments of banking,
financial and insurance entities
Cash flow hedge reserve
Investment in own shares | CET1 instruments
Securitization gain on sale
Capital shortfall of regulated subsidiaries
Deficit on account of revaluation from bank's holdings of fixed
assets [ AFS
Investments in the capital instruments of banking, financial and
Insurance entities that are outside the scope of regulatory
consolidation, where the Group does not own more than 10% of the
issued share capital (amount above 10% threshold)
Significant investments in the common stocks of banking, financial
and insurance entities that are outside the scope of regulatory
consolidation (amount above 10% threshold)
Deferred Tax Assets arising from temporary differences (amount
above 10% threshold, net of related tax liability)
Amount exceading 15% threshold
of which: significant investments in the common stocks of
financial entities
of which: deferred tax assets arising from temporary differences
National specific regulatory adjustments applied to CET1 capital
Investments in TFCs of other banks exceeding the prescribed limit
Any other deduction specified by SBP (mention details)
Adjustment to CET1 due to insufficient AT1 and Tier 2 to cover deductions
Total regulatory adjustments applied to CET1 (sum of 1 to 21)

Source
based on
reference

number
from Step

2 Table

38.3.2

{k}-(p)
(hy+(1)-(a)
{f)
{-(s}*
n%
{lm) - (r)}
%Yo

(d)

ad
(a)-(ae)
(ag)

(b}-{af)-(ah)

)

31 December

2017

- {D‘;‘,’ -

31.50%
31.50%
31.50%

25.50%

6.00%
7.50%
10.00%
11.28%
3.00%

31 December

2017

Subject to Pre- Basel Il

treatment”

{Rupees in "000) ——-emmeeemmeee

{2,907) .
(157,735) -
{210,781) {52,696)

(4,000) (5,000)
{605,058) {150,074)
(380,481) (207,770)
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38.2.2 Additional Tier-1 & Tler-1 Capital. regulatory adjustments

23  Investment in mutual funds exceeding the prescribed limit [SBP
specific adjustment]

24 Investment in own AT1 capital instruments

25 Reciprocal cross holdings in Additional Tier 1 capital instruments of
banking, financial and insurance entities

26 Investments In the capital instruments of banking, financial and
insurance entiies that are outside the scope of regulatory
consolidation, where the bank does not own more than 10% of the
issued share capital (amount above 10% threshold)

27  Significant investments in the capital instruments of banking,
financial and insurance entities that are outside the scope of
regulatory consolidation

28 Portion of deduction applied 50:50 to Tier-1 and Tier-2 capital
based on pre-Basel |l treatment which, during transitional perlod,
remain subject to deduction from additional tier-1 capital

28 Adjustments to Additional Tier 1 due to insufficient Tier 2 lo cover
deductions

30  Total regulatory adjustment applied to AT1 capital (sum of 23 to 29)

38.2.3 Tier 2 Capital: regulatory adjustments

31  Portion of deduction applied 50:50 to Tier-1 and Tier-2 capital
based on pre-Base! Il treatment which, during transitional period,
remain subject to deduction from tier-2 capital

32 Reciprocal cross holdings in Tler 2 instruments of banking, financial
and insurance entities

33 Investment in own Tier 2 capital instrument

34  Investments in the capital instruments of banking, financial and
insurance entities that are outside the scope of regulatory
consolidation, where the bank does not own more than 10% of the
issued share capital (amount above 10% threshold)

35 Significant investments in the capital instruments issued by
bkanking, financial and insurance entities that are outside the scope
of regulatory consolidation

36 Total regulatory adjustment applied to T2 capital (sum of 31 to 35)

Source 31 December

based on 2017
reference Subject to Pre- Basel lil
number treatment*
from Step
2 Tablg-=-——=r—=— (Rupees in '000) -———=-mmmeeme
39.3.2
(c) - .
(ae) - -
(165,886) (41,471)
{af) - a
(500) i
(438,672) {108,103)
(605,058) (150,574)
(500) i
(ag)
(438,410} (109,602)
(ah)
(438,910) (109,602)

31 Dacember

2017
38.2.4 Additional Information (Rupees in
'000)
Risk Weighted Assets subject to pre-Basel Il treatment
37 Risk weighted assets in respect of deduction items (which during
the transitional period will be risk weighted subject to Pre-Basel Il
Treatment)
(i)  of which: deferred tax assets -
(1} of which: Defined-benefit pension fund net assets -
(i) of which: Recognized portion of investment In capital of banking,
financial and insurance entities where holding is less than 10%
of the issued commaon share capital of the entity 52,696
(iv} of which: Recognized portion of investment in capital of banking,
finrancial and insurance entities where holding is more than 10%
of the Issued common share capital of the entity 109,602
Amounts below the thresholds for deduction (before risk weighting)
38  Non-significant investments in the capital of other financial entities 455,201
39 Significant investments in the common stock of financial entities -
40 Deferred tax assets arising from tempaorary differences (net of related tax liability) 85,330
41 Provisions eligible for inclusion in Tier 2 in respect of exposures
subject to standardized approach (prior to application of cap) 237
42 Cap on Inclusion of provisions in Tier 2 under standardized
approach 118,990
43 Provisions eligible for inclusion in Tier 2 in respect of exposures
subject to Internal ratings-based approach (prior to application of -
44  Cap for inclusion of provisions in Tier 2 under intermal ratings-
based approach -

@ PaklLibya

38.3 Capital Structure Reconciliation

38.3.1 Step 1: Under Step 1, the Group Is reguired to use balance sheet of the published financlal statements
based on the accounting scope of consolidation as a starting point and report the numbers for each
itern in the published financial statements based on regulatory scope of consolidation.

Assots

Cash and balances with treasury banks
Balanced with other banks

Lending to financial institutions.
Investments

Advances

Operafing fixed assets

Deferred tax assels

Other assets

Toial assets

Liabilities

Bills payable

Borrowings

Deposits and other accounts

Sub-ordinated loans

Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease
Deferred tax llabilities

Other liabilities

Total liabilities

Net Assets

Represented by
Share capital
Reserves
Accumulated loss

Surplus on revaluation of assets
Total equity

Total liabilities & equity

31 December 2017

Statement of Undar
financial regulatory
position of the scope of
published consolidation
consolidated
financial
statements
~——— (Rupees in '000) ——
28,328 28,328
B8,495 B83.484
4,000,000 4,000,000
5,685,440 9,700,440
3.583,084 3,593,084
81,302 80,458
85,330 85.330
1,500,477 1,591,796
19,162,456 19,162,930
14,367,132 14,367,132
38,000 39.000
201,883 201,883
14,608,015 14,608,015
4,554 441 4,554,915
6,141,780 6,141,780
311,650 311,850
{1,741,254) (1,740,780)
4,712,178 4,712,650
{157,735) {157.735)
4,554, 441 4,554,915
19,162,456 19,162,930
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38.3.2

Step 2: Under Step 2 the Group is required to expand the balance sheat under the regulatory scope of consolidation 1o (dentify all the elements that
ara usad n the capital adequacy disclosure template sel oul in Note 38 2. Each element must be given a reference number / lattar [n the 2nd colurmn

theat will be used as a cross referance for note 38.2.

Step 2

Assals
Cash and balances with reasury banks
Balances with other banks
Lendings to financlal nstiutions
Imvestments
of which: Non-signiflcant Investmenis in the capital Instrumants of banking, financial and
insurance antities axceading 10% thrashoid
of which: significant investmants in the capital instrumenis issued by banking, financial
and insurance enlities exceeding rogulatary threshold
of which: Mulual Funds axceeding regulalory threshold
of which: reciprocal crossholding of capital instrumant (separate for CET1, AT1, T2}
of which: athers (mantion details)
Advances
shortfall in provisions | excess of total EL amaunt over eligible provisions under [RB
ganeral provisions reflecled in Tier 2 capital
Fixed assats
of which: intangible
Defarred lax assels
of which: DTAs that rely on future profitability excluding those arising from temporary
differances
of which: DTAs arising from lemporary differences exceading regulatory threshold
Other aszets
of which: Geodwil
of which: intangibles
of which; Defined-benafit pension fund net assats
Total assots

Liabilities and equity
Bills payable
Bomowings
Depaosits and olher accounts
Sub-ardinated loans
of which: eligibla for inclusion in AT1
of which; eligible for inclusion in Tier 2
Liabilities agalnst assets subject to finance lease
Deferred tax liabilitias
of which: DTLs related to goodwsll
of which: DTLs related to Intangible assets
of which: DTLs related to defined pension fund net assets
of which, other deferred tax fabilities
Other liabilities
Total lisbilities

Share capital
of which: ameunt eligible for CET1
of which: amounl eligibla for AT1
Reserves
of which: porticn eligible for inclusion in CET 1: Share premium
of which; portion eligible for indusion in CET1: General | stalutory reserves
of which: portion eligible for inclusion in Tier 2
Unappropriated profit { (losses)
Menaority Interast
of which; portion eligible for inclusion In CET1
of which: portion eligible for indusion in AT1
of which: portion eligible for inclusion In Tier 2
Surplus on revaluation of asssts
of which; Ravaluation reserves on fixed assets
of which: Unraalized galns / (losses) on AFS
In casa of Deficit on revaluation (deduction from CET1)
Total liabllities and equity

Raference

-m a8 o

@ =~ om

=

= % o=

31 Degembar 2017

Statement of
financial pesition
a8 in published um::;iu:nw
consolldated
Sinsolal consolidation
slatements
—— [Rupees in "000) ——
28,228 28,328
88,405 83454
4,000,000 4,000,000
8,685,440 9,700,440
1,018,845 1,018,845
3,593,084 3,593,084
237 237
81,302 80,458
2,807 2,807
85,330 85,330
85,330 85,330
1,580,477 1,581,796
18,162,456 19,162,830
14,367,132 14,367,132
39,000 29,000
201,883 201,883
14,608,015 14,508,015
6,141,780 6,141,780
6,141,780 €,141,780
311,650 311,650
311,650 311,650
(1,741,254) (1,740,780)
(157,735) (157,735)
18,162,456 18,162,930

38.4 Main features template of regulatory capital instruments

Disclosure template for main features of regulatory capital instruments

W M=

[= T I = T, T -

1
12
13
14
15
16

17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33
34
35

36
37

Main features

Issuer
Unigue identifier (e.g. KSE Symbol or Bloomberg identifier eic.)
Governing law(s) of the instrument
Regulatory treatment
Transitional Basel 11l rules
Post-transitional Basel Ill rules
Eligible at solo / group / group & solo
Instrument type
Amount recognized in regulatory capital (Currency in PKR thousands,
as of reporting date)
Par value of instrument
Accounting classification
Original date of issuance
Perpetual or dated
Original maturity date
Issuer call subject to prior supervisory approval
Optional call date, contingent call dates and redemption amount
Subsequent call dates, if applicable
Coupons / dividends
Fixed or floating dividend/ coupon
Coupon rate and any related index/ benchmark
Existence of a dividend stopper
Fully discretionary, partially discretionary or mandatory
Existence of step up or other incentive to redeem
Noncumulative or cumulative
Convertible or non-convertible
If convertible, conversion trigger (s)
If convertible, fully or partially
If convertible, conversion rate
If convertible, mandatory or optional conversion
If convertible, specify instrument type convertible into
If convertible, specify issuer of instrument it converts into
Write-down feature
If write-down, write-down trigger(s)
If write-down, full or partial
If write-down, permanent or temporary
If temporary write-down, description of write-up mechanism
Pasition in subordination hierarchy in liquidation (specify instrument
type immediately senior to instrument
MNon-compliant transitioned features
If yes, specify non-compliant features

Common shares

Pak Libya

NA

Government of Pakistan

Common Equity Tier 1
Common Equity Tier 1
Solo

Ordinary Shares
6,141,780

10,000 per share
Share Holders' equity
28-11-1981
No maturity

NA,
No
NA
NA

MNA
NA
No

fully discrationary

No

Non cumulative
Mon convertible

NA
NA
NA
NA
NA
NA
No
NA
NA
NA
NA
NA

No
NA
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38.5 Risk weighted exposures 39. RISK MANAGEMENT
The risk-weighted assets are measured by means of hierarchy different risk weights classified The Group has an independent risk management division and developed risk management framework to
according to the nature and reflecting an estimate of credit, market and other risks associated continuously manage and mitigate risks emanating from the regular course of its operational and
with each asset and counterparty, taking into account any eligible collateral or guarantees. A financial activities. The risk management framework and policies of the Group are guided by specific
similar treatment is adopted for off-balance sheet exposure, with some adjustments to reflect objectives to ensure that comprehensive and adequate risk management policies are established to
the more contingent nature of the potential oﬂ’-baian;:e sheet exposure, with some mitigate salient risk elements in the operational facets of the Group. It involves identification,
adjustments to reflect the more contingent nature of the potential losses. measurement, mantoring: and conkoRing risks with-a view fo.ensUre. at
- Adequate capital is available as a buffer;
y - Exposures remain within the limits prescribed by the Board of Directors; and
Capital Risk - Risk taking decisions are in line with the policy guidelines, business strategy and objectives set by
& weighted the Board.
requirements
assets
2017 2017 The Group is exposed to a number of risks, which it manages at different levels.
sawwe B8 0= PRI WYy e The main categories of risk associated to / with the Group are as follows:
PSE 5,529 55,291 Cragit tinh
Banks 131,357 1,313,574 The risk of losses resuiting from counterparties' failure to meet all or part of their obligations towards the
Corporates 309,895 3,098,950 Group.
Retail portfolio 2,333 23,329
Secured by residential mortgage 4,705 47,049 The Group has established an appropriate credit risk structure and culture whereby policies are
Past due loans 56,380 563,797 reviewed and revamped to maintain sound credit granting procedures, maintaining appropriate credit
Significant investment and DTAs 21,333 213,325 administration, measurement, monitoring processes and adequate controls.
Listed equity investment 48,856 488,558 ) . . ) o .
Unlisted equity investment 75 750 Risk management structure facilitates the Credit approval function by its Internal Credit Risk Rating
iveshhere i e assete 7755 77 551 model through which an appropriate risk level of the borrower / counterparty is assessed for credit
Other assets 1 59' 180 159 1'795 sanctioning and disbursement.
747,397 7,473,970 The Group manages credit risk through:
Credit risk on off-balance sheet - Establishment of acceptable risk appetite and tolerance levels;
- Sound procedures and controls for the management of risk assets and credit documentation;
Non-market related 203,745 2,037,451 - Target market planning and overall market intelligence; and
Market related F.04 7,769 - Accurate and detailed information about the borrower, its financial position and operations.
Market risk
Market risk
The risk of losses resulting from the variance in the market value of the Group's assets and liabilities
Interest rate risk 36,139 361,392 owing to changes in market conditions.
IE::elztiyr?:i!::r:nﬁsekﬁsk 124'83: 1'2“'3:: Market risk measures and controls are applied at the portfolio level and limits and other controls are
9 g applied to particular books and to specific portfolios. Controls and established parameters are applied to
prevent any undue risk concentrations in the trading book and include controls on exposure to individual
market risk factors and on positions in securities of individual issuers.
Operational risk
The principal market risk in respect to the Group's assets and liabilty management is primarily
Capital requirement associated with the capital market exposure and the maturity and repricing mismatches of its assets and
for operational risks 71,920 719,201 liabilities. The Board is responsible for reviewing and recommending all market risk policies and ensures
that sound market risk and effective risk management systems are established and complied with.
Total 1,184,869 11,848,688
Operational risk
2017
Capital adequacy ratios Required Actual The risk of losses resulting from deficient or erronecus internal procedures, human or system errors, or
external events.
o
C_Eﬁ to total RWA [ 6.00% 31.50 f’ The Group has in place a duly approved operational risk policy, manual disaster recovery system (DRS)
Tier-1 capltal to total RWA 7.50% 31.50% and a business continuity plan (BCP). These are continuously reviewed to strengthen operational
Total capital plus CCB to total RWA 11.28% 31.50%
Leverage Ratio 3.00% 14.37%
@ FPakLibya Annual Report 2017 @




Operational risk policy and manual set minimum standards and require all business units to identify and
assess risks through loss data collection, Risk Control Self Assessment (RCSA) and key risk indicators
(KRls). The business units are responsible for day-to-day monitoring of operational risks and for limiting
losses as a result thereof. The business unit is responsible to repert any potential deviation giving rise to
operational risk events in the Group.

The Group is in the process of continuously improving its interal controls which aids in strengthening
the Operational Risk Management of the Group. In this regards, the Group maintains a detailed internal
control over financial reporting (ICFR) documentation.

Liquidity risk

The risk arising due to failure in raising funds at reasonable cost within the required time duration to
finance the Group's operations and meet its liabilities when these become due is categorised as liquidity
risk.

The Group's approach to liquidity risk management is to ensure as far as possible that it will always have
sufficient liquidity to mest its liabilities when due. The Liguidity Management Policy is formulated keeping
in view SBP's guidelines on risk management and Basel |l principles on sound liquidity management.
The Group has also formulated Liquidity Risk Management policy as per SBP's guidelines. The risk
management division uses different tools for identifying, assessing, measuring and controlling liquidity
risk and periodically reports to senior management and risk management committees. The Group is also
preparing leverage ratio report on quarterly basis for senior management, risk management committees
and regulator.

The management is responsible for managing liquidity profile of the Group although strategic
management of liquidity has been delegated to Asset & Liability Committee (ALCO). The ALCO of the
Group deliberate and recommend liquidity strategy ensuring that appropriate policies and procedures are
in place to control and constrain liquidity risk. It is also responsible for ensuring that Group has adequate
information systems for measuring, monitoring, controlling and reporting liquidity risk.

39.1 Credit risk
Credit risk management objectives and policies

Credit risk refers to the risk of financial loss arising from defaults by counterparties in meeting their
obligations. Exposure to credit risks for the Group arises primarily from the lending and investment
activities.

Credit exposures include both individual borrowers, corporates and groups of connected
counterparties and portfolios in the Group’s banking/trading books.

The management of credit risk is governed by credit management policies and procedures
approved by the Board and management respectively. The procedures and policy guidelines spell
out relevant process flow, approval authorities, limits, risks, credit ratings and other matters
involved in order to ensure sound credit granting and approving standards in compliance with the
Prudential Regulations and Risk Management Guidelines of the State Bank of Pakistan.

Appropriate levels of facilities are approved by the Board of Directors. The Executive Commitiee
{EC) approves facilities of upto Rs.100 million while facilities exceeding this limit require approval
from the Board of Directors on recommendation of the EC. ALCO / Credit Committee (CC)
considers and recommends the said facilities to EC upen identifying key opportunities and risks
prevalent in taking requisite exposure towards the borrower / counterparty.

The Group currently uses Standardised Approach for computing capital charge on credit risk
weighted assets. Currently, the Group does not employ Credit Risk Mitigation (CRM) approach as
there is no hedging (in whole or in part) by a collateral posted by the third party on the behalf of the
counterparty.

Credit risk rating

Credit risk rating is an important tool in monitoring and controlling credit risk. In order to identify
changes in risk profiles at early stages, credits with deteriorating ratings are subject to additional
oversight and monitoring.

The Internal Credit Risk Rating System (ICRRS) is intended to reflect the overall risk profile of the
borrower !/ guarantor / counterparty. Risk ratings are assigned according to the perception of risk
on a numerical scale, determined within the qualitative and quantitative set of parameters and
variables encompassing the risk levels of the borrower / guarantor / counterparty. The Credit
scoring in the ICRRS is being conducted by Corporate and Investment Banking Division which is
reviewed by the Risk Management Division on pericdic basis and from time to time upon receiving
the required information and documents of the credit proposalfobligor for its credit approval.

Objective of Internal Credit Risk Rating (ICRR)
Credit ratings are aimed at achieving one or more of the following:

- Internal risk reporting;
- Portfolio management; and
- Setting of credit risk concentration limits.

The Group constantly updates and improves upon its rating system to facilitate prudent lending
decisions along with proactive and effective identification and monitoring of potential credit risks
emanating from the lending activities of the Group.

The Group also uses and give due weightage to external rating while evaluating the risk. The
Group considers external ratings assigned by external credit rating agencies including PACRA and
{ or JCR-VIS.

Exposures JCR-VIS PACRA Other
Corporate Yes Yes X
Banks Yes Yes X

Credit exposures subject to standardised approach

2017
Rating Amount
Exposures Category outstanding Deduction CRM* Net amount
smemmmsmsmnnmeess (RUPEES IN "000) mmememmsmennnnnnn

Corporate 0 - - -
1 1,016,802 - 1,016,802
2 693,572 - 693,572
3-4 532,353 - 532,353

56 - - -
Unrated 1,735,012 - 1,735,012
3,977,739 - 3,977,739

Banks 0 - - -
1 2,583,494 - 2,583,494
23 1,593,750 - 1,593,750

4.5 - - -

6 " " &

Unrated - - -
4,177,244 - 4,177,244

Sovereigns - - -
Total Credit Exposure 8,154,983 - 8,154,983

*CRM= Credit Risk Mitigation

The accounting policies and methods used by the Group are in accordance with the requirements
of the prudential regulations of the SBP. These policies are disclosed in note 4 to these financial
statements. Reconciliation in the provision against non-performing advances has been disclosed
in note 9.3 of these financial statements.
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39.2 Market risk
- 3 5%3.883 |2 333
Market risk refers to the impact on the Group's financial condition resulting from future price volatility or adverse movements in the D m nNa ‘o = - ! i e ' ! 1
value of assets contained in its trading book and / or Investment portfolio. The principal market risk in respect of the Group's assets g § 5 o m e @ § B E =] § o
and liabilities is primarily associated with the maturity and repricing mismatches of its assets and liabilities and equity price risk. The '§ (= E =|ed -+ - ||
risk emanating from any potential changes in market prices, due to changes in the interest rates, foreign exchange rates and equity é -y
prices are duly identified and accounted for, z E E
<]
A trading book consists of positions in financial Instruments held either with trading intent or in order to hedge other elements of the
frading book. To be eligible for trading book, financial instruments must either be free of any restrictive covenants on their tradability @ E el e U B 1 . SLoe L i ' ¥ ' ’
or able to be hedged completely. 5 S
=
Transaction undertaken by the financial institution for the banking book means any position or financial nstrument held by Group in
the normal course of business, not for trading purpose, or financial instrument that the financial institution Intends to hold until g p o g wlia v skl : : : :
maturity. All investment excluding trading book are considered as part of banking book which includes Available-for-Sale, Held-to- s -
Maturity and Strategic Investments, Due to diversified nature of investments in banking book, it shall be subject to interest rate and ] ;
equity price risk. 67
o
The Group has a sound framework for Market Risk management with the Treasury Investment Policy and Market Risk Management E o T B E ' ﬁ o E_ ' ' ' 5
policies duly approved by the Board, . E = = T =
6 w
The Market Risk Managament framework of the Group comprises of exposure limits, a series of stop loss limits and potential loss
limits recommended by Asset and Liability Committes (ALCOQ) of the Group o ensure that front line risk-takers do not exceed or & u w o= e = =
breach the defined boundaries set by the management, Limil management is a control mechanism to ensure thal all business Zl & E S 5, ‘M ol 3_ ' ' i 'ﬁ_
activities are conducted in compliance with the risk management guidelines and policies. Gap analysis is conducted on regular basis ﬁ 3 § ~ E E E
in order 1o assess the quantum of market risk and liquidity position of the Group. The limits are set and reviewed regularly taking into g 5 "= - - - -
account number of factors, including market trading, liquidity of the instruments, retums and Group's business strategy. ‘E _§
E £ ~ ~ o o
=8 gt s 5 BB 2, .88 S
Rz =s8 g |g |§ |6« @
Management of Interest rate risk of the banking and / or trading book Is primarily focused on Interest cum fair value through Re- 2 Ea = L o
pricing Gap Analysis and Falr Value Sensitivity. The management of interest rate risk of the trading book is achleved through mark- B8 3 et E;.
to-market practice. On quarlery basis, the Siress Test reporls are being prepared for senior management, risk management -
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Equity position risk refers to the risk arising from taking long or short positions, In the trading book, In the equities and all =) = b e i ..,'- o | F| - L
instruments that exhibit market behaviour similar to equities. Equity price risk is managed within the statutory limits and as 2 kil i il g § 52 @
defined in the policy framework by applying trading limit, scrip-wise and portfolio wise Imits. Value at Risk (VaR) and stress % - =‘ ='
testing of the equity portfolio are also performed and reporled to ALCO, senior management and risk management £ & § 22 E E
committees. T e _ 8 gcgs Eg g £
T 83j AT =, > 8
[ " bt 3
39.2.3 Mismatch of interest rate sensitive assets and liabilities § ER§ Erfs £ a 8 z 3
3 vE “aea N 5 5 A =
E e . 2
Yield and interest rate sensitivity position for on-balance sheetl instruments is based on the earlier contractual re-pricing or _g E = E -
maturity date and for off-balance sheet instruments is based on the setflement date, E % e § K- E
=4
] e 2 &
Yield risk is the risk of decline in eamings due to adverse movement of the yield curve. ; ® 5 ﬁ e f:-é _E E
£ s = = £ o 8,
The Group takes on exposure to the effects of fluctuations in the prevailing levels of market interest rates on both its fair 'g ‘::J T 2 é E E E E [ .g E J& E ﬁ
value and cash flow risks, The Board approves limits on the recommendation of the Executive Committes on the level of g w E § B i ¥ 3 % o % ¥ = ;E 22a8
mismatch of interest rate repricing that may be undertaken, which is complied by the Group's Treasury & Fund Management i 2g cXpD u £ 2 £ 2 8 = o E
repricing ay P P ry ge E £ E = b Bg £ % £ E = : § 2= g
Division. s s 2 s85,% 22 o e = = 4 BER@c
5 = R E gsz 8§ 8 5 3 § 3 ¢ B Z29fy
§ HE 5 2893 g 3 2 2 £e=%
g g3 u§§§§E§; =38: 3 $ 33§ % 3% elbs
£ HEIC I I EEEEE R EE
= 6 238 AE B —-ma g o E [T T E - 5] ®E =2
;
@
-
@ FPakLibya Annual Report 2017 @




Annual Report 2017 @

LI Pes'y
Tsezrzsy) XE] J0 j8U - 5j8sse Jo uopenjeaal uo sniding
Pz 1vL'L) 550] pajE|nLNaoYy
059°'LLE sanasay
08L'Lrl's jeydes aleyg
£6F'S SFL'E86 (sz8'zsl) 186'1E5'E  (0zZ1'ie) B0S'20E'T BSS'EFE (ze0's66'2)  £8.'965'C7 LSS’y
= 9IE'0EZ 005'29.L 059'LZ8 000'sZL'L LLL'ELS LET'ESE 050°L¥L'S LE0'6FL'Y SLO'B09'VL
" OLE'S o) 059'2 E - 15781 055'vE ol0'Le £98°L0Z safliqel Bsyio
" - b " » 000'6E o ) ¥ 000'6E sjunoaoe Jayio pue sysodag
i 000°SZZ D05'Z9L 000°'5Z8 000'sZL'L LLi'pig D00'SLL 005°ZLL'S LzZ0'g9a'y ZEL'I9E'VL sfumowuog
sanjiqenr]
£6F'S LZS'ELZ'L  5l9'6LS LE9'65E'E  088'E60')L  BLO'SIZE S6L'96L'L 896'LSL'T vLB'SYE'L 95F'ZoL'61
- ors'y o L9E'6R Lac'eR 68L'0FZ'L BEL'OF L99'F6 LZL'ZE LIV'065 L sl@sse Baylo
= 116'9L L1631 DSE'8L 6.6'01 £Z0'8 Lo ZLo'y - DEE'SE jau - jassEe xe| pauaja(]
EEL'Y 600'0L 660'8 szz'ol zi5'sk By'ZE 09¥'L £95'S 68LZ zog'le sjesse paxy Buneledg
09L aF'pLE BOL'8¥ 6¥F 69 G6L'ZLE ZLL'GSS Z6L'8VS £l8'LYE B59°L6 YB0'E65'E SSTUBARY
= 6L¥'L99 L6¥'a0L apZ'TLL'L  ELL'SSE LaL'yeL'L £66'9FE 698'S51 Z8P'960'S 0FP'569'6 sjUBLSaAL|
. * o by . 000002 000'0SZ 000'055°'F  000'000'Z | 000'000'Y suoprnsul [efpueuy o sbujpuan
™ T o b s ™ i - SEp°g8 S6F'EE SYueq Jayjo yim saouejeg
i = el - c = = = 82£'82 BZE'BZ syueq Anseal) Lum sesuejeq pue Usen
Slassy
(000, ui seadny)
siead gl sieaf oL siesh g sieaf ¢ sigal 7 Jeaf | SYIUOW g SYUOW ¢ yuow
aaoqy DJGIBAQ OJEJSAQ O] ZJBAD O] LJBAQ O©ISYuOw g o) g J8AD 0} | J8AD | o I%oL
J8A0
L10Z
dnicig ay3 4o SSPI(IGe)| PUB SIASSE 31 J0 UNJEW [BNIJRIUOD U0 Paseq - Sa{)|jIqe]| PUB S}3SSE JO SaIMEl  #'6E
LI 'pSs 'y
Teciis) ¥E] JO |BL - E}3SSE JO UDNENJEAR] UD SN|ding
T AT MY S50| PEIE|NLWNDOY
0§9'LIE sanlasay
08L'krL'e jepdeD aieyg
£6F'S SPL'EBS (sza'zal) 1e6'LEs' L (0z)'1E) B0S'ZTOC'Z  BSS'EPE (z80°666'Z)  €8L'965'T  LPP'PSS ¥
= 918'082 005'z9L 059'228 000'SZL'L LLL'ELE 152'e58 050°2%L's L60'BRL'Y SLO'809"YL
- 94£'s = 0532 o = 182'8L 055'FE oL0'Le £88'L0Z selige!| 1ey0
- - - - - 000'6E - - - DOD'SE SJUN03JE JBYI0 pUE spsodag
= 000'5ZZ 005'Z9L 000'sZ8 000'SZL'L bEL'PLR 000'SLL 005'ZLL'S LZ0'899'F ZEL'Z9E'Y) sbuimouog
saae
£6¥'S MES'ELZ'L  519'6LS VED'SSE'Z  OBE'EE0'} BL9'SLZ'E  SEL'9GL'L  BOG'ISL'T  pIE'SPEL 95¥'Z9L'61
- ora'y = [T L9£'68 G6EL'OVE'L eeL'or 19996 LZL'ZE LIV'DES'L S|EssE JAUI0
- LLIE'S) L16'9) ost'sl 6LE'9} £20'8 ZLo'y zio'y - ore'ss Jeu - jassE XE)} pBusjeq
EEL'Y 600'0L 660'8 szz'ol Z15'6L Sve'zL ogr'L 1a5's 68L'Z ZOE'L8 syasse paxy Bunesedp
11 F ALFFLS BOL'SPY 6¥r'6oY SBL'ZLY ZLL'6SS 6L 8YS £18°1¥E 659'L6 $BO'SES'E sacuEADY
= 6L¥ 299 L6Y'901L SPZ'ZLLL £L11'55¢ IBLPEL'L £E6'APE 6¥R'SSE Z8¥'960's obr's6a's sjuaunsaau)
= = = ™ - 000002 000'052 000055 000'000'Z 000'000° suopngsu) [epueuy o} sbuipuay
- - - - - - - - SEF'ER S6¢'88 SHUBQ JBLR0 LM SBOUE|EG
- - - - - - - - 828'8Z 8ZE'SZ syueq Ainseai) uym saoueleq pue yses
sasey
{000, u) seadny)
sJjeak gL sieak gL sigaf g sieaf ¢ sigaf aealk | SYUOW g SUUoW g yjuow
sAoqy OIS49A0  OIEJOAD  OJZJUSAQ O} LMD O} SYJUOWI D O)JESEAQ O | JOAD L @dp Feol
IBALY
LEDZ

dnaig sy jo (H5TY) sapwiwen JuswaBeuey sapmyiger] pue sjessy oy} Aq pasosdde sigeq oy uQ - SIIGE|| PUB SIOESE O SARUNIEY

‘aspe Loy se segunuoddo uewlsaaul pue Buipue jepuejod Aue jo sbejuespe Bupe) Ag

pue seuiapin AiojenBes yum SOUEPICIDE U| SBHIGE) PUE S]BSSE JO SSBD ||B SS0428 suU Appinby s Bulbeuew AQ 'SUDHIPUDD SSISADE JBPUN UBAS J500 B|QEUOSES] JB SPUN) 8SI1E1 0} ApgE SBY J JBy) sunsue 0} s¥eas dnois) ey)

sjeyang unjew aeudodde ay) je aaue o) SHun jeuoieiedo 1o $seUisng aasedsed ey Ag
seIge; pue sjesse Sulpepun Jo ucheES e 10} UORBLINSS PUB uolejoadxe JO/pUE SejIqe|| PUE Sj9sse Joj AJUNIEW |BEMOBIUCD 91} JUNODE O Ui @4E] YIIym SOIIGe)| pue sjesse jo sepumew Bugndwoes Joy siseq peacidde sey
007y Hsu Appinby Bupodas pue Buyjonuos ‘Buuopuow ‘Guunsesw Joy swiajeds uogeuuou sjenbape sey dnols) ey Buunsua Jo) s|gisucdsal os(E S1 ) HsU Appinby welysuoa pue joguos o) asepd w aie saunpasald pue saod
sjeudordde jey) Buunsue ABejens Anpinb)| segnasxe dnous) a8yl jo OOTY UL 0Dy o) pejebajep useaq sey Aupinby jo uewsBeuew JBeens ybBnowje dnous ey jo sjyoud Appinby Bubeuew o 8jgrsucdsal 51 Juawabeuew ey

JojE|nBa) puE SeRuWoD

juswebzuew ysu ‘JuswesBeusw Joues o) siseq Aueuenb uo wodal ogel sbesess) Buuedaud osie s dnousy By "seepiuwWo Juswsbeuew ¥su pue Juswebeusw Joues o) spodas Leaipousd pue ysu Aupinby Buunsesw Jo) sjoo)
luadawip sasn uoisip wewabeusw ysu ay) sauapinb 5,495 Jad se Aayod uswabeuew ysu Aypinby payenuuog osie seu dnossy ay| uswabevew Appmiyg punos uo sajdiouud ||| jaseq pue juswabeusw ¥su uo saulapinb
5,488 Maln u) Buideay pajenuua) s; Adijod wewabeusy Aipinki eyl ‘anp uaym saniigel s) 12el o} Apnby| wsDYns asey sAemie (i )] 18y 8|qissod se fey sB ainsua o] 8 JuawaBeusw s Aupinbl o] yaeoidde 5BAq|T-YEY

‘8NP BUIODAY BSAL UBLM SBIIAE! S) 188w pue sucneiado S,dnoiS) Bl BDUBLY OF UDHEIND S1UN panbes sy uIy)M 1500 sjqeuosess e spuny Busies u) smnpe o) snp Bujsue ¥su eyy

sy ypinbp

VEBE



40. NON-ADJUSTING EVENTS AFTER THE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION DATE

There is no event subsequent to the statement of financial position date that requires disclosure in these
financial statements.

41. DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE

These financial statements were authorised for issue on 23 March 2018 by the Board of Directors of
the Group.

42. GENERAL

42.1 In its latest rating announcement {June 2017), the Pakistan Credit Rating Agency Limited (PACRA) has
maintained the Company's rating of AA-(Double A Minus) in the long term and A1+ (A One Plus) in the
short term (with negative outlook assigned to ratings).

42.2 Amounts in these financial statements have been rounded off to the nearest thousand rupee, unless
otherwise stated.

42.3 This is the first set of financial statements for the Group prepared for the year ended 31 December 2017.
Therefore, comparative figures have not been presented.

Muhammad Masood Ebrahim Abid Aziz
Chief Financial Officer Managing Director & CEQ
Abid Aziz Khaled Joma Ezarzor
Director Director

PAK-LIBYA HOLDING COMPANY (PRIVATE) LIMITED
Annexure |
As referred in note 8.15 of the financial statements.

PARTICULARS OF INVESTMENT IN TERM FINANCE CERTIFICATES (TFCs)

Name of TFCs

Particulars of investments held in fisted
Term Finance Certificates (TFCs)

Summit Bank Limited - TFC {27-10-2011)
Certificate of Rs.5,000 each

Mark-up: 9.42% (6 - Months Kibor + 3.25%)
Redemption: Half yearly from April 2012
Maturity: October 2018

Trust Investment Bank Limited - TFC - IV (04-07-2008)
Certificate of Rs.5,000 each

Mark-up: 11.22% (6 - Months Kibor + 1.85%)
Redemption: Half yearly from July 2008

Maturity: July 2013

Installment status: Overdue

Jahangir Siddiqui & Co. Limited - TFC - {31-03-2014)
Certificate of Rs.5,000 each

Mark-up: 7.92% (6 - Months Kibor + 1.75%)
Redemption: Half yearly from October 2014

Maturity: April 2019

Azgard Nine Limited - TFC - Il (20-09-2005)
Certificate of Rs.5,000 each

Mark-up: 11.43% (6 - Months Kibor + 1.25%)
Redemption: Half yearly from Mar 2006
Maturity: Seplember 2017

Instaliment status: Overdue

Cost
2017

(Rupees in "000)

398,394

9,3

23,750

13,015

444 530
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Name of TFCs

Particulars of investments held in unlisted
Term Finance Certificates (TFCs)

Azgard Nine Limited - TFC - V (19-12-2010)
Certificate of Rs.5,000 each

Mark-up: 10.83% (3 - Months Kibor + 1.25%)
Redemption : Quarterly from May 2011
Maturity: November 2015

Instaliment status: Overdue

Azgard Nine Limited - TFC - VI (31-08-2012)
Certificate of Rs.5,000 each

Mark-up: 0%

Redemption: Half yearly from March 2014
Maturity: March 2017

Dewan Farooq Spinning Mills Limited - TFC (04-12-2004)
Certificate of Rs.5,000 each

Mark-up: 11.15% (6 - Menths Kibor + 3.75%)
Redemption: Half yearly from June 2006

Maturity: June 2010

Installment status: Overdue

Jahangir Siddiqui & Co. Limited - TFC - (24-05-2018)
Certificate of Rs.5,000 each

Mark-up: 7.86% (6 - Months Kibor + 1.65%)
Redemption: Half yearly from December 2017
Maturity: June 2021

NRSP MicreFinance Bank Limited - TFC - (24-06-2016)
Certificate of Rs. 5,000 each

Mark-up: 8.51% (6 - Menths Kibor + 2.35%)
Redemption: Half yearly from September 2016

Maturity: June 2018

Silk Bank Limited- TFC- {(30.06.2017)
Certificate of Rs.5,000 each

Mark-up: 8.00% (6 - Months Kibor + 1.85%)
Redemption: Half yearly from February 2018
Maturity: August 2025

U MicroFinance Bank Limited-TFC- (29.06.2017)
Certificate of Rs.5,000 each

Mark-up: 9.65% (6 - Months Kibor + 3.5%)
Redemption: Halif yearly from December 2022
Maturity: June 2024

Cost
2017

(Rupees in
'000)

179,652

80,400

18,750

218,750

93,750

100,000

90,000

Balance c/f. 781,302

No.

10

1"

12

13

Name of TFCs

Balance b/f.

Particulars of investments held in unlisted
Term Finance Certificates (TFCs)

New Allied Electronics Industries (Pvt.) Limited - TFC (05-09-2007)
Certificate of Rs.5,000 each

Mark-up: 12.36% (3 - Months Kibor + 2.75%)

Redemption: Quarterly from August 2008

Maturity: May 2011

Installment status: Overdue

Pakistan International Airlines Corporation Limited - TFC - 1l (20-02-2009)

Certificate of Rs.5,000 each

Mark-up: 7.39% (6 - Months Kibor + 1.25%)
Redemption: Quarterly from May 2016
Maturity: February 2020

Security Leasing Corporation Limited - TFC - Il (28-03-2006)
Certificate of Rs.5,000 each

Mark-up: 0% (as per the terms of restructuring)

Redemption: Monthly from February 2012

Maturity: January 2022

Instaliment status: Overdue

Bank Al-Habib Limited

Certificate of Rs.100,000 each

Mark-up: 8.58% (3 - Months Kibor + 2.00%)
Redemplion: Quarterly from July 2012
Maturity: April 2016

JDW Sugar Mills Limited-TFC- (06.08.2013)
Certificate of Rs.50 million each

Mark-up: 7.15% (3 - Months Kibor + 2.50%)

Redemption: Quarterly from December 2013
Maturity: March 2018

JS Bank Limited - TFC- (14-12-2016)
Certificate of Rs. 5,000 each

Mark-up: 7.57% (6-Months Kibor + 1.40%)
Redemption: Half yearly from June 2017
Maturity: December 2023

Cost
2017

(Rupees in '000)

781,302

15,957

110,581

3,081

300,000

11,111

199,960

1,421,992
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Security Leasing Corporation Limited (21-09-2008) 12,323 g |2
Certificate of Rs.5,000 each e |=
Mark-up: 0% (as per the terms of restructuring) - o i
Redemption: Monthly from February 2012 E '5‘
Maturity: January 2022 £
Instaliment status: Overdue
E[F B ol
AGP Limited 45,000 !;
Certificate of Rs.5,000 each AMBE
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© s z
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<v> 5th Floor, Block’C| Finance & Trade Centre,

Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi, Pakistan
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